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VISION BE=

Becoming a global circular
economy solution partner.
AR IKBIR TR A 1F
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MISSION {F7n

To be a global market leader in resources
recycling and environmental protection,
earning a quality return to shareholders through

the provision of quality products and services, by a

group of motivated and diversified staff force.
BN EHENEFERERESER KR
B RO AE2RBEERKIRRITENT
HEEE W R REEIEAEIR -

CULTURE
X1t

We are committed to building a long-
term and win-win partnership with our customers
including suppliers.

HMPERARFERERERRLRASIFRELRRME

We provide a safe workplace and career development
opportunities for our employees.
HAERAETREZENITFRBETASEHEIERTM

We are devoted to achieving a quality, stable and continuous return
for our shareholders.

HMAERARRIEEE - RENFANER-

We meet our corporate social responsibility by making
continuous contributions to social well-being and

environmental protection.
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ABOUINCHIK®

FRES

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (the
with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Chiho"”) is one of the world’s
largest publicly listed metal recycling corporations with geographical

presence covering Asia, Europe and North America.

Our extensive global operations comprise:

Metal Scrap Recyclmg
BESEEYK

End-Of-Life Vehicle (ELV
Processing

ﬁ@ SEF R

Electronic Waste Recycling

BEFEHEK

Waste

[ hE U

Rehred Lithium Baﬂerles
Recycling

BERIETth B

Process Opﬂmlsqhon
Service

IFE(CIR®

Sourcing, processing and
trading of ferrous and
non-ferrous metals
RE-NMIKREEREER
nmeess

Recycling, dismantling and
remanufacturing of ELV
with advance post
shredding technologies
(5] 45 ~ 3 2 T2 ) FA 52 3 RO B
BB RIER T EITIREESE
HEBRE

Recycling of scrap electrical
and electronic equipment
and data destruction
BESTERRMEEU
T B 84 8%

Purification, distillation
and additions of lubricant
additives to produce
lubricant base oil
FB1E s A BRARINE B R
hnE LXEE@Q?%?EEE%?E

Recycling of retired electric
vehicle lithium batteries

EWEEES HEE M

Advisory service on waste
management and
recycling process

optimisation
BEYEEKREW T FEIE
IR
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“Company”, and together

BEERFRERARAR ((KAF)  ZERHETF
NERBIAER KBS BERKRKRH
TEBEWETFATz— HRKEMBES
M BUM B IE=M -

BRANEZ2IRERESE

We use state-of-the-art processing technologies
to disassemble and sort mixed metal scrap into
useful recycled metals, such as copper, aluminum,
and ferrous metals, within a closed loop system
BAFALENRERMNMTRRARAAL
BETBENDBRDERTINBABLEESR
miA~ B R EEEE

Our facilities achieve a total recovery rate for ELV

and other scrap materials of approximately 97 %,

greater than the existing recovery target rate of
95% under the EU directive

HFINRFERERE N EMEMEEM T
ERAR BN 797 % » BB IRITEER B i iR

FREHI95 % B =

As one of the most diversified and comprehensive
e-waste recycling centre in Hong Kong, we
recycle materials within a closed loop system
EREBRLTIEMNGEE FRL
B ALz — > FMR IR R A A R

We have advanced technology and well
equipped production line to produce various
high quality lubricant oil
BB STERM KA B RVEEF AR
TESESEENEEN

Actively cooperating with European research
institutes and universities to jointly develop power
lithium battery recycling technology, which is
suitable for the recycling of different types and
models of lithium batteries

SEUN A R ABTEIR S (F > HEMEER
FB1UK 25 BT 48 R 7 9 49 3 840 51 U e

As an expert in recycling process management
and optimisation, we help our customers to
achieve sustainable development in operation and
business
ERBINTREEMEEHNESR
BHENSREREEREBNIEEREE
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HONG KONG &#&

A diversified, comprehensive and highly automotive e-waste
recycling centre

Zr 2EKSEBHLHBFEDLEU DL

MAINLAND CHINA =[] APz
Beijing 1t

Head office of the Mainland China operations

ERETP NS R S

Taizhou &M

Engaged in recycling and trading of metal scraps

NEBLEZBRIWRES

A major metal importer and domestic metal trader

ETBMENBARERNTEES B

Invested in the construction of end-of-life vehicles and electric
lithium battery recovery projects, of which the first phase was
officially kicked off in September 2022

KREMEERE B RENBEEMOWIES  HREE—HER
2 _FABERRS
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Our Worldwide Operations
B RXER

Yantai [&&

Engaged in recycling and domestic trading of metal scraps, and
recycling of waste oil

NEBEEBRINKREIANE S > UK EEHEIK

Binzhou ;&M

Joint venture with Honggiao Group, engaging in end-of-life
vehicle dismantling, scrap metals recycling, secondary aluminium
production and electric vehicle lithium batteries recycling
BRBERRIIGECE REREAERB -ETBLE -
BAindt E KRB MO

Shanghai ti&§

Trading hub with focus on import of recycled metals

EINBEETBEONRZZ RO

GERMANY EE]

Operating 80 yards, including joint ventures, covering South-
West, Central and Eastern Germany
EESOE LS (AEAE %)  BEEEAmMmEL  PERRE

Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing with all
types of equipment including the most advanced post-shredder
material recovery technology

REE D (BERIDEMNRERYE B - HE2ERII
& DEREERY
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Our Worldwide Operations
BN EES

CZECH REPUBLIC ER= X

Operating 40 yards mainly situated in northern Bohemia and |

Prague area
EE T EANRA IR K A AL 3 & BY4018 T 15

With a very strong market share in ferrous market, covering
both old scrap and new scrap market
REBTEHISMGHISNEEGEE  HEERER AHER
Mm%

ROMANIA ZEEgn

Operating 31 yards, joint venture with two experienced local

business partners
SEELS EMUBMKREENEBBRARULAERE

Ho}

Covering the heavily populated and well industrialised areas in
this country
BEZEAOBRERSEILELCHME

Proximity to Turkey enables significant scrap export
KT T ELEL AR B R

High non-metals share of sales, including significant portion of
paper and plastics

FEE (BREAEMRKAER) NIFEEILLLS

SLOVENIA Hri@ X e

Operating 18 yards
EE18ETH

Well equipped with yard network, transportation assets and
processing capabilities to cover all suppliers (industry and old scrap)
fofE RIFM TIHHE4E  ERRERMIREUEE 2 MRS

(CZEENRERERD =

Strong non-ferrous operations, including paper and plastic recycling

AEEBEED (BEMRRERRBIID TR
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Our Worldwide Operations
B RXER

AUSTRIA EithF)

Joint venture with steel mill Voestalpine Group, operating 12
yards with sourcing subsidiary in Hungary '
By M REHERENIISERE BUNAFRNREFLR §
BB 1@

Market leader for ferrous scrap trading in the country with
strong track record in project business (e.g. power plant
dismantling)
ENBLERCTEEENMBERES TEERIFHEERSE
BRFEHR

POLAND &

Operating 5 yards covering central and southern Poland, the
most industrialised and scrap rich areas ST
EESETLS BEERBELXCEERSEEEYRSHNPE
Fera

Covering full scope of collection, sorting and processing with all
types of equipment
HELTLD EEHEREX2ENWE - DEREERT

.

USA =H

Divestment of most of the loss-making operations in 2022

ABDGEREREN _S__FHE

Future focus towards brokerage business

RREHBREEREF L
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Our Worldwide Operations
BN EES

SOUTHEAST ASIA EREgIn
India ENE

Joint venture with Century Metal Recycling Group, engaging in
dismantling of scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal
EACentury Metal Recycling Group FII&EE  HEEES

BREMEE RS SEIRA - uq.,.w mrﬁhqj

Ferrous and non-ferrous scraps are sold domestically

BERCNACEBEIEENEE

Thailand ==

Joint venture with Hidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited and
Suzuki Shokai Co. Limited, engaging in dismantling of scrap
motors and other mixed scrap metal

HiHidaka Yookoo Enterprises Co. Limited&zSuzuki Shokai Co.
Limited 5 1F > R EREESHKHEMEE RS SBITE

Ferrous scraps are sold domestically while non-ferrous scraps are
exported to other Asian markets
BLAEEaSBEEENEE MBLEEaEBEHOZEMENT

%

Malaysia B2k #GEz

Joint venture with Heng Hup Group, engaging in dismantling of
scrap motors and other mixed scrap metal

SESEEGF tEREBUNAMBEERSSBIFE

Ferrous scraps are sold domestically while non-ferrous scraps are
exported to China markets

BERCEBEEREANEE MBEACEBHOERETS

ERIRREEERAR
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CHARMANTS STATEMENY
ERES

The year of 2022 had been an extraordinary year for the global social
and economic development, during which the COVID-19 pandemic
continued to spread, the war between Russia and Ukraine suddenly
broke out, and many countries around the world were plunged into
food and energy supply crises and suffered from enormous pressure
posed by rare inflation and supply chain instability. The recycling
industry was also facing complex challenges and impact worldwide,
with its production and sales businesses being affected by economic
and trade conditions and other factors. In response to the adverse
factors, Chiho Environmental Group Limited (“the Company” or
“Chiho”) has put forward the policies of “solidifying operation
fundamentals, dynamically reducing costs and enhancing efficiency,
optimizing structure governance, and improving supply alerts” to
continuously strengthen the capabilities to withstand risks and resist
impacts of its regional operating entities and continue to deepen its
local sales and business expansion. At the same time, we continued
to improve our research and development (“R&D") and innovation
capabilities and adaptability. In 2022, the Company’s regional teams
joined hands to drive the progress of several projects in Europe and
Asia, and to harvest R&D progress so as to relieve the impact from all
aspects under the unfavorable economic environment.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

On behalf of the board of directors of Chiho (the “Board”), | am
pleased to present the audited annual results of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Group’s total tonnage and revenue in the fiscal year of 2022
was 3.81 million tonnes and HK$19,574.3 million, respectively. In
particular, 2.04 million tonnes was achieved in the first half of the year,
representing around 90.7% of the semi-annual plan, of which ferrous
metal tonnage was 1.74 million tonnes, accounting for around 85.3%
of the total tonnage in the first half of the year. In the second half of
the year, due to strong economic fluctuations and the aftershocks of
the Russia-Ukraine war, trade and sales declined, with total tonnage of
1.77 million tonnes being achieved, representing around 80.0% of the
semi-annual plan.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The European operations continued to be Chiho's current core
business, whose tonnage accounted for more than 90% of the
Group’s tonnage around the world. The metal tonnage and revenue
of European operations was 3.64 million tonnes and HK$17,841.4
million, respectively. During the year, tonnage in the first half of the
year was close to expectations at 1.97 million tonnes; while tonnage
in the second half of the year fell short of expectations at 1.67 million
tonnes. Despite the complex and volatile external environment, the
European operations, as the Group’s foundation, firmly sticked to the
Group's policy of “solidifying operation fundamentals”. In addition,
under the environment of high inflation and high cost in Europe, the
Group and its European entities communicated efficiently and did
their best to achieve balance between social costs and production and
operation, thus fulfilling the Group's policy of dynamically reducing
costs and enhancing efficiency. In 2022, the Group acquired a brown-
field investment property in Hungary to develop a metal recycling center
in this area, which will enable further growth of our core business and
expand material sourcing opportunities for our steel industry clients in
this area. The Group has launched a yard development project in Plzen,
the Czech Republic, which will bring further growth and strengthen
our business networks in the south-west Bohemia region in the Czech
Republic. The project is anticipated to be completed and put into
production by the third quarter of 2023 and will add 500,000 tonnes of
metal recycled to the Group per year.

In North America, results declined to varying degrees as the Group
conducted the sale of loss-making non-core businesses to realize
investments in the strategic priority areas and be in line with the
Group'’s policy of optimizing structure governance.

Chairman's Statement

FRESE
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Chairman's Statement

FRES

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

In Greater China, as a result of the containment measures of the
pandemic, the sales and production in the region were subject to
heavy resistance, and the operating entities in the region were subject
to different degrees of pressure posed by production stoppages, staff
reductions and logistics delays. In response, the Company maintained
a high degree of industry sensitivity, enhanced the efficiency of
resumption of production, properly relocated personnel and actively
maintained communication with upstream and downstream suppliers
and sellers, thus fulfilling the Group’s policy of improving supply
alerts. Meanwhile, good progress was made on the projects under
construction and new projects. In September 2022, the end-of-life
vehicle intelligent recycling project of Chiho located in Taizhou, Zhejiang
Province, China officially commenced construction. By the end of 2022,
the project had completed the construction of the end-of-life vehicle
plant and the installation of facilities, as well as the basic design,
equipment selection and confirmatory trial of electric vehicle battery
recycling. In November 2022, Chiho's joint venture company located
in Binzhou City, Shandong Province, China successfully obtained the
Certificate of Enterprise Qualification for End-of-life Vehicle Recycling
and Dismantling and officially launched the end-of-life vehicle recycling
and dismantling production line. Among other things, monthly
production capacity of over 1,500 tonnes has been achieved in the
joint venture company’s recycled aluminum production line. Moreover,
by the end of 2022, Chiho has successively obtained 12 invention
patents in China, which were licensed by China National Intellectual
Property Administration and assessed by experts. In Southeast Asia,
Chiho improved the workers’ knowledge and skills in recycling, and
will continue to improve production efficiency of staff in the region to
achieve a significant increase in metal scrap production in this region.
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PROSPECT

Even though the conflict between Russia and Ukraine is still not over
and the global economic recovery is still facing many challenges,
addressing climate change and calling for new renewable resources
has become an urgent need for major economies. The current energy
crisis has also made countries realise that renewable energy is of
lower carbon, more economical and safer. In 2022, the 27th United
Nations Climate Change Conference (COP27) reaffirmed the goal of
limiting global warming to 1.5 degrees Celsius above pre-industrial
temperatures and the need to reduce global greenhouse gas emissions
in the coming 20 years and halve them by 2030. In this regard, the
European Union is committed to updating its regional carbon reduction
target from 55% to 57%. China will also further implement its dual
carbon commitment. According to the Progress on the Implementation
of China’s Nationally Determined Contributions (2022), China’s carbon
emission intensity (i.e. CO2 emissions from its organised GDP) in 2021
was 3.8% lower than that in 2020 and 50.8% lower cumulatively than
that in 2005, which is closer to China’s target of reducing its carbon
intensity by more than 65% by 2030 compared to 2005. This is closer
to the target of reducing China’s carbon intensity by more than 65%
by 2030. This carbon reduction achievement has a connection that
cannot be ignored with the green development measures announced
successively since the “First Year of Carbon Neutrality” of China in
2021.

It is believed that major economies will continue to promulgate directive
policies on green and low-carbon industries and accelerating energy
transformation. The recycling industry will also continue to develop
against the backdrop of policy support, social concern and technology
advancement, and will become a trend of the times.

At the same time, the impact of the pandemic has gradually weakened,
especially with the adjustment to China's pandemic prevention
policy and the gradual resumption of various foreign and domestic
interactions, China’s economy is expected to resume its growth rate,
adding momentum to the recovery of world economy. This will also
have a positive impact on Chiho’s joint ventures and self-investment
projects in China.

Chairman's Statement
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Chairman's Statement
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PROSPECT (continued)

Despite the turbulence of 2022, we still celebrated the 150th birthday
of Scholz, our main operating entity in Europe, amid the pressure
and challenges. This celebration is a look back at 100 years of history
and also a new start for us to overcome the unknown challenges and
embrace the changes in our industry. Over the years, we have achieved
consistently good results in key business areas around the world, which
is a testament to our continued competitiveness in technology, services
and operations, as well as our ability to provide reliable solutions to
our partners and customers. We are confident that our creativity,
adaptability and resilience will support us through the global economic
downturn, save momentum for long-term development and continue
to provide our customers with excellent services and solutions in related
fields.

Therefore, we need to continuously improve our recycling services
and scientific research capabilities, provide customers with the most
competitive solutions, continue to consolidate our core business
in Europe, and expand our new business in Asia. Nowadays, faced
with the rapid development of high technology, how to integrate
traditional R&D with intelligence and data is a topic that this industry
needs to face, and it is also an effort we need to make in the field
of scientific research and innovation. Amidst the complex global
economic environment, open and flexible operation mindset and
informationalized management mode are also the areas where we need
to invest. Let’s always get prepared for the world being readjusted to a
new normal.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Board
members, the hard-working and dedicated Chiho staff around the
world, as well as our loyal customers and partners who have supported
our Group's development over the years. | extend my heartfelt wishes
for everyone’s physical and mental well-being.

Qin Yongming
Chairman of the Board

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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RYANVACEMENTT RDISCUSSION AND ANVAGSIS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBRHE
Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease)
g —ZT—F M GR)
Operating results (HK$M) REEE (HEBTT)
Segment revenue pag=1 &
Asia M 1,787.1 2,130.8 (16.1%)
Europe B 17,841.4 19,150.0 (6.8%)
North America 6= 35.7 1,012.4 (96.5%)
Inter-segment sales DEEIHE (89.9) (342.8) (73.8%)
Revenue U &= 19,574.3 21,950.4 (10.8%)
Gross profit EF) 1,207.7 1,888.5 (36.0%)
Segment profit/(loss) DEREF] (B518)
Asia M (104.0) 18.9 (650.3%)
Europe B 707.8 994.0 (28.8%)
North America JE=M (17.9) 182.3 (109.8%)
Unallocated KAEC 4.8 (77.7) (106.2%)
Profit before interest and tax (EBIT) &% B &I IBAEF] 590.7 1,117.5 (47.1%)
Finance costs, net R R R (186.7) (233.8) (20.1%)
Income tax expense PSR (166.6) (191.7) (13.1%)
Profit for the year FER = 237.4 692.0 (65.7%)
Financial position (HK$M) MR (BEEET)
Cash generated from operations KEMPRE 902.9 653.0 38.3%
Cash, pledged and restricted RE - BIEFRZ RS
bank deposits RITEMR 766.0 924.7 (17.2%)
Total assets BERE 8,573.0 9,958.5 (13.9%)
Equity attributable to KABREELE R
shareholders of the Company 4,824.2 4,873.9 (1.0%)
HABRERERAT —T-—f% 13



Management Discussion and Analysis

EREAR RS

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (continued) MFEEE (@)
Increase/
2022 2021 (Decrease)
kS ZE—F  #iE)
Per share data (HK$) BRER (BT
Earnings per share attributable to ~ ZA&AA T R EELE R
shareholders of the Company B 0.16 0.44 (63.6%)
Shareholders’ funds per share BRKERES 3.01 3.04 (1.0%)
Key ratios (%) B EEER(%)
Gross profit margin EREX 6.2 8.6 (27.9%)
Net profit margin’ Fup il 1.4 3.2 (56.3%)
EBIT/Revenue BRF) B R M IER T A
& 3.0 5.1 (41.2%)
Return on shareholders’ funds? PN EACIE ES 5.5 15.0 (63.3%)
Revenue in Last 5 Years Gross Profit and Gross Profit Net Profit (Loss) and Net Profit
BELFEWE Margin in Last 5 Years (Loss) Margin in Last 5 Years
BERFEFNR BEREREN BB5E) K
EFES Bimd (8518) X
BEAT BEAT BEAT
25,000 2,000 10% 800 5.0%
M 600 Ll
3.0%
20,000 1,600 9%
i 2.0%
200 1.0%
15,000 1,200 8% 0 0.0%
-1.0%
(200)
10,000 800 7% -2.0%
(400) -3.0%
4.0%
) (600)
5,000 400 6% 5.0%
&) -6.0%
0 0 5% (1,000) -6.3% -7.0%
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Asia Z5; ™ Europe B Gross Profit £ Net Profit/(Loss) 7#iz#, (#518)
North America 353l — Gross Profit Margin EF% —— Net Profit/(Loss) Margin ;&% (B518) =
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group sold 3.81 million tonnes of recycled products in 2022. While
the tonnage sold showed a decrease of 12.0% comparing to 4.33
million tonnes sold in 2021, revenue for the year has decreased by
10.8% from HK$21,950.4 million in 2021 to HK$19,574.3 million in
2022.

The COVID-19 pandemic and its impact on the Group still continued
in 2022, with restrictions on transportation and travel for some of
the Group’s regional entities. The war between Russia and Ukraine
commenced in February 2022 led to a short-term increase in the prices
of all commodities. However, in mid-2022, with the high price increase
for electricity in Europe, consumers of scrap metals reduced their inflow
and focused on producing only ordered volumes to optimize their
expenses. As the major consumers for ferrous scrap would use electric
arc furnaces and their operation capacity would mainly depend on
the cost of electricity and therefore result in lower demand for ferrous
scrap. Prices for scrap products were weakened significantly in the
second half of 2022 and have remained stable since then, but are still
significantly lower than the same period in 2021.

The European segment continues to be the key contributor in terms
of revenue and profit of the Group. The contribution from the
Asian segments continued to grow in 2022 and the repositioning of
businesses and the potential disposals of assets for working capital
purpose are expected to be completed in 2023.

Gross Profit/Margin

Gross profit for the year was HK$1,207.7 million (2021: HK$1,888.5
million), a decrease of 36.0% compared to the last financial year with
a gross profit margin of 6.2% (2021: 8.6%). The decrease in the gross
profit margin is a result of increasing provision of inventories in a time
of decreasing scrap prices since May 2022. Also, the increasing freight
cost and the higher energy costs as a result of the disruptions in the
global supply chain of scrap products in Europe and the impact of the
Russo-Ukrainian War respectively have eroded the margin.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN w2

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Operating expenses

Total operating expenses for the year were HK$974.8 million (2021:
HK$1,245.7 million), an decrease of 21.7% over the last financial
year, and as a percentage of revenue, it has decreased to 5.0% (2021:
5.7%). The decrease in operating expenses was attributable to the
overall implementation by the Group of the policy of “cost reduction
and efficiency improvement”, which achieved higher cost efficiency.
Profit Attributable to Shareholders and Earnings Per
Share

Profit attributable to shareholders of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2022 was HK$264.5 million, as compared to HK$702.0
million in the last financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
HK$0.16 as compared to HK$0.44 in the last financial year.

Analysis of Cash Flow from Operations

The Group’s cash generated from operations before changes in working
capital for the year was HK$699.4 million (2021: HK$1,195.2 million).
The Group has been carefully managing the working capital in response
to the uncertainties in the market conditions due to the pandemic.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Shareholders’ funds as at 31 December 2022 were HK$4,824.2
million (2021: HK$4,873.9 million), an decrease of 1.0% from as at
31 December 2021. Shareholders’ funds per share decreased from
HK$3.04 as at 31 December 2021 to HK$3.01 as at 31 December
2022.

The Group’s financial resources has remained steady. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had cash, various bank balances, pledged
and restricted bank deposits amounting to HK$766.0 million (2021:
HK$924.7 million), used mainly for repayment of external borrowings
and working capital needs for expansion of business operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The current ratio improved from 1.13 as at 31 December 2021 to 1.31
as at 31 December 2022. Certain long-term borrowings were classified
as current liabilities as they will be maturing within the next twelve
months. Management is in active discussions with lenders and potential
lenders to refinance the maturing borrowings.

Total external borrowings as at 31 December 2022 were HK$1,142.1
million (2021: HK$1,661.9 million).
utilized for the purchase of mixed recycle metal and working
capital, and mainly denominated in Euro, US Dollar and Renminbi.
Approximately HK$935.0 million (2021: approximately HK$1,354.7
million) of borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

Such borrowings were mainly

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was 13.3%
(2021:
divided by our total assets. Through the Group’s cost reduction and
efficiency improvement by strengthened management and control, the
Group's gearing ratio decreased reasonably and the pressure on external
debt continued to be reduced.

16.7%) which is calculated based on the total borrowings

Working Capital Change

Overall, our net operating cycle has remained healthy during the current
year, showing our commitment to improve operating efficiencies.

Inventories as at 31 December 2022 were HK$1,323.7 million (2021:
HK$1,567.8 million) mainly due to the lower scrap price. The inventory
turnover days, which is calculated based on inventory balance as at year
ended divided by cost of sales for the year, times three hundred and
sixty five days, for the financial year was 26 days (2021: 29 days).

Provision for inventories as at 31 December 2022 were HK$58.6 million
(2021: HK$43.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN w2

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Working Capital Change (continued)

Trade and bills receivables after netting loss allowance as at 31
December 2022 were HK$1,290.5 million, decreased from HK$1,774.9
million as at 31 December 2021. Debtor turnover days, which is
calculated based on trade and bill receivables balance after netting loss
allowance as at year ended divided by revenue for the year, times three
hundred and sixty five days, for the financial year decreased from 30
days in last financial year to 24 days in this financial year.

Trade payables as at 31 December 2022 were HK$1,418.8 million
(2021: HK$1,801.3 million). Creditor turnover days, which is calculated
based on trade and bills payables balance as at year ended divided by
cost of sales for the year, times three hundred and sixty five days, for
the year ended 31 December 2022 were 28 days (2021: 33 days).

Treasury Policies

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact of
fluctuations in commodity prices and foreign currency exchange rates
arising from the Group’s global operations. The Group principally uses
future contracts to hedge the commodity risks, and forward foreign
exchange contracts to hedge the foreign exchange risks in the ordinary
course of business. It is the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group invested HK$453.8
million (2021: HK$260.5 million) in the purchase of tangible assets
including land, buildings, plant, machinery and equipment, leasehold
improvements, office equipment for improving production efficiency.
These capital expenditures were financed through internal resources
and lease arrangements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Operational Performance

The Group continued to operate in our long-established markets and
expanded into new markets in Southeast Asia. Through the geographic
diversification, we are in a good position to mitigate the risks of
depending overly on a single market. We are among the processing
and technology leaders in ferrous and non-ferrous metal recycling
worldwide, and own many advanced processing technologies in scrap
metal shredding and post-shredding processing.

Europe

The European segment sold 3.64 million tonnes of recycled products for
the year ended 31 December 2022, a decrease of 7.4% compared to
the last year of 3.93 million tonnes. Segment revenue was HK$17,841.4
million, decreased by 6.8% against HK$19,150.0 million of demand for
metals were maintaining strong in the first half of 2022. The significant
price increase for electricity in Europe reduced the demand and price
for scrap metals in the second half of 2022. In the second half of 2022,
the sales volume were reduced by around 15% compared to first half
of 2022 driven by less demand and the general seasonality in Europe
due to summer holidays and Christmas in the second half of the year.
Revenue decline is driven by the significant price reduction for ferrous
from May to July around 40% to 50% per tonne.

European segment’s gross profit for the year was HK$1,241.7 million,
decreased by 23.5% as compared to HK$1,622.8 million of last year,
and gross profit margin for the year also decreased from 8.5% in
2021 to 7.0% in the current year. The European segment experienced
significant increase in logistic and transportation costs from breakdown
of global supply chain of scrap products in Europe due to high energy
costs.

Segment profit for the year was HK$707.8 million (2021: HK$994.0
million), decreased by 28.8% as compared to last year. With the
high electricity cost since second half of 2022, that eroded European
segment’s profitability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN w2

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
North America

Since the North American segment has transferred into assets held for
sale and there is no operation left. There won't be further negative
impacts on the group result in the future. At the beginning of January
2023, the main assets located in Mexico were sold. The North American
segment, therefore, reported 0.001 million tonnes of recycled products
sold for the year (2021: 0.21 million tonnes), and a segment revenue of
HK$35.7 million (2021: HK$1,012.4 million).

Segment gross loss for the year was HK$3.4 million (2021: gross profit
of HK$191.4 million) and gross loss margin was at 9.6% (2021: gross
profit margin 18.9%). As such, the North American segment has a loss
of HK$17.9 million (2021: profit of HK$182.3 million).

Asia

The Asian segment sold 0.17 million tonnes of recycled products in
the current year, a decrease of 15% against 2021 of 0.20 million
tonnes sold. Electric motor recycling business continued to grow in the
Southeast Asia and become one of the contributors to the Asia segment
besides the business of metal trading in China. As a result, the segment
revenue decreased by 16.1% from HK$2,130.8 million in 2021 to
HK$1,787.1 million.

With the limitation of importing the raw materials like electric-motor
in Malaysia for the Southeast Asian operations which affected the
operation flow in the second half of 2022, segment gross loss for
the year was HK$15.7 million, a decrease of 116.7% as compared to
segment gross profit HK$94.0 million in 2021. Gross profit margin also
decreased from 4.4% in 2021 to gross loss margin 0.9% in 2022. As
such, segment loss was HK$104.0 million as compared to segment
profit HK$18.9 million 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had pledged certain property,
plant, equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties,
inventories, trade receivables and bank deposits with an aggregate
carrying value of approximately HK$3,722.9 million (31 December
2021: HK$4,330.7 million) to secure borrowings and general banking
facilities granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant, equipment and additions in
construction in progress which are contracted for but not provided
for in the amount of HK$72.9 million (31 December 2021: HK$103.0
million).

As at the date of this report, save as disclosed below, the Board is not
aware of any material contingent liabilities.

The Group has provided financial guarantees to certain related party
and joint ventures of HK$19.0 million and HK$49.9 million (31
December 2021: HK$19.5 million and HK$53.7 million), respectively. As
the risk of default is very remote and there is no history of default, no
financial guarantee liability was recognized.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”), as
plaintiff, on 21 December 2015 in the High Court of Hong Kong (the
“Court”) (High Court Action No. 3040 of 2015, “"HCA 3040/2015"),
followed by an amended writ on 5 December 2016, against the
Company and Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”) as defendants for a sum
of HK$57.8 million together with interest and costs. The claim relates
to an alleged non-payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco
Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the Company
in accordance with the terms of a shareholder’ loan assignment dated
24 June 2010 between, amongst others, Delco Asia and the Company.
The Company filed its defense on 23 September 2016. An amended
writ of summons was filed by Delco on 5 December 2016, adding Mr.
Fang as a defendant to the proceedings. The parties subsequently filed
amended pleadings. On Delco’s application, the Court granted leave to
Delco to discontinue its claim against the Company for the HK$57.8
million, with certain issues still to be decided by the Court.

EEEM Rk

BREERIAGR

RIE_-F+"HB=+—H ' x&EEIK
RERE4BEA3,722 98 BB T (ZE - —
F+ZA=+—H:4,330788ET) NG
T - BE - RE - TRAEEE -REDY
X - GFE BRERFBRIETER A%
FAREBZEBR R —RIBITREFER

RZE_ 4+ _-_B=+—H ' &x&E@E
RUKEME -BE RERABEEITNER
BENTEIRNERRESIEAT298
BET(CE—F+HA=+—H:103.0
BEHBIT) °

RARSHE B TIXAKEEN T
MEMNEEENEARNAER-

AEBESHNAETHEBARGEPER
HEMERIVOEBBTRIIOEEET
(CBE_—F+_-_B=+—H:19588&%
TL&53.7EEAET) cHREBHNRRR/NE
EENDS FILTERDTANSHER
=R

Delco Participation B.V. (I'Delco ) fEAR
ORI E—RE+ZAZ+—HHEEXA
BB LERE (THEED) FRESE A
EEBE AR (DEFL) R (FTE A
ZZ—RF530405% > THCA 3040/20151)
RESTSEBEBTERFM B R4 W=
T RNET_ERIARREITIEEZE - ZR
{EE fEDelco Asia Company Limited (I'Delco
Asial) RIRIEE S (HRBE1EDelco Asiak
KRR RIE—FFABI+MBAIZN
RREREZERREDEAQTD FREAZTR
HERNBLREBE AR ERZE—X
FABZ+=BHRYHEMNE  DelcoRZZ
—RNE+TZBEARREITHRNR MAL
RERERBFZHREG - BEEZHBEERE
REEAEFT AR o IRIEDelcoBI R EE » SR B
FFDelcof& IEMA R B RES7.8EE AT
BETEENBEFLARIEEE

ERIRREEERAR

—s-—gER 21



22

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN w2

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Each of Mr. Fang, a former director of the Company, and HWH Holdings
Limited (“HWH"), undertook to the Company to indemnify and hold
harmless on demand (on an after-tax basis) the Company against all
losses arising out of, inter alia, HCA 3040/2015 in accordance with the
terms of a letter of indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favor of
the Company on 17 December 2015. The exact scope of the indemnity
is yet to be determined.

A writ of summons was issued by Delco as plaintiff on 10 November
2016 in the Court (High Court Action No. 2939 of 2016, "HCA
2939/2016") against the Company as the 1st defendant, Chiho-Tiande
(HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the 2nd defendant, HWH as the 3rd defendant, and Mr. Fang as the
4th defendant. Delco claimed against the Company for damages for
an alleged breach of a letter of undertaking dated 3 March 2015 in
relation to a convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed
for by Delco on 1 March 2012. Delco further claimed against CTHK for
a sum of US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK
on or around 16 April 2009. Delco further claims interests, costs and
further or other relief. The Company and CTHK filed their defense
on 24 March 2017 and the plaintiff filed its reply to the Company
and CTHK's defense on 20 June 2017. The parties subsequently filed
amended pleadings and gave evidence at the trial in July 2021. The case
is still in progress, with the parties having made closing submissions,
and the parties are awaiting judgment from the Court.

Whilst the Board does not consider HCA 3040/2015 and HCA
2939/2016 to be claims of material importance for the reason set out
above, details of HCA 3040/2015 and HCA 2939/2016 are disclosed
herein for the sake of completeness.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BREERNAEE (B)

B RE (R ABRIMEES) KHWH Holdings
Limited (THWH1) & BB ARQ B K 1R
BHAREBRHWHUEARA A @ AR Z
T—HFE+Z ﬁ+tEl = B B3 E R
HER HEAATR (EFEIE)HCA
3040/2015%%8@?&%1@9&&@$@E%§
BK ZBRMBEE) HEMNEBERE X
FETE ©

Delcoff BARENZE—RE+—B+HE
RABEAE WS, ZRBNEEFA
BEARM (FB) ERAE (BaXME
BNIEAFE WS HWHIEASE =ZWE ;
BFEREEAENE S BUARR RS
(BREA —Z—/NFEFH29395 > THCA
2939/2016]) °DelcofifEf@ BN HEEA Z
T-FF=—A=ZHWAGEER ATER_Z
—_—F=HB—HAREETTKDelcosB Tl
HIRES) WIBERA LG RE cDelcos
—FPHEaGRMEBREIOBEEETT HE
{§f8ADelco AsialR —EZEHFMNA+75H
RABRBEG R E SRS ZANIE Delco
E—PREMNB - FABERE—THEM
BR AQAERBERMEEN_T—t
EZAZtTHARERE MRENR_Z
—tEXNBZTHMARBARBERE
BHNMBREREH EESHBRERKL
BEIHRRIER _E_—FtBZES LF
BoRMHMELETH EEHEEHERER
0 MASEAREER R R

EETREXMBFEHDBABHCA
3040/2015K%HCA 2939/20161 JEE K
o PRAFRE I EEHCA 3040/20155HCA
2939/2016MEF B2 R RIFTE M -



Management Discussion and Analysis

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group in its ordinary course of business is exposed to market risks
such as commodity price risk, foreign currency risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s risk management strategy is to
mitigate the adverse effects of these risks on its financial performance.

In 2010, the Group adopted a commodity price risk hedging
policy which has been subsequently updated to cater for the
changing operating conditions of the Group. The latest commodity
price risk hedging policy is available on the Company’s website,
www.chihogroup.com.

As part of its foreign currency hedging strategy, the Board closely
monitors the Group’s foreign currency borrowings in view of the volatile
exchange rates of Euro, Renminbi and other relevant currencies to US
Dollar and considers various measures to minimise foreign currency risk.

Regarding credit risk, the Group continues to follow the best practices
of cash collection for sales of most recycled products in order to
minimise the carrying amounts of the financial assets in the Group’s
financial statements. In addition, the Group continues monitoring

closely its trade debtors to minimise potential impairment losses.

Regarding liquidity risk, the Group continues maintaining a balance
between the continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a workforce of 2,748 (31
December 2021: 2,866) employees. In addition, as at 31 December
2022, we engaged approximately 459 (31 December 2021: 306)
workers and office staff through local contractors. We have not
experienced any strikes, work suspension or significant labor
disputes which have affected our operations in the past. We have
not experienced any significant difficulties in recruiting and retaining
qualified staff. We continue to maintain good relationships with our
employees and we provide a variety of internal and external training
programmes to our employees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EREN w2

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(continued)

The Group’s total staff costs for the year were approximately HK$975.6
million (2021: HK$1,111.0 million). The remuneration package of staff
consists of basic salary, mandatory provident fund, insurances and other
benefits as considered appropriate. Remuneration of employees of
the Group is determined by the senior management of the Group by
reference to market standards, individual performance, experience and
their respective contribution to the Group so as to retain competent
employees.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company with reference to factors
including the duties and responsibilities, backgrounds, qualifications
and experience of the Directors, having regard to the Company's
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics, subject to the Board's approval. Other emoluments including
discretionary bonuses, are determined by the Board with reference to
the Directors’ duties, abilities, reputation and performance.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 10 August 2022, Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. (“Seller”) (an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into a membership
interest purchase agreement with American Iron & Metal Company
Inc. (“"AIM (Canada)”) (“Disposal Agreement 1”), pursuant to which
the Seller has conditionally agreed to sell and AIM (Canada) has
conditionally agreed to purchase 50% of the issued and outstanding
membership interests in Kalischatarra (“Sale Interests 1”) at the
consideration of US$16,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$129,360,000) (“Disposals 1”) .

On 10 August 2022, the Seller entered into a membership interest
purchase agreement with American Iron & Metal (U.S.A.) Inc. (“AIM
(USA)") (“Disposal Agreement II”), pursuant to which the Seller has
conditionally agreed to sell and AIM (USA) has conditionally agreed to
purchase 50% of the issued and outstanding membership interests in
KIM (“Sales Interests 1I") and KNM (“Sales Interests IlI"”), respectively,
at the aggregate consideration of the US$3,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$27,440,000) (“Disposal 11", together with Disposal |,
the “Disposals”).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS (continued)

Pursuant to Rule 14.22 of the Listing Rules, the Disposals are required
to be aggregated since (i) AIM (USA) is an affiliate of AIM (Canada) and
(i) both Disposal Agreement | and Disposal Agreement Il have been
entered into on the same date on 10 August 2022 and the Disposal |
is expected to be completed within a 12-month period of 10 August
2022. As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined in Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules) in respect of the Disposals, on an aggregate
basis, is more than 5% but less than 25%, the Disposals constitute
discloseable transactions for the Company and are therefore subject
to the notification and announcement requirements under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules, but exempt from the shareholders’ approval
requirement.

Disposal | and Disposal Il were completed on 10 August 2022 and 5
January 2023 respectively. For details of the transaction, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 23 December 2022.

Save as disclosed in this Annual Report, there were no other significant
investments held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures and any concrete future plans for material
investment or capital assets.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

For the Group, maintaining trusting relationships with investors has
always been paramount. The Board accordingly continues to engage
with them regularly and to keep them apprised of its latest corporate
and business developments in a timely manner.

Looking to the future, the Group will be taking steps to increase
transparency with both investors and shareholders to strengthen its
corporate governance in line with their best interests. As part of this
initiative, additional visibility will be provided around strategic plans
and approaches, with the aim of eliciting feedback and reaffirming the
collective understanding of the Group's business, market activities and
growth opportunities.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS #1{T& =

Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), aged 60, has been an executive director of the Company since 2015. Mr. Tu is a member of
each of the executive committee and the strategy and investment committee of the Company. He also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tu also acted as the chairman of the Board from 29 April 2015 to 17 July
2017, and as the chief executive officer of the Company from 16 February 2016 to 31 March 2016. He was the chairman
of USUM Investment Group Limited from April 2014 to November 2019. He has been a director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd.
((EZEFEARAT) since January 1996 and a director of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd (F2# 184 fR/A &) since January
2003. USUM Investment Group Limited, Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ((BZEEEBBRAF) and Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (&%
Z=PE A BR/A F)) are controlling shareholders of the Company.

He served as the chairman of the board of Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (B Z R BRAE) in the period from January
2003 to July 2010 and from February 2013 to December 2013, an executive director of Loncin Group Co., Ltd. ((B&E &%
EABR/AE) from January 1996 to January 1997, and the chairman of the board of directors of Loncin Group Co., Ltd.
(FZZEEABRAE) from January 1996 to December 2013. He served as a general manager of Chongging Loncin
Gasoline Engine Company (SinoAmerican Joint Venture) (FE&SEEEREZ /S M AF), a company that used to be
controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1995 to 1996, and served as the chief director of Chongging Loncin
Transportation and Machinery Factory (B2 EP& &2 3B MER) , a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during
its existence, from 1993 to 1996. He served as the factory director of Chongging City Jiulongpo District Loncin Metal
Factory* (EEM LA EMEEZES B, a company that used to be controlled by Mr. Tu during its existence, from 1991
to 1993 and the factory director of Chongging Cinhua Metals Factory* (EE &Z % B2 %M , from 1984 to 1990.

Mr. Tu graduated from the Economic Management (8BS IR E 2) of the Open College in Chongging City Municipal
Party School (EEHZERKEZRT) in December 1998. Mr. Tu previously acted as the deputy to the 11th, 12th
National People’s Congress, the deputy to the 2nd, 3rd and 4th Chongging Municipal People’s Congress and the
member of the Finance and Economic Affairs Committee of Chongging Municipal People’s Congress. He currently serves
as a Member of the National Committee of the 13th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a Standing
Committee Member of the Executive Committee of the 12th All China Federation of Industry & Commerce (£ T &
B4) , the president of Chongging City Industry and Commerce Federation (&2 ™ T 8#), the President of Chongging
City General Chamber of Commerce (EBEET427®), the president of Chongging City Technology Equipment Industry
Chamber of Commerce (EEMRIEFEERS), the vice president of Chongging City Charity Federation (EEH &=
#88) and the vice president of Chongging City Private Entrepreneurs Confederation (EETRETERME D) .

Mr. Tu is a director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 603766). He also acted as an non-executive director of Hanhua Financial Holding Co., Ltd. (BZESERMDERA

&) from March 2013 to December 2020, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 3903).

*  For identification purpose only {£ 1z 5l
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Mr. Qin Yongming (“Mr. Qin"), aged 59, was appointed as the executive director of the Company, the chairman of the
Board and the chairman of each of the executive committee, the nomination committee, the strategy and investment
committee, and the pricing committee of the Company on 21 March 2023. Mr. Qin is currently a senior executive of the
Group primarily responsible for the management of the Group’s business in Germany. Mr. Qin also holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

He has 35 years' experience and extensive management experience in global manufacturing and recycling industries,
as well as professional experience in corporate operation management, international capital operations, strategic risk
control, financial management, international materials procurement and supplier management. He held a number of
senior leadership positions at LafargeHolcim group, Tianjin Henkel Detergent Co. Ltd., etc. Mr. Qin joined the Group
on 1 June 2016 as executive vice president and was appointed as an executive Director on 30 June 2016. He was re-
designated to chief executive officer of the Company on 24 October 2016 and to the chairman of the Board on 17 July
2017. He ceased to be an executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 16 December 2020.

Mr. Qin graduated from Renmin University of China with a bachelor’s degree in finance and accounting and holds a
Master of Business Administration from the University of Southampton, United Kingdom.
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Mr. Miao Yu (“Mr. Miao”), aged 44, has been an executive director of the Company since 2020. He also serves as a
member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee, the nomination committee, the
remuneration committee and the pricing committee of the Company. He also acts as the president of USUM Investment
Group Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Miao has extensive experience in investment management, corporate finance, financing structure and
implementation. He served as the investment and financing director of China General Consulting and Investment Co.,
Ltd. from 2017 to 2019 and as the senior vice president of Tensant Securities Limited from 2015 to 2017. He was the
vice general manager of Beijing Maosen Capital Management Ltd. from 2012 to 2015.

Mr. Miao holds a Bachelor of Finance degree from Hebei University of Economics and Business in the PRC.
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Mr. Yao Jietian (“Mr. Yao”), aged 30, has been an the executive director of the Company since 2021. He also serves as
a member of each of the executive committee, the strategy and investment committee and the pricing committee of the
Company. He also acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yao joined the Group as an assistant to the chief executive officer of the Company in 2020 and took up an additional
role as a project officer in the Group subsequently. Before joining the Group, he served as a deputy general manager in
Chongging Chen Gong Technology Co., Ltd. in 2019. He also served as an investment analyst in USUM Investment Group
Limited, an intermediate holding company and a controlling shareholder of the Company in 2015.

Mr. Yao has extensive knowledge in the Group’s business, and he is experienced in corporate management and project
management.

Mr. Yao holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from Cardiff University in the United Kingdom and a Master
of Finance degree from The London School of Economics and Political Science in the United Kingdom.
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Mr. Wang Li ("Mr. Wang”), aged 35, has been an executive director of the Company since June 2022. Mr. Wang
is currently the managing director of the Investment and Alternative Asset Management Department of Haitong
International Securities Group Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
665). He is also currently an executive director of Millennium Pacific Group Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8147). Mr. Wang has extensive experience in asset
management, corporate finance and merger and acquisition, corporate actions of listed company and derivatives trading,
and has participated in a number of deals relating to such areas.

Mr. Wang holds a master's degree from Rutgers, the State University of New Jersey, majoring in quantitative finance.
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Mr. Zhang Wei (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 37, was appointed as an executive director and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 21 March 2023. Mr. Zhang is a partner at CCFC Fund and also a funding partner at several family offices
and investment platforms, focusing on renewable energy, new materials, semiconductor and life science sectors. Prior to
that, Mr. Zhang had eight years’ working experience at Credit Suisse, BofA Merrill Lynch and The Royal Bank of Scotland
Group Plc (RBS), with expertise at global capital markets, cross-border mergers and acquisitions, and special situation
investment.

Mr. Zhang holds a bachelor’s degree of Arts from Fudan University.

wRESRE (REE) 37 N B =ZF=B -+ —HEZERRRDPTESRTEES - RELERTFESBA

(L) REKEESHNEBA BRECEETRMREFTANRIGBA  ERER M FER - EaRRETE
BELENRENEECR RELEBERLIEE FREM FBRBERRTTERRTEASELFER  ERARK
BAmG BRERHAB - SBHRKENGHEEEXREE-

REEFHEEBRESZ L 2(-

BoBREEERAT —S-——g&% 31



32

Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BiIJE#{TES

Prof. Li Zhiguo (“Prof. Li”), aged 46, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since 2021. He
also serves as a member of each of the remuneration committee, the audit committee and the nomination committee of
the Company.

Prof. Li has intimate knowledge of strategic management and business mechanism of the PRC, and has extensive
experience in academic research, government policy research and consultation research. Prof. Li held senior positions
at Shanghai Baosight Software Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600845), from 2008 to 2014, including serving as managing director of the research and development center
of the Southwest region, deputy general manager and the secretary of the Southwest region. In 2014, Prof. Li joined
Chongging Wansuo Enterprise Management Consulting Co., Ltd.* (EEHIiREEEEEHNERAE) as the chief
consultant to provide advice on strategic management. Prof. Li then moved to serve as associate professor at the
Chongging Technology and Business University in the PRC since 2018, and was promoted to professor since 2021. He
has also been a researcher specialising in strategic management at the Chongging Technology and Business University
Enterprise Management Research Center* (B T i A2 ZEEEHZTH L) since January 2019.

Prof. Li graduated with a Bachelor of Ferrous Metallurgy degree from Chongging University in the PRC in 1999. He
further obtained a Master of Metallurgical Automation degree, a Doctor of Computer Software and Theory degree and
a Postdoctoral Fellowship in Management Science and Engineering from Chongqing University in the PRC in 2002, 2008
and 2017, respectively.
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Prof. Yan Guowan (“Prof. Yan"), aged 51, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since
March 2022. She also serves as the chairman of the audit committee of the Company and a member of each of the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

Prof. Yan is currently an associate professor in the School of Economics and Business Administration of Chongging
University in the PRC. She is mainly engaged in research on accounting and auditing issues relating to capital market
as well as corporate finance, and lectures on Accounting, Accounting for Government and Non-Profit Organisations,
Advanced Auditing Theory and Practice and other courses for undergraduate and master students. Prior to that, she
served as an officer in the Chongging Real Estate Administration Bureau Yuzhong District Branch* (EE T E#EEIEF
FHE S F) from 1992 to 1995.

Prof. Yan has obtained a Master of Construction Economics and Management degree and a Doctor of Technological
Economics and Management degree from Chongging University in the PRC and is a registered real estate appraiser and
land appraiser in the PRC.

Since August 2021, Prof. Yan has served as an independent director of Chongging Baiya Sanitary Products Co., Ltd., a
company whose shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 003006). Since May 2022, Prof. Yan has
served as an independent director of Loncin Motor Co., Ltd., a company whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603766).
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EFREREEABEE

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 56, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since
March 2022. He also serves as the chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company and a member of each of
the audit committee and the nomination committee of the Company.

He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (PRC) in September 1992 and is currently a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
(PRC). Mr. Szeto is the co-founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in September 1996 and has
served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto & Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan &
Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled
clerk in Messrs. Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992 and then as an assistant
solicitor with the same firm from September 1992 to October 1993.

Since 2017 and 2019 respectively, Mr. Szeto has served as an independent non-executive director of Evergreen Products
Group Limited (stock code: 1962) and Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918), both of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Szeto graduated with a Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong (PRC) in 1989 and
was awarded the postgraduate certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in 1990.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT SR EIEAS

Various businesses and functions of the Company are respectively under the direct responsibilities of the executive
Directors who are regarded as senior management of the Company.

FABBRBEEBRBEDHHATESTEREES RENRA/ETRABZSRERE-
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PIRECIORS” [REPCR

The directors of the Company are pleased to present their report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Period”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance by operating segments for
the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out at in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the Group on
pages 99 to 100 of this annual report 2022 (the “Annual Report”).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out in sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”
and “Management Discussion and Analysis”of this Annual Report
which also form part of this Directors’ Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group has implemented a number of resources conservation
initiatives in its operations and workplaces. It is our strategy to
gradually embed sustainability into our daily management, thus, we will
continue to improve environmental sustainability measures in all our
facilities. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
environmental regulations in PRC and Germany that have a significant
impact on the Group’s business. There were no significant fines and no
non-monetary sanctions for non-compliance with environmental laws
and regulations during the year.

For details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange at www.chihogroup.com and www.hkexnews.hk respectively.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations during the year ended 31 December 2022 that would
have a significant impact on the Group in relation to issues such as
environmental protection, employment and labour practices, operating
practices and the community.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS
AND EMPLOYEES

Maintaining and consolidating its relationship with customers is crucial
to increasing the profits of the Company. When carrying out business
with customers, the Group has adopted various methods to collect and
report their needs and expectations and taken corresponding measures
for improvement. The results of such measures were reviewed and
feedbacks were provided to the customers. The main duties include
conducting customer satisfaction survey by sending out questionnaires
and having regular meetings with major customers to have their
feedbacks, opinions, suggestions, complaints or praises to ensure the
service quality and to make improvement.

The Group’s raw materials are required to be purchased in both
overseas and domestic markets. Maintaining a good relationship with
our scrap metal suppliers is one of the most important tasks in scrap
metal procurement. In addition, the Group continues to secure a group
of quality scrap suppliers by conducting regular evaluations, so as to lay
a solid foundation for the recycling and dismantling production of the
Group.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS
AND EMPLOYEES (continued)

The Group is committed to providing equal employment opportunities
without regard to sex, age or nationality, which is in accordance with
anti-discrimination laws. We endeavor to ensure employees are treated
equally within our welfare system and are provided with effective
channels to freely express and communicate their opinions.

Our Group is committed to maintaining the highest standard of ethical
and responsible conduct when conducting business. A group-wide
Whistle-blowing Policy is in place to deter corruption or any possible
violation of law or company policy and to promote standards of good
corporate practices.

CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL IN THE YEAR

Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”in this Annual Report, there were no contracts of
significance with any member of the Group as the contracting party and
in which any of the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries
possessed direct or indirect material interests, and which were still valid
as at 31 December 2022 or any time during such year and related to
the business of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)

Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 March 2023)

Mr. Miao Yu

Mr. Yao Jietian

Mr. Wang Li (appointed on 10 June 2022)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)

Mr. Zhang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Li Zhiguo
Prof. Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022)

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Miao Yu and Prof. Li Zhiguo shall retire
from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. Mr. Qin
Yongming and Mr. Zhang Wei were appointed as executive Directors
with effect from 21 March 2023. Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the
Articles of Association of the Company, each of them shall hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting and be subject to re-
election at such meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company and shall be subject to re-election as and when required
under the Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the service contract by giving written notice
for termination not exceeding 12 months to either party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of one year
and shall be subject to re-election as and when required under the
Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the service contract by giving written notice for
termination not exceeding 12 months to either party.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and Senior Management are set
out from pages 26 to 34.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY'’S BUSINESS

Saved as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” from pages 41 to 42 in this Annual Report and Note 37
to the consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business (including
those to which the Company’s subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its
parent company was a party) in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of 2022 or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provide that every Director
shall be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
against liabilities (to the extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622)) incurred by him as such Director in the execution of his
duties or otherwise in relation thereto, provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any such Director.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liabilities and costs
associated with defending any proceeding which may be brought
against the Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
which subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTOR'’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Company, its
parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or
any other body corporate.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings, including the maturity profile, currency
and interest rate structure of the Group are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated under, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holding of the shares of the Company (“Shares”).

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. As at 31
December 2022, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$3,186.6 million (2021: HK$3,401.9 million).

DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisations by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$nil (2021: approximately HK$0.4 million).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of
total purchases.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, aggregate sales attributable
to the Group's five largest customers were less than 30% of total
revenue.

None of the Directors or any of their respective close associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the Company'’s business were entered into or subsisted during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company did not
conduct any connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions that are not exempt from the annual reporting requirement
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

As disclosed in the Company's announcements dated 22 January
2020 and 17 June 2020, the Company and Loncin International
Limited (“Loncin International”), a company controlled by Mr. Tu, a
Director and controlling shareholder of the Company, entered into a
new sales framework agreement (the “New Agreement”), pursuant
to which relevant member(s) of the Group would continue to supply
certain non-ferrous metal products to Loncin International for a period
from 22 January 2020 to 31 December 2022 and annual caps of
US$18.8 million, US$35.0 million and US$50.0 million were set for
the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022, respectively. No
transactions contemplated under the New Agreement were conducted
during the year ended 31 December 2022, hence the actual amount of
the transactions for the year ended 31 December 2022 was zero.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

For good corporate governance, the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions have been reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors. The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have confirmed that no transactions contemplated under the New
Agreement were conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022,
and the aforesaid continuing connected transactions taken place in the
previous years have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from (as the case may be)
independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Similarly, for good corporate governance, the Company’s auditor was
engaged to report on the Group's continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The Company’'s auditor has confirmed
that no transactions contemplated under the New Agreement were
conducted during the year ended 31 December 2022, and has issued
an unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this
Annual Report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the auditor's letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.

Apart from the aforesaid continuing connected transactions, the related
party transactions set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements entered into by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2022 did not either fall within the definition of “connected
transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”, or were treated
as de minimis transactions under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules.
The Company confirms that it has complied with applicable disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Directors
(except Mr. Tu Jianhua, details of which are set out below) has interests
in any businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, pursuant to the Listing
Rules:
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EENERNEREE

Mr. Tu Jianhua Chongging USUM Recycling Resources
Development Co., Ltd. (“Chongging

Usum”)*

According to the business scope as registered
with the State Administration For Industry
& Commerce of the PRC, this entity may

Controlling shareholder

engage in, inter alia, recycling, processing,
marketing and sale of recycling resources,
scrap metal related businesses.
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* for identification purposes only

Although the scope of business of Chongging USUM allows it to
engage in businesses that are considered likely to compete with the
business of the Group, Mr. Tu Jianhua reported to the Board that
Chongging USUM is currently mainly engaged in the disintegration of
automobiles and trading of steel scrap in the PRC, which are neither
the same as nor compete with the businesses of the Group. Further,
Chongging USUM has no intention to engage in businesses that
compete with or are likely to compete with the Group’s businesses.

The Board and management team of the Company and Chongging
USUM do not overlap with each other and are independent of each
other. Therefore, the Group is capable of carrying on its businesses
independently of, and at arm’s length from, the businesses of
Chongging USUM in which Mr. Tu Jianhua has declared interests.

* EHEG
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS T IR ER

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short EERFETHAEBREATRG  1HE
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures IR R (B FF T A2 5] K HARE X B BV E 1
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the BERBEPHESREE

Company and Its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the RZZ-__F+_HA=+—H 'BFEKREAQ
Directors and chief executives of the Company (“Chief Executives”) BEBITHAE (EEBTHAEZ)) REQT
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or  SRE/(ERIIBEEE (€& RGBS RS EA)
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of  (IZB&RHEIEEM))) EXVER) FIREH ~ 1HEE
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")) as recorded in the RIPKREHDEAAATIREESRIFER
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352  fI$352& BT FEMNE LM P FrLEE IR
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock 1 _EmIRAIMI SR +FrE 3T AES#ETT
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by — B#H A ZHIZ %P8 (TE#ESFE) B G
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules A S &I FAAIER KA T ¢

(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in Shares: RGBFE :
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
(Note 1)
Total number of LA A TERE
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interested B4 E DL
EEHS 815 HEaiE HAEERNRGER (MF5E1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
TRERELE RREGEE 2 R (fFzE2)
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any specified undertaking of the
Company and Its Associated Corporations (continued)

Long positions in Shares: (continued)

Notes:

(1)

)

Save

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares was 1,605,152,291
Shares.

The 978,383,181 Shares were held by the USUM Investment Group Hong Kong
Limited ("USUMHK"), a company in which Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu") was indirectly
interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Investment Group Limited
("USUM Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single
largest shareholder of USUM Group is Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Holdings"),
with an equity interest in USUM Group of 53.29%. The remaining equity interests
in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27 companies, all of whom are
independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu, and they each hold between
0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin Holdings is 98% owned by
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (“Loncin Group”) and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 978,383,181 Shares as at 31
December 2022. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the

Directors and Chief Executives had any interests or short positions in

the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which

were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)
Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of the
persons in the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in Shares:

RokaumT

BRITEIYF A :

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested G ERIE
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest BFEREREN BAE s
RERTE R B/ #EmtE B 19 48 8 (MI5E1)
USUM Investment Group Beneficial owner 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
Hong Kong Limited
AEEEER (B8 ARAT BmEAA (fFE2)
USUM Investment Group Limited Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
AEREEERNDERAD RREGEE R (MF5E2)
Loncin Holdings Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
EEERARAF NEEGEB 2 #Ea (MF5E2)
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%

BREERARAT

corporations
RERESEEZ#E
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Long positions in Shares: (continued)

Directors’ Report
EFEHRE

R iREE (®)
TERRNARTNR RAARG H1E
HR%E @

Rz E : (@

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company

Total number of (Note 1)
Shares interested LA T] R
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest HE#EN B4 a7
REREEth B tEENE AP 48 & (MI5E1)
Mr. Tu Jianhua Interest in controlled 978,383,181 (Note 2) 60.95%
corporations
TRERELE RREGEE 2 R (MF5E2)
Tai Security Holding Limited Beneficial owner 98,773,990 (Note 3) 6.15%
BEm#EAA (MF5E3)
Good Union Hong Kong Beneficial owner 44,700,000 (Note 4) 2.79%
Investment Limited
EEEEBREARLE BamEAA (fFE4)
Mr. Zhang Mingjie Interest in controlled 143,473,990 (Notes 3 & 4) 8.94%

SRAARSE

Notes:

(1

@)

corporations
REEGEEZ #En

As at 31 December 2022, the total number of issued Shares was 1,605,152,291
Shares.

The 978,383,181 Shares were held by the USUMHK, a company in which Mr. Tu
was indirectly interested. USUMHK is directly wholly owned by USUM Group, a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC. The single largest shareholder of
USUM Group is Loncin Holdings, with an equity interest in USUM Group of 53.29%.
The remaining equity interests in USUM Group are held by 13 individuals and 27
companies, all of whom are independent third parties of Loncin Holdings and Mr. Tu,
and they each hold between 0.29% to 10% equity interests in USUM Group. Loncin
Holdings is 98% owned by Loncin Group and 2% owned by Mr. Tu. Loncin Group
is 98% owned by Mr. Tu; 1% owned by Ms. Tu Jianmin and 1% owned by Ms. Tu
Jianrong, both being sisters of Mr. Tu. USUMHK held 978,383,181 Shares as at 31
December 2022. Therefore, Mr. Tu was deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
USUMHK pursuant to the SFO.

B st

(FftEE3/%4)

RIBEZZHE+ZRB=+—H BRTRHOEHR
#1,605,152,2918& B& 15 ©

978,383,181 KRR M HAIEEBRA  ABE R
A—EHEACEBBEERGZNAT cAESE
HAMEREE2EREA AnEEA—BRS
BRIz BRAT -ABERNRAE—R
RAMEER HamEBNR#EA53.29%
FEEENGTRERZREARIEAR (15
ABIUNREERERTENE=H) FE &%FE
BARATDBFEAEER029%E10% 2K
B-BEZTRDPBREEEMERISK KREE
BEE2% REEERRITEERIS%; HARER
DEIRABRBL T A REENGK DRIES
1% RIBZZF+-"A=+—H AEssHF
5978,383,181R 1% - E It » RIFBH KRG
Bl REEWEAN ABMEBRENRDIES
M o

ESRFERERRARE B FFRK
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EFEHG

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company
(continued)

Long positions in Shares: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(3) The 98,773,990 Shares were held by Tai Security Holding Limited (“Tai Security"”)
as beneficial owner and Tai Security was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang Mingjie (“Mr.
Zhang”) as at 31 December 2022. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested
in the same number of Shares as held by Tai Security pursuant to the SFO.

(4) The 44,700,000 Shares were held by Good Union Hong Kong Investment Limited
("Good Union") as beneficial owner and Good Union was wholly-owned by Mr. Zhang
as at 31 December 2022. Therefore, Mr. Zhang was deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares as held by Good Union pursuant to the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company had
not been notified by any persons who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Details of the emolument policy of the Group are set out in the
paragraph headed “EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY"” in
Management Discussion and Analysis and the paragraph headed
“Remuneration Committee” in the Corporate Governance Report.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION BY
BAND

The remuneration of the Company’s senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out below:

Directors’ Report
EFEHRE

=REEAEZFHMEEE

RBEE_ZE__&#+_HA=+—HILEE"
FREEHREBAEZ FHINEEHIMT :

Number of
individuals
A¥

Remuneration Band: e
HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 078752 1,000,0007% 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7% 1,500,000 75 -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,500,000 1,500,001 522,500,000 75 =
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 2,500,001 7c23,500,00078 75 =
More than HK$3,500,001 3,500,001t E 6

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Except for the litigation mentioned in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section, the Company was not engaged in any litigation or
arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance is known to the Directors to be pending or threatened
against the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report contained in this Annual
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this Annual Report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the Listing Rules throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2022 and as at the date of this Annual
Report.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 268 of this Annual
Report.

ERERSR

bR MEEERT R i) —EIFT L BYsR A5 -
AT R RAEPIERSFER - BT
BEMRANT TEHEERBERRRK
BERRBNERFANRE

tEES
FATRANEB LR ERERARNEER

EERERRS

RTRARGRE
RIBRABFMEESNARIESENTMES
RAFHRFZEFMNRBERATBHHAMA
BHEIE I F+ZRA=+—HILEE
VBEERPAFRBSE ARBE#ERF L
MRUBEBTHTRBARTFRE

hFEMBEE
AEEBEREYBEE EEREERS
R BN A F R E268H -

ERIRREEERAR

—s=——axK 49



Directors’ Report

EFEHG

EVENTS DURING AND AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 30
December 2021, 7 February 2022, 21 March 2022, 22 April 2022, 22
July 2022, 31 October 2022, 18 November 2022, 23 November 2022,
23 December 2022, 19 January 2023, 17 February 2023 and 6 March
2023 in relation to the potential restructuring (the “Restructuring”) of
the Controlling Shareholders (as defined below) under the supervision
of the Fifth Intermediate People’s Court of Chongging City (collectively,
the “Announcements”).

As disclosed in the Announcements, Loncin Group Co., Limited,
Loncin Holdings Co., Limited and USUM Investment Group Limited
(the “Controlling Shareholders”), which are intermediate controlling
shareholders of the Company, and ten other companies related
to the Controlling Shareholders (together with the Controlling
Shareholders, the “Loncin Restructuring Companies”) are in the course
of implementing the Restructuring plan and the joint administrators
of Loncin Restructuring Companies in relation to the Restructuring
will continue to monitor the implementation of the Restructuring
plan. There is uncertainty as to the progress and outcome of the
Restructuring.
there is a risk that the Controlling Shareholders will be declared
bankrupt. In the event that the Restructuring is implemented, the
ultimate beneficial owner of the Controlling Shareholders may be
changed. The Company was informed by the leader of a consortium of

If the Restructuring is not successfully implemented,

investors that will participate in the Restructuring and will invest in and
purchase assets from Loncin Restructuring Companies that, on 2 March
2023, it has obtained a confirmation from the Executive Director of the
Corporate Finance Division of the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong that it will not trigger a mandatory general offer for the
shares of the Company as a result of the Restructuring under Note 8 to
Rule 26.1 of the Code to Takeovers and Mergers.

Given that the Company is not one of the Loncin Restructuring
Companies and is independent from the Controlling Shareholders
in respect of business, personnel, assets and finance, the Board is of
the view that the Restructuring mentioned above currently has no
material adverse impact on the operation and the financial status of the
Company.
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EFEHRE

The Company will closely monitor the subsequent development and AHAT RV TEENEBEEERTE-
effect of the Restructuring. Further announcement(s) will be made by ZAATRKIRIBEEBHMEXZMBERATES
the Company as and when appropriate or required in accordance with £ iRBIR HEHABEEEGANBRE £
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of BENEERFITHERAS -

Hong Kong Limited and/or the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

AUDITORS ZEEm

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December H®HE_Z_-__F#+_B=+—HIEEZi
2022 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public &SRR EHANE S MBI KESS
Accountants, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-  BISEFEFAEZ HENEERTBFEARSG

appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. BRENUFEERBBEEER.
For and on behalf of the Board RREEF

Qin Yongming Z=IKER

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023 58 "2 =F=AZ+hH
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CORRORATEIGOVERNANCERERORI;

EXERBRS

INTRODUCTION

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance. The Company believes that an
effective corporate governance practice is fundamental to enhancing
shareholder value and safeguarding the interests of Shareholders and
other stakeholders. The Board sets appropriate policies and implements
corporate government practices appropriate to the conduct and growth
of the Group’s business. The code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the
“CG Code"”) have been adopted to shape the Company's corporate
governance structure. This corporate governance report describes how
the principles of the CG Code have been applied during the year ended
31 December 2022 under different aspects.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognises the importance of corporate transparency
and accountability and is committed to achieving a high standard of
corporate governance. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Company has complied with all the principles and the applicable
code provisions of the CG code, contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, save and except as the code provision explained below:

C.21

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Mr. Li Linhui was the
chairman of the Board and temporarily performed the responsibilities of
the role of chief executive officer.

The Directors considered that the arrangement would not impair the
balance of power and authority considering the background and
experience of the Directors and the number of independent non-
executive Directors on the Board. Accordingly, the Directors considered
that the temporary deviation from provision C.2.1 of the CG Code was
appropriate in such circumstances.

With effect from 21 March 2023, Mr. Li Linhui has resigned as an
executive Director. He has ceased to be the chairman of the Board and
has ceased to assume the responsibilities of chief executive officer of
the Company. Mr. Qin Yongming has been appointed as an executive
Director and the chairman of the Board. Mr. Zhang Wei has been
appointed as an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company. Given that the roles of chairman of the Board and chief
executive officer are now separate and are no longer performed by
the same individual, as at the date of this annual report, the Company
complies with all the applicable code provisions of the CG Code.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the
Group's corporate governance structure and consider whether any
changes are necessary.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following
specific enquiries made by the Company of all such Directors, that they
had complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this Annual Report,
the Board comprised six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors, whose biographical details are set out in the
“Profile of Directors and Senior Management” section of this Annual
Report, namely:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)

Mr. Miao Yu

Mr. Yao Jietian

Mr. Wang Li

Mr. Zhang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Prof. Li Zhiguo

Prof. Yan Guowan
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

None of the Directors has any personal relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship) with any
other Director or Chief Executive.
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EEEREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is collectively responsible for overseeing the management
of the business and affairs of the Group. The Board meets regularly
to discuss the overall strategies as well as operational and financial
performances of the Group. Certain matters are reserved for decisions
by the Board, including matters relating to: (i) the formulation of
the Group’s overall strategy and directions; (ii) any material conflict
of interest of substantial Shareholders or Directors; (iii) approval of
the Group’s annual results, annual budgets, interim results and other
significant operational and financial transactions; (iv) changes to the
Company's capital structure; and (v) major appointments to the Board.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day management, administration
and operation of the Group and implementation and execution of
policies and strategies decided by the Board to the executive Directors
and management of the Company.

The Board, through its board committees, is also responsible for
performing corporate governance duties including risk management,
internal controls, those under A.2.1 of the CG Code and relevant
compliance issues relating to the business operation of the Group.

The Board reviews and monitors the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior manager; develops,
reviews and monitors the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic
planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the
Group. The Directors collectively bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices

All Directors have been given sufficient time and support to understand
the affairs of the Group and they have full and timely access to all
relevant information regarding the Group’s affairs and have unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the company secretary of the
Company (the "Company Secretary”).
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses in carrying
out their duties and responsibilities.

The Directors may seek

During the year ended 31 December 2022, ten Board meetings,
two general meetings of the Company were held. The meetings
are structured to allow open discussion. At the Board meetings, the
Directors participated in discussing the strategies, operational and
financial performance, corporate governance policy and internal control
of the Group.

Set out below is the attendance of the Directors at the Board and
general meetings held during the year:

EEELRES

EFg (@
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2REFENLRHBERIEUT BAE
EEH BRSHAREEEERSEES
BB RMEN 2 — R ENEEE
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EFHFERAFERTZEFEERERRE
REWERIIEAT

No. of meetings attended/
eligible to attend

BHE/GERLERERY

Regular General
Name of Director Board Meeting Meeting
EEiL THEEEEE BEARE
Executive Directors HTEE
Tu Jianhua R 10/10 22
Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023) EME (K ZEZ=F=ZF-+—HFH) 10/10 212
Miao Yu = 10710 212
Yao Jietian AR 10/10 2
Wang Li (appointed on 10 June 2022) IR WZEZZFENA+HEZE 11 11
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUERTES
Li Zhiguo FEHE 1010 22
Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022) SEE W-E-—FE=FINAESE) 6/6 1/1
Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022) ARGE K CE-——F=HNHESE) 6/6 7
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EEEREE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Board meetings and Board practices (continued)

The Company Secretary or the staff of the company secretarial
department of the Company prepared and kept detailed minutes of
each Board meeting and, within a reasonable time after each meeting,
the draft minutes were circulated to all Directors for comment and the
final and approved version of the minutes were sent to all Directors
for their records. The same practices and procedures as used in the
Board meetings had also been adopted and followed for the Board
committees meetings. All the minutes of the meetings recorded
sufficient details of the matters considered and decision reached are
available for inspection by the Directors at any time.

Notices of Board meetings were given to the Directors at least 14 days
prior to the date of the relevant meeting. Briefing papers were prepared
for all substantive agenda items and were circulated to the Directors
at least 3 days before each Board meeting. The Company Secretary
or the staff of the company secretarial department of the Company is
responsible for providing accurate, timely and clear information to the
Directors prior to the Board meetings so as to ensure that the Directors
are able to make informed decisions regarding the matters to be
discussed in the meeting.

If any of the Directors has a potential conflict of interest in a matter
being considered in the Board meeting, such Director(s) shall abstain
from voting in relation to that particular matter. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest in such matters would
be present at the Board meetings to deal with such conflict of interest
issues.

Access to sufficient information of the Group

The management is committed to providing the Board with appropriate
and sufficient explanation and information of the Group’s affairs
through financial reports, business and operational reports and budget
statements, in a timely manner, to enable them to make informed
decisions.

The Directors are also provided with access to the Group’s management
and Company Secretary at all times to obtain relevant information for
carrying out their duties as Directors of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Independent views and input to the Board

To ensure independent views and input are made available to the
Board, the Board (or through its Board committees) ensures the
following mechanisms are in place and reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of such mechanisms annually:

(1) all Directors should have the required character, integrity,
perspectives, skills, expertise and experience to fulfill their roles
and are encouraged to express their independent views through
Board meetings;

(2)  all Directors are required to declare conflicts of interest (if any) in
their roles as Directors and Directors who have material interests
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum for the relevant Board
resolutions;

(3) the Chairman of the Board meets with independent non-
executive Directors annually without the presence of the executive
Director and non-executive Directors; and

(4) all independent non-executive Directors are required to confirm
in writing on an annual basis their compliance of independence
requirements pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the Reporting Period, Mr. Li Linhui was the chairman of Board
and temporarily performed the responsibilities of the role of chief
executive officer. He was responsible for providing leadership of the
Board and ensuring that all Directors are properly informed on issues
to be discussed at Board meetings. In addition, he was responsible
for ensuring that all Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate,
complete and reliable information in relation to the Group's affairs. He
also encouraged Directors to actively participate in and to make a full
contribution to the Board so that the Board functions effectively and
acts in the best interest of the Company.
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EEEREE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(continued)

In addition, Mr. Li Linhui was responsible for the strategic planning,
administration and management of the business of the Group. He was
also responsible for the formulation and successful implementation
of Group policies and assuming full accountability to the Board for
all operations of the Group. He oversaw the Group's compliance
and internal control matters and maintains an ongoing dialogue
with all Directors to keep them fully informed of all major business
developments and issues. He also focused on strategic planning and
assessment of mergers and acquisitions opportunities for the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
one year and shall be subject to re-election as and when required under
the Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the letters of appointment by giving written
notice for termination not exceeding 12 months to either party. None
of them hold any other offices in the Company or any its subsidiaries or
is interested in any Shares. In the Board meetings and Board committee
meetings held during the year, constructive views and comments are
given by the independent non-executive Directors, who have provided
their independent judgement on the issues relating to the strategy,
performance, conflict of interest and management process of the
Group.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive
Directors a written annual confirmation of his/her independence and
the Board considers all of them, namely Prof. Li Zhiguo, Prof. Yan
Guowan and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting to be independent pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (“Ms. So") was the Company Secretary during
the Reporting Period and she currently serves as a vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external
service provider. Ms. So has a Master of Chinese and Comparative Law
degree from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Leicester (long distance learning
course). Ms. So was an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute
in the United Kingdom and an associate of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute. During the Reporting Period, Mr. Stephen Wong,
Group Senior Finance Director, was the primary contact person of Ms.
So.

The Company Secretary plays an important role in supporting the Board
by ensuring efficient and effective information flow within the Board
and that the Board's policy and procedures are followed.

The Company Secretary has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. The Company Secretary reports to the Board through the
Compliance Director, Chairman and CEO. All Directors may have access
to the advice and services of the Company Secretary who regularly
updates the Board on governance and regulatory matters and facilitates
the induction and professional development of the Directors.

The Company Secretary is also responsible for ensuring the procedures
of the Board meetings are observed and providing the Board with
opinions on matters in relation to the compliance with the procedures
of the Board meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. So had received no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

The Board is fully involved in the selection and appointment of the
Company Secretary.

EEELRES

NE)ME

RSB BNER LT (et &2
EME FRAFECEREER &R A
RAE (—RIMERFSHIER) HIRIABE © &
I HEEBARTMASHEAEILEUERE LT
BARRIBAZTIHEEBET 21 (21
BERR) -HMUTARBARITERLAEEE
EREBATAREABEE -RB|EHE > A
£ B SR 7485 Stephen WongitE B ER &
THFERAEA o

NEMEAREFE I HEEEEZAE
BREFEMEZHERAMNBERI
Mo UM B EEFEHRRKRIERF

NEMERATELABDNEESF - RAFM
EEBOREF TREATHREHIOESTE
BR-FAAESFIERRAAMENEZRR
B AEMEGEHNESSRHEBMES
REEFENRME TEXHEFHA
B REEER

REMETEERREFETERRIEFE
T URERETESEERIEFNFEERER
EFgRMER-

RBEE-_ZE__F#+_-_BA=1+—HLFE"
B TEBER EHRANEI29MEEZET A OR
15/ \EFAERE R Tl o

EEg2HBURANEZRERESER
o

ERIRREEERAR

—s-—x&wR 59



Corporate Governance Report

BOARD COMMITTEES

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has
delegated specific functions to six Board committees,
the Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Strategy and Investment

namely

Committee and the Pricing Committee, details of the composition of
which as at 31 December 2022 are as follows:

EXZETE
EERn A BEEEEE WTEEE B
ZEE RLEEE FNESE WEAR

BELZEeREBEZED) ZEERE  UH
MEEFRTHE EN B "F+-8
=+ —BrAERERESINT -

Strategy and
Executive Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration Investment Pricing

Name of Director Committee Committee Committee Committee Comgﬂg%g Committee’
EEie HiTZEY ERZEE RAEZEY FMzEg REZEE EEZEE
Executive Directors HTESE
Tu Jianhua R M M
Li Linhui (resigned on B (R -F_=F C C C C

21 March 2023) ZE=+—EEE
Miao Yu [ M M M M M
Yao Jietian @E*?ﬁ M M M
Wang Li (appointed on IRW-E_—&F

10 June 2022) NATAEEE)
Independent Non-Executive BIIJEHITEE

Directors
Li Zhiguo FEE M M M
Yan Guowan (appointed on  2ER (K _F__#F C M M

4 March 2022) ZHAHEEE)
Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on  BIESHE (R —F_—# M M C

4 March 2022) ZAMAEZF)
3 C - Chairman & C—XFE

M — Member M-8
# Other members of the Pricing Committee are certain senior management of the  * TEZERHMHERFARNETERERA
Company. 8e

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board established the Executive Committee in 2011 with written
terms of reference, which is responsible for the management and
administration of the business of the Company and any matters which
are within the ordinary course of the Company’'s business under the
control and supervision of the Board and in accordance with the
provisions of the terms of reference of the Executive Committee for
ensuring a high standard of corporate governance and compliance
of the Company. The written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website and the
Company's website.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Corporate Governance Report

i

HITEREE (@)

EERES

Meeting

Role in Executive attended/

Name of committee member Position Committee eligible to attend

ENITREE BHiE/

ZEEHENS Bifi ZHkE RERLEERRY

Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023) Executive Director Chairman 171
EE RZEZZF=HZF—HEF) HITES IR

Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member "
RRE HITES e

Miao Yu Executive Director Member "
HR HITES e

Yao Jietian Executive Director Member "
AK HITES =]

The Board delegated certain corporate governance functions to the BEZCEEEHNITEETETLEXEAH

Executive Committee, which develops and reviews the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and makes
recommendations to the Board; reviews and monitors (i) the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management of the Company; (i) compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; and (iii) the code of conduct and Model Code applicable
to the Directors or employees.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director is provided with information and
a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well
as his/her responsibilities under the relevant statutes, laws, rules and
regulations.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE (continued)

Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(continued)

Development and training of Directors is an ongoing process to ensure
that they can perform their duties appropriately. During the year ended
31 December 2022, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company's performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that they continue to make contribution to the Board in
an informed and relevant manner. The Company updates Directors on
the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The training received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2022 is summarised as follows:

HITEEE (@)
ESENREEEE @)

FABRBIREESERAIEN DIEAREK
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fE MR FEBERNEETSFHNER
ﬁ%ﬁ% FRBARHESRHEER LT
RAREMBREEREZ RERE LU
RIREBTAERZERMNAREE RFEE
ERABR B

BEREHEE_S__FE+-"A=+—HIE
ERNFTES 2 IR T

Directors Types of training
=== IR R
Tu Jianhua TR A, B
Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023) EME (R ZEZ=F=F - +—HFFF) A, B
Miao Yu =R A B
Yao Jietian AR A, B
Wang Li (appointed on 10 June 2022) TE (R ZEZZFNA+HEZE) A, B
Li Zhiguo F=EE A, B
Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022) SEEE (W E - —F=FIHESE) A, B
Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022) BRGIE (R E - —F=AUHESIE) A, B
A attending training session relevant to corporate governance A HE R EAERMZ E

B reading articles relevant to corporate governance, regulatory updates and Directors’ B BT EER RV EERERESHERE

duties and responsibilities
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2010 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Audit Committee in 2015, which has included
changes in line with the amendments to the Listing Rules. The written
terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
has established a whistleblowing policy of the Company in 2012 and
set out the procedures on reporting possible improprieties in financial
reporting matters of the Company.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements of the Company, reviewing the
effectiveness of Company’s internal control (including the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training programs
and budget) and risk management systems as delegated by the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and engagement of the external auditor for the audit and non-audit
services. The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2022 with the attendance of each member as follows:

EEELRES
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Role in Meetings

Audit attended/

Name of committee member Position Committee eligible to attend

EBKERE BHiE/

ZEEMENS Bl ZHkE RERLEERRY

Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022) Independent non-executive Director Chairman 3/3
BER W -E-—FE=HHHAEZT) BUFNTES IR

Li Zhiguo Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
FEE BUFNTES =]

Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022) Independent non-executive Director Member 3/3
BRERE (R E - —EZHIHEST) BUFRTES 3=

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee
reviewed, together with the management, the annual results, interim
results and related announcements including the disclosures, financial
reporting and the accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to
the submission to the Board approval; discussed with management
on significant judgements affecting Group’s consolidated financial
statements and approved the appointment of external auditor; reviewed
and discussed the internal control report; reviewed and assessed the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management; and reviewed and monitored the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit
process.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group on a
going concern basis. The Audit Committee has reviewed the Company’s
annual results and consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022. The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment in annual/
interim reports, price-sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures. Save as disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had engaged the
Group's external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC"), to provide
the following services and their respective fees charged are set out as
below:

BEZE8E (@)
EFTEECUFBREEZEEREME
B ARBKREBEATHRRAEEN
BRN -BRZEEECERERABEZ
T+ ZR=+—HLEFEEZ2FXRA
RigEMBRER - EFTHREREZEERY
FRAPHRES - REFREHAEREM
MBERBRRTE B RE2EZFZ - R
REMBMRMET21MREESN BT
AEEREMFEIBERZEATHEBR
= MEBSEABE R EEERBFEL
BRENRHEARERE

A S GBS
RBEE—Z__F+_RB=+—HILFE"
FEEBARERRKEGSHIER (B
B7kIE)) 7 B INS AL BUAT - PR (H AR TS
RAAEERINT :

2022
g
HK$M
BEBET
Type of services BRFS R R

Audit services Bt AR 17.6
Non-audit services (Note) JEBEETERTE (H152) 3.7
Total 45t 21.3

Note: The non-audit service mainly for advisory and other reporting review services. Kzt . FEBARBEIBABAREMEBPREBRTS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had also engaged
other auditors to provide audit services to certain subsidiaries of the
Group and the aggregated fees charged were HK$1.0 million.

Board’s Responsibilities for the Accounts

The Board is responsible for the preparation of accounts for each
financial period, which gives a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.
In preparing these accounts for the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and has prepared the accounts on a going concern basis.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flow for that period. The Directors consider
that the financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
all appropriate accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable, informed
and prudent judgement of the Board and the management. Save as
disclosed in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have
prepared the consolidated financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control procedures of the Group and nominating and
monitoring external auditors. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules, the chairman of the Audit Committee possesses the
appropriate professional and accounting qualifications.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in 2010 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a set of the revised
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee in 2013. The written
terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the
Stock Exchange's website and the Company’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include:

1. formulating the nomination policy for consideration by the Board
and implement the nomination policy laid down by the Board;

2. reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy; and

3. identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2022 with the attendance of each member as follows:

RBEET (B)
REESENTEHEOE

1. FIERBBRHEEZEER
FERENRBBER

BifE

2. K”%E$ﬁ§$ﬁm SR~ ABA
MERL (BER A MAMAERRTSE) » I
MAERRE S A REEERBEME
HEFSFUNEFIRLES &

3. VEERCBERIBEEIEFERE
AL WHERLEBALTHEE
FURMLEAEFERERER

B EEENEBE S+ -"B=+—
HEFERRET=Xg5 SHELHEE

Name of committee member

ZEEMERS

Position

Rl

maE

Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023)
IWE (R =F=F-+—HEHT)

Li Zhiguo
FEE

Miao Yu
R

Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
BEE (K -F__F=-HIHHEZF

Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022)
BRRE (K —E-—F=HIHEZF)

Executive Director

HITES

Independent non-executive Director
BUFNTES

Executive Director

HITESR

Independent non-executive Director

BUFNTES

Independent non-executive Director

BUFHNTES
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Role in Meetings
Nomination attended/
Committee eligible to attend
ERAZEE BiiE/
2 FERLESERY
Chairman 33
B
Member 33
[53=1
Member 33
[53=1
Member 212
53=1
Member 212
53=1
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the composition, size and
structure of the Board, the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors and re-election of Directors.

In considering the nomination of new Directors, the Company will
propose the candidates to the Nomination Committee, which will
review and make recommendation to the Board on the expertise, skills
and experience of the candidates appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company.

The composition of the Board has a significant element of diversity,
in terms of skills, regional and industry experience, background and
gender.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has established a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) in 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and
maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of
the Board.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board sets measurable objectives to implement the Board Diversity
Policy and reviews such objectives from time to time to ensure their
appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards achieving
those objectives. During 2022, one new female Director (representing
50 per cent of the new independent non-executive Directors) joined
the Board, bringing the female representation to one or about 15 per
cent of the Board. The Board targets to maintain at least the current
level of female representation, with the ultimate goal of achieving
gender parity. The Board will continue to take opportunities to increase
the proportion of female members over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)
Board Diversity Policy (continued)

The Board currently has one female Director and thereby has achieved
gender diversity at the Board level. As at 31 December 2022, the
percentage of male and female in the Company's workforce (including
the Directors and senior management) is 77% and 23%, respectively,
representing a male-to-female ratio of 3.4 to 1. We will continue to
strive to enhance female representation in the workforce and achieve
an appropriate balance of gender diversity according to business needs
and future development. We will also ensure that there is gender
diversity when recruiting staff and are committed to providing career
development opportunities for female staff so that we will have a
pipeline of potential successors to our Board in the future.

The Board will review the implementation and effectiveness of the
Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis in accordance with code
provision B.1.3 of the CG Code.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2010 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on, among other things, the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management of the Company, and the remuneration packages for all
executive Directors and senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic salary,
allowance and discretionary bonus.

Salary adjustments are made where the Remuneration Committee
takes into account performance, contribution and responsibilities of the
individual. Apart from basic salary, executive Directors and employees
are eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account
factors such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’s
performance during the year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of

Corporate Governance Report

EEELRES

#HINEEE (B)

TREBHITEFTARSREEASRFNE

executive Directors and senior management. %o

Remuneration Purpose Reward Policy details

i =]:y) R EM BRFHE

Basic salary To reflect the market value of each Cash payment monthly Reviewed annually with
individual market trend

BN RBREZAB A 2 35 EE BAREMN SERTHBE LR

Allowance To attract and retain employees Reimbursement Market conditions

ARG 5| KikEES e hHIE R

Discretionary
performance bonus

HIBRIREA

The following table shows the breakdown of the Directors’

To motivate employees to deliver
high levels of performance of
the Company and individual
performance goals

HENMEE AR RBEE S KERN
RIBURZERBEARREER

Cash payment

T ANEN

Individual performance and
Company performance

BARRBERAB KRR

TRIREEHE_ S __FE+_-_H=+—

remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2022: HIEFE 2 5N 2 BR4E :
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RAER
g HEREM RATA IR HitEH gt
HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEER BEER BEAT BEET BEAT
(Note (a))
(GEE)
Year Ended 31 December 2022: HE_E-CE+-A=+-HLEEE:
Executive Directors WTES
Tu Jianhua REE = 40 30 = = 7.0
Li Linhui B8 - 28 18 - 0.1 47
Miao Yu 5[] - 0.6 03 = = 09
Yao Jietian AK - 33 18 0.2 0.1 53
Wang Li I - - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Li Zhiguo FEE 0.25 - - - - 0.25
Yan Guowan 2ERE 021 = = = - 021
Szeto Yuk Ting AfEsE 021 - - - - 021

Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company made contributions to the

Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Li Linhui, Mr. Miao
Yu, and Mr. Yao Jietian of HK$18,000, HK$19,500, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000,

respectively.

Mizta: RBE_BE__F+_FB=+—HLEFERN &

NEDBIRFBERE -EMBRE BHREER
WARKRFTEBEBRTIMEATEE/EL HR18,000
HIT 19,5005 7T  18,00038 7T 52 18,0005 7T ©
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee held three meetings. The Remuneration Committee
determined the policy for the remuneration of executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of directors
and assessed the performance of the executive Directors. Members of
the Remuneration Committee and the attendance of each member are

HFIMEET (B)
RBEE_E__F+-"B=+—HILEEE
N HFNEZEgREER=-EgZ FHEE
BETHITES 2B SiESHNE
BEREEEFHHEBEREIZBITESEN
KRB -FNEZETHRERZIREZHEER
wmE

as follows:
Role in Meetings
Remuneration attended/
Name of committee member Position Committee eligible to attend
0 k3 BHE/
ZEEMARSR i 2B AERLEEERY
Szeto Yuk Ting (appointed on 4 March 2022) Independent non-executive Director Chairman 2/2
DR (K —F - £ HHEET) BUFHTES IR
Li Zhiguo Independent non-executive Director Member 313
FEE BUFHTES =]
Miao Yu Executive Director Member 313
[EL HITES =]
Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022) Independent non-executive Director Member 2/2
BER (W -E-—FE=HHAEZT) BUFNTES =]

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Remuneration
Committee has discussed and recommended to the Board for approval
of the Directors’ and senior managements’ remuneration of the Group
for the year of 2022, and the bonus payments to the Directors and
senior management of the Company.
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EEELRES

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

In order to cope with the Group's development needs, enhance
scientific planning and decision-making, promote the effectiveness
of material investment decision-makings and improve the corporate
governance structure of the Group, the Company established the
Strategy and Investment Committee in 2015. The written terms of
reference of the Strategy and Investment Committee have been
subsequently adopted in 2016 and are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal functions and responsibilities of the Strategy and
Investment Committee are to (i) study on the development strategies
and planning; and (ii) advise on the decision-makings on material
investments and capital operation of the Company.

The duties of the Strategy and Investment Committee include the
following aspects:

(i)  to act as a delegate for the Board generally;

(i) to make decisions and pass resolutions, and to exercise all powers
of the Board on all matters of the Company in relation to its daily
operations and investment activities, including any non-connected
transaction if the applicable percentage ratios calculated under
Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules less than 5%; and

(iii)  to make recommendations to the Board concerning matters
of corporate significance not otherwise dealt by any other
committees of the Board, recommendations must be submitted
to the Board for approval in respect of all transactions if the
applicable percentage ratios calculated under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules equal to or are more than 5%.

Notwithstanding that the Strategy and Investment Committee is
entitled to exercise all powers of the Board on all matters of the
Company in relation to its daily operations and investment activities,
recommendations must be submitted to the Board for approval for
all transactions with a percentage ratio equal to or higher than 5%
according to the size test(s) required by the Listing Rules.
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EEEREE

STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, members of the Strategy
and Investment Committee were as follows:

BIRRICEREE (@)

RBE_Z__F+_A=+—HLEE
R BBREEESZSE BN !

Role in

Strategy and

Investment

Name of committee member Position Committee
EHRAKEZSE

ZEEMENE B pA - 115
Tu Jianhua Executive Director Member
R HITES [53=1
Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023) Executive Director Chairman
B (R -E-_=FE=F_+—HFT) HITES IE
Miao Yu Executive Director Member
5 HITES [53=1
Yao Jietian Executive Director Member
PAK HITES [53=1

PRICING COMMITTEE

The Pricing Committee has been established and delegated with the
operations of the Group's policy regarding dealings in metal futures
contracts (the “Policy”). It determines the range of metal futures
contracts that the Group may enter into during the month. On regular
basis, the Pricing Committee reviews the open positions of the Group
and determines (i) the hedging requirements; (ii) the quantity and the
price of the metal futures contracts that the Group is going to long and
short; (iii) the risk management strategy and approach, making sure the
Group has an effective risk monitoring system.

Following a review of the current business operations, internal controls,
risk management and policies and practices regarding dealings in
metal futures contracts of the Group, in 2018, the Board adopted a
commodity price risk hedging policy which has been subsequently
updated to cater for the changing operating conditions of the Group.
The latest commodity price risk hedging policy is available on the
Company's website.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the Pricing Committee
has reviewed the Group's physical stock price and hedging transactions.
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PRICING COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, members of the Pricing
Committee were as follows:

EEELRES

EEBZEE (@
RBEE_E__F+-"B=+—HILEEE
N EEBEZESZHEWNT

Role in
Name of committee member Position Pricing Committee
ZEEMERS Bifi EEBZEEZHAE
Li Linhui (resigned on 21 March 2023) Executive Director Chairman
IHE (R ZEZF=F - +—HEF) HITES *iE
Miao Yu Executive Director Member
R HTES [54=1
Yao Jietian Executive Director Member
PAK HTES [54=1
Udo Langhans Head of Commodity Risk Management Member
BRREEETE BE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility of the Board and management

The Board is responsible for overseeing and ensuring the Group
has established and maintained an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems, including reviewing their
effectiveness whereas management is responsible for the design and
implementation of the risk management and internal control systems.

The Company leverages on the expertise offered by internal and
external professionals to develop its internal control system, which
includes a well-established corporate structure and an organisation with
clearly defined lines of responsibility and authority.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are designed
to assist the Group in meeting its strategic objectives. These systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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EEEREE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Risk Management Framework

The Group has established an Enterprise Risk Management (“ERM")
framework to assist the Group in managing its risks. The Group’s ERM

framework includes the following key elements:

(1)

Risk Identification — A Risk Universe fits for the Group’s business
model has been established. Relevant risks faced by the Group
have been identified and the risks are classified into four types,
namely, strategic, operational, financial reporting and compliance
risk;

Risk Assessment — A Risk Workshop amongst key management
members was conducted to assess and priorities the risks of
the Group. The risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of
their occurrence and the significance of their impact by the key
management of the Group;

Risk Mitigation — A Risk Owner is assigned to each key risk
identified. Each Risk Owner is responsible for the risk assigned.
Risk mitigation actions are tailored and established to address the
risks; and

Risk Monitoring and Reporting — Risk Owner is responsible for
ensuring the risk mitigation plan is executed and implemented
properly by appropriate parties (e.g. with appropriate measures/
adequate policies and procedures in place). Internal Audit
has a role to evaluate and assess if the risk mitigation plans
are designed and operated effectively by management. The
development and the status of the ERM program is reported to
the Audit Committee on a regularly basis.

The implementation of the Group’s ERM framework was assisted by
management, the Group’s Pricing Committee, Strategy and Investment
Committee and Internal Audit Department. These framework and setup
enables the Group to ensure any new and emerging risk relevant to the
Group's operation is promptly identified and managed.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Internal Audit

The Group's Internal Audit Department is to provide independent
assurance to the Board and executive management on the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal controls for the
Group. The Group’s Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-and-control
based audit approach. The annual work plan of the Group’s Internal
Audit Department covers major activities and processes of the Group’s
business units whilst audit plan is reviewed and agreed by the Audit
Committee. In addition to the agreed schedule of work, the Group’s
Internal Audit Department conducts other review and investigative work
as may be required. All audit reports are communicated to the Audit
Committee and key members of executive and senior management.
Audit issues are tracked and followed up for proper implementation,
with progress reported to the Audit Committee, executive and senior
management periodically. The risk management and internal control
system of the Group is reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by
the Executive Directors, and will be further reviewed and assessed at
least once each year by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted an annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2022, covering the
material financial, operational and compliance controls, and considered
the Group's risk management and internal control systems effective and
adequate.

The Audit Committee has also conducted an annual review of the
adequacy of resources, qualifications, experience and training programs
of the Group’s internal audit staff and accounting and financial
reporting staff and considered that the staffing is adequate and the
staffs are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities.

(@ The Board shall be ultimately responsible for ensuring that
adequate and effective systems are present to maintain
compliance with the continuous disclosure obligations of the
Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

(b)  The Board shall delegate the routine oversight of the Company’s
disclosure obligations to the Disclosure Team, which is responsible

for:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

ensuring proper systems and controls are in place to collect,
review and verify potential inside information;

reviewing potential inside information and deciding which
information must be disclosed,;

deciding whether the Company may delay publication of
inside information;

vetting and clearing announcements or other public
disclosures (such as presentation materials for analysts’
meetings);

deciding whether other action, such as the seeking of
suspension of trading pending clarification of uncertainties,
as may be necessary;

keeping proper records of all the information received and
decisions made;

where necessary, engaging financial, legal or other advisers
to assist the Disclosure Team to carry out its duties;

ensuring that employees are educated on the policy and
internal reporting process;

supervising the Company’s compliance with continuous
disclosure obligations; and

establishing periodic financial reporting procedures so that
key financial and operating data is identified and escalated
in a structured and timely manner.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control
Effectiveness (continued)

() The Disclosure Team comprises the following members or their
delegates:

(i) Executive Directors; and

(i) Other members as the Board may designate from time to
time.

As soon as the staff become aware of the potential inside information,
they must immediately report to the compliance department who
will then report to the Responsible Director of the Disclosure Team in
writing. The report (the “Report”) must be sent to the Responsible
Director by hand or email and marked “Private and Confidential” on
the cover. The Report should set out details of the inside information
including:

(@) a general description of the matter;
(b)  the name(s) of the party(ies) involved;
(c)  the relevant date(s) of the event(s) or transaction(s);

(d) the status of the matter (e.g. negotiations still in progress/
preliminary negotiations/final stage);

(e)  the amount and other major term(s) involved; and

(f)  if applicable, the Report should also attach the draft agreement
to be entered into by any member of the Group as well as any
other document which may be of relevance.

Upon receipt of the Report, the Responsible Director shall, forward the
Report with relevant materials to the Disclosure Team. The Disclosure
Team shall then conduct preliminary assessment of the information
received, and after consultation with the relevant professional advisers
of the Company and then report to the Board.
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EEEREE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

Anti-Corruption

The Company has also established policies and systems that promote
and support anti-corruption laws and regulations. We require our
employees to follow our employee manual and code of business
conduct and ethics, which contains internal rules and guidelines
regarding best commercial practice, work ethics, fraud prevention
mechanisms, negligence and corruption. We also carry out on the
job compliance training to our senior management and employees to
maintain a healthy corporate culture and enhance their compliance
perception and responsibility. Our staff can anonymously report any
suspected corrupt incident to the Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
Shareholders” Communication Policy

The Company is committed to pursuing active dialogue with
shareholders as well as to provide timely disclosure of information
concerning the Company’s material developments to its shareholders,
investors and other stakeholders.

Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. All
Directors, the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior management
and external auditor will attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to address Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairmen of the
Board or each Board Committee fail to attend the meeting, then
other members of each Board Committee will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting and answer Shareholders’ inquiries thereat.
All resolutions proposed at general meetings will be voted by poll. The
voting results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.chihogroup.com) on the
same day of the relevant general meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(continued)

Shareholders’ Communication Policy (continued)

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
(www.chihogroup.com), where the latest information and updates on
its business operation and development, corporate governance practice,
contact information of investor relations and other information of the
Company (such as interim and annual reports, notices, circulars and
announcements) are published for the public's access.

The Board has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy as disclosed above during the year
ended 31 December 2022, and is satisfied that it is effective for the
Board to understand the views and opinion of the shareholders through
the available channels.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the Shareholders by
way of cash or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to allow the
Shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at the same
time, to ensure the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company’s decision to declare or to pay any dividends
in the future, and the amount of such dividends will depend upon,
among other things, the current and future operations, financial
condition, liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group,
as well as dividends received from the Company’s subsidiaries and
associates, which in turn will depend on the ability of those subsidiaries
and associates to pay a dividend. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. The
declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is also subject
to any restrictions under the laws of Cayman Islands, the laws of Hong
Kong, the Company’s articles of association and any applicable laws,
rules and regulations.

Whilst this Dividend Policy reflects the Board's current views on the
financial and cash-flow position of the Group, the Board will continue
to review this Dividend Policy from time to time and the Board may
exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify this Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.
There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or paid in any
particular amount for any given period. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that any
dividend will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way obligate
the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time to time.
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EEEREE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Shareholders general enquiries

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited.

Shareholders and the investment community may at any time make a
request for the Company’s information to the extent such information is
publicly available.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time forward enquires to the Board in writing
through the Company Secretary who will direct the enquiries to the
Board for handling. The contact details of the Company Secretary are as
follows:

The Company Secretary

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2587 7799
Email Address: ComSec@chihogroup.com

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the articles of association of the Company
("Articles of Association”), the Listing Rules and the applicable laws
and regulations, Shareholders may convene general meetings of the
Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. One or more Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company (the “Requisitionist(s)”) may require the Board to
convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company (an
"EGM") by depositing a written requisition (the “Requisition”) at
the registered office of the Company at Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and a copy thereof at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Board or
the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General
Meetings (continued)

2.

The Requisition must clearly state the name(s) and shareholding in
the Company of the Requisitionist(s), specify the purposes of the
EGM and the details of the business proposed to be transacted in
the EGM and be signed by the Requisitionist(s) and may consist
of several documents in like form, each signed by one or more of
the Requisitionists.

Upon receipt of the Requisition, the Directors shall verify the
Requisition with the Company’s branch share registrar and upon
this confirmation that the Requisition is proper and in order, shall
forthwith proceed duly to convene the EGM, and such EGM
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the
Requisition.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one (21) days from the date
of the deposit of the Requisition proceed duly to convene the
EGM, the Requisitionist(s), may himself or themselves convene the
EGM in the same manner and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Under the Articles of Association and pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, a notice specifying the time
and place and the general nature of the proposed business to be
transacted at the EGM shall be given to all Shareholders entitled
to attend the EGM for consideration in the following manner:

(i) notice of not less than twenty-one (21) clear days or ten
(10) clear business days, whichever is the longer, if a special
resolution is to be passed at the EGM; and

(i) notice of not less than fourteen (14) clear days or ten (10)
clear business days, whichever is the longer, in all other
cases, provided that an EGM may be called by a shorter
notice if it is so agreed by a majority in number of the
Shareholders having the right to attend and vote at the
EGM, being a majority together holding not less than 95%
in nominal value of the issued shares giving such right.

The notice period is exclusive of (i) the day on which the notice
is served or deemed to be served; and (i) the day on which the

EGM is to be held.
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EEEREE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Make Proposals at
General Meetings

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing
Rules and the applicable laws and regulations, Shareholders may
propose a resolution at general meetings of the Company by following
the "Procedures for Shareholders to Convene General Meetings” to
convene an EGM and propose a resolution to be resolved at that EGM.
Please refer to the document titled “Procedures for Shareholders to
Convene General Meetings” on the Company’s website.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association, the Listing Rules
and the applicable laws and regulations, the Company may from time
to time in general meeting elect any person to be a Director either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an to additional Director by an ordinary
resolution.

1. Shareholder(s) may propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a Director at general meeting in accordance with the
following procedures:

(@ a Shareholder or a group of Shareholders holding not
less than one-tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company may requisition an EGM to propose
the Candidate to be elected as a Director in the manner
provided in “Procedures for Shareholders to Convene
General Meetings”; or

(b)  Election of directors whether by rotation or otherwise in
the place of those retiring would be considered ordinary
business at an annual general meeting of the Company (the
“"AGM") and if the notice of an AGM includes the election
of Directors, any Shareholder may propose the election of
any person as a Director at the AGM;
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director (continued)

1.

(continued)

Provided that, in each case, no Candidate other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by the
Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless:

(i) a notice signed by a Shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such Candidate for election; and

(i) a notice signed by the Candidate of his willingness to be
elected,

shall have been lodged to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 48 Wang Lok Street, Yuen Long
Industrial Estate, Hong Kong within the period of at least seven
(7) days commencing on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting and ending no later than seven (7) days
prior to the date appointed for such general meeting.

In addition, the notice must contain the information as specified
in Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules about the Candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

(i) full name;

(i) age;

(iii)  business and residence addresses;

(iv)  principal occupation or employment;
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EEEREE

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director (continued)

2. (continued)

(v)  experience including (a) other directorships held in the last
three (3) years in public companies the securities of which
are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong (PRC) or
overseas, and (b) the major appointments and professional
qualifications; and

(vi)  interests in Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 576 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the Memorandum and Articles of Association is available on
the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. During the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report,
there was no change in constitutional documents of the Company.
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m&w@m EVENTS OF CEG IN 2022
SRS FZ"F KRG

JANUARY —H

Qishun (Zhejiang) Recycling Technology Co., Ltd. was
officially registered

Qishun (Zhejiang) Recycling Technology Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred
to as
Tiande Metals Company Limited*, both the subsidiaries of the Group,
was registered and established in Lugiao District, Taizhou City on
January 13, 2022. The joint venture planned to invest a total of
RMB380 million in related projects and is committed to the recycling
of end-of-life vehicle ("ELV"), the cascade utilisation of electric vehicle

"Qishun”), jointly invested by Scholz Group and Taizhou Chiho-

("EV") batteries, the recycling of EV batteries, the recycling of waste
metals and the supporting industry chain.

The first phase of the project, including the dismantling and recycling
of 50,000 ELVs and the cascade utilisation of 10,000 tonnes of EV
batteries, helps to promote the comprehensive development of waste
metal recycling and supporting
industry chain. The project is
expected to reduce carbon

emissions by 120,000 tonnes E1 £33 55
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per year, offering about
280 local job vacancies. The
second phase of the project

will achieve the capacity
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Maijor Events of CEG in 2022
ESRMR-FZZEXRER

MARCH =H

Mr. Tu Jianhua made suggestions for development topics
at the two sessions 2022

As a member of the 13th National Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, Mr. Tu Jianhua (“Mr. Tu"),
an executive Director, attended the Two
Sessions in Beijing. He contributed ideas and
suggestions on elevating private enterprises in

_ou

the context of China’s “dual-carbon” goal.

Mr. Tu suggested that the government could
enact more supportive and compulsory laws
and regulations, improve the end-of-life battery
recycling system, explore new business models
such as “Internet plus recycling”, and further strengthen the construction
of battery traceability platforms. He also suggested introducing policies to
encourage battery manufacturers either by themselves or in cooperation
with others to establish comprehensive utilisation enterprises. Mr. Tu
also recommended clarifying the responsibilities of end-of-life battery
recycling entities, enhancing the innovation and practice of comprehensive
utilisation technology of end-of-life batteries, and supporting collaboration
between the industry and academia to develop the recycling industry.

Mr. Tu said that the enterprise will “follow the key points of
China’s policies, promote development and innovation in green
manufacturing”, and “implement the new development concept,
promote transformation and high-quality development”.
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Maijor Events of CEG in 2022
BEalRF-FT_FKXKHE

JUNE 75 A
Chiho ECO Protection Limited was awarded the Green BaaBIRRERATEESBREREE
Event Pledge Participating Organisation fir

Chiho Eco Protection Limited, a subsidiary of the Group in HAEBUNEENFATESHBIERE
Hong Kong, was awarded the Green Event Pledge Participating PRATLETHBFEALENM TR E
Organisation. The commitment to waste reduction was initiated by AEHEEBRFEEN2018FEHE  EEW
the Hong Kong Environmental Protection Department in 2018, which M EEEM CXEEEE  HHESE
aims to appeal to and encourage local enterprises to implement new R BEEH > EATZRZ I EBREN
green initiatives, show their sincerity in waste reduction to motivate = BIEERERK BTN

others and help to set green values as a major social trend.

The Group installed photovoltaic power KERBDMNEMURSE
generation equipment for our operations BrBMNZFERNE
in Hong Kong, Taizhou and Espenhain EL TR RE TR
to improve economic and environmental i PO, ... . B IRE KB HmIMER
benefltsl. At the sarT‘1el time, the Group ST R tﬁﬁzﬂﬁ ; EE# ﬁ‘f\é\i
emphasised the training of employees Green Event Pledge BB T EIREREFERIHE
in energy conservation, consumption Bl @ HAE R e
reduction and emission reduction, and BEREERE ) IRE 2 Re
improved the environmental awareness of mesapRERREAS TEENIRFEH -

all workers by regular education. Chiho ECO Protection Limited
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Maijor Events of CEG in 2022
ESRMR-FZZEXRER

JuLy £R8

Obtained the invention of a system and method of
multistage pyrolysis for recycling EV batteries

On July 4, 2022, a subsidiary of Chiho Environmental Group in China
invented a system and method of multistage pyrolysis for recycling EV
batteries. By the end of 2022, the Group has successively obtained 12
patents, which were authorized by China National Intellectual Property
Administration and evaluated by experts. Other inventions and patents
have entered into the substantive examination stage.
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Maijor Events of CEG in 2022

SEPTEMBER H.HB

Qishun ELV comprehensive utilization project held the
groundbreaking ceremony

On 2 September 2022, the key project of Qishun the End-of-Life
Vehicles (“ELV") Comprehensive Utilization Project (the “Project”)
officially kicked off construction in Lugiao Economic Development Zone,
Taizhou City, Zhejiang Province.

The Project is a benchmark project for the Group and Scholz Group to
jointly explore the waste metal renewable resources market in Mainland
China, and also a key project to actively participate in the “dual
carbon” strategy and high-quality green development. The Project will
fully combine the localization operation experience of the Group and
the global leading technology advantages of ELV recycling of Scholz
Group to contribute to China’s green development.

By the end of 2022, the Project has completed the construction of the
ELV recycling factory and the installation of the equipment, as well as
the basic design, equipment selection and verification experiment of the
EV battery recycling.
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Maijor Events of CEG in 2022
BSRM-OE-Z_FEXERC

NOVEMBER +—A8

Shandong Hongshun Circular Economy Science and
Technology Co., Ltd. secured the qualification of ELV
recycling and dismantling

In November 2022, Shandong Hongshun Circular Economy Science
and Technology Co., Ltd.* (hereinafter referred to as “Hongshun”)
officially secured the qualification of ELV recycling and dismantling by
Department of Commerce of Shandong Province.

Hongshun is jointly invested and funded by Shandong Honggiao Group
and Scholz Group, and fully combines their advantages. Through the
“3+N"” model, the recycling of ELV, aluminum recycling, EV battery
recycling and supporting industry chain, Hongshun aims to establish
a top recycling technology industrial park both in China and in the
world. Hongshun Project is committed to achieve an annual capacity of
100,000 ELVs dismantling, 500,000 tonnes of recycled aluminum, and
50,000 EV batteries processing. A reduction of carbon emissions 1.9
million tonnes per year will be achieved.
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The qualification of ELV recycling and dismantling
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INIDEPENRENT AURITOR'S REPORT

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022

To the Shareholders of Chiho Environmental Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 99 to 267, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2022;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

. the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EBETRE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw your attention to Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial
statements, which states that, as at 31 December 2022, the Group
had total borrowings of HK$1,142.1 million of which HK$1,030.8
million are current borrowings. Included in the current borrowings as
at 31 December 2022 was a secured syndicated term loan with an
outstanding balance of HK$742.4 million fully repayable by 31 March
2023, while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$713.7 million. These conditions, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 2.1.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
over the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described
in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined the matter described below to be the key audit matter to
be communicated in our report.

The key audit matter identified in our audit is related to impairment
assessment of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BB ERE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
FRESEIR

FEEtSEE (@

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BB MARERARES SR

Impairment assessment of goodwill and intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives

BERARRAEAFHZ BT EEZRENE

Refer to notes 2.10, 2.11 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2RGEMERKRMET2.10~2.11 /%17

Majority of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives arose from the acquisition of Scholz Group in
December 2016. The net book amount of goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives of the Group
as at 31 December 2022 was HK$524.4 million and
HK$150.4 million, respectively.
REPHNEERABRRIEAFH BT EESRRE
RZE-—REFTZAURBIERKER 25 BEEEH
B _F+_B=+—HHERAERIERATF
HAzREEENREFEDNA524.488 BT K150.4
BEHBT

Management performed an assessment on impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
as at 31 December 2022 to determine the recoverable
amount using value-in-use calculations. These calculations
used pre-tax cash flow forecast based on the financial
budget covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period were extrapolated using an estimated
long term growth rate.
EEERACHABENER S+ -A=+—H
ZEERARRIGERAEAZBREEETREN G
MEERE et ZstEERLURERFRZHHTE
BERERRARESRAEN AEHB s RENKAMG
STREIERERES

In assessing the appropriateness of the goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives impairment
assessment performed by management, the following audit
procedures have been performed by us:

AL EEEZRERAERIERAFHZENEERE
MLz BB BMBETUTERER :

Understanding and evaluating management’s key controls
over the impairment assessment process;

TRERFHBEERE N RENGBIEARRRIES

Comparing the current year actual cash flows with the
prior year cash flow forecast to assess the reliability of
management's forecast;

HAFEERReAEBR TFERSREBAAETLE
MEHEEEE AN A FEE

Evaluating management’s financial budget and discounted
cash flow forecast by understanding the process by which
they were drawn up, and testing mathematical accuracy of
the underlying calculations;
IZEREBUMBERERERRERERA TRERR
giEr A B E 2 MR ;
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EBETRE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key Audit Matter
RSB B

FEEtEE (@

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN E A MARERRENEE

The assessment required the use of significant
management’s judgements and estimates about future
business performance including revenue growth (sales
volume and metal commodity price forecast), gross profit
margin and discount rate and accordingly, this was an
area of our audit focus.
ZAEBEEEE AR R EBRITIE L ERFE G
oEEREER HEREBEmERTER)  EF=X
RAERZE HitERARMEBEZEOHR 2 —o

Assessing the appropriateness of key assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow forecast for the projected 5 years by
comparing (i) projected sales volume to available production
capacity and historical sales volume, (ii) metal commodity
price forecast to market research and analyst reports, and (iii)
projected gross profit margin to historical profit margin. We
also checked these key assumptions against actual results in
the period subsequent to the year end;
FBLERG)FAREHERTEAERMUTHE (VB
B TR B ISR R AR E 5 K(ii)FERER =
BELEANF MERREFRRRESREBAFMAZ
FTERRZEBEM BRMTHREFELEERABZERE
BomEZEIERR;

Evaluating the discount rate by assessing the cost of capital
of the Group and referencing the cost of capital of other
comparable companies in the industry;

BiEsh SEEZEARME RBETAEMAIHLER
REWNERR A sHIZERE

Testing the mathematical accuracy of allocation of the
impairment losses identified among goodwill and other
assets of the relevant cash generating units; and
ARV HERBE TR E R ERREEEEMANEM
EEZBEND N EERYE &

Evaluating the sensitivity of the Group’s discounted cash
flow forecast by considering downside scenarios against
reasonable possible changes to the key assumptions.
ZRIZRRZEEVIEEFHZITTER Tz EEH
MIRRE R BURE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
judgements and estimates made by management in respect of
the goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
impairment assessment were supportable by available evidence.
RiE LMBETER RMADAEEETHEKREERT
FRFHZBEEERETERAEZ A R EOE
R BB FFo
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBEMRS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EBETRE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B ZBEMRS

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EBETRE

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2023
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QONECLRATED STATEMENT CF FROAT CR 0SS
FeEmR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 HE_Z__F+_A=+—HILFE

2022 2021
== T4
Notes HK$M HK$M
Iz BEAT BEBT
Revenue U&= 5 19,574.3 21,950.4
Cost of sales tHE A 8 (18,366.6) (20,061.9)
Gross profit EF 1,207.7 1,888.5
Other income Hng A 6 74.4 88.9
Other gains, net Hh w258 7 205.9 159.3
Impairments on non-financial assets ~ JFE&RIE ERE 7 (74.3) (29.6)
Reversal of/(Provision for) impairments & &E E R EEE]
on financial assets, net (Bs4%) 3%8 15.9 (32.9)
Distribution and selling expenses DIEMIHERZ 8 (47.1) (59.9)
Administrative expenses TERASZ 8 (927.7) (1,185.8)
454.8 828.5
Finance income ZET N 10 8.3 9.5
Finance costs MR A 10 (195.0) (243.3)
Finance costs, net AT A JF 2R (186.7) (233.8)
Share of post-tax (loss)/profit of FEMLEGE A BIBRIRE (18
an associate vl 18 (1.6) 0.8
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures FE{h & & (b 2 FRTR B HF 18 137.5 288.2
Profit before income tax FRPT1SR AR 404.0 883.7
Income tax expense FriSim~< 11 (166.6) (191.7)
Profit for the year FERm A 237.4 692.0
Profit/(Loss) attributable to: L& B EMSER, (B18)
Shareholders of the Company RABRKRE 264.5 702.0
Non-controlling interests IEER R (27.1) (10.0)
237.4 692.0
Earnings per share attributable to KABREEHFRESKRET]
shareholders of the Company for the  (U&ERBTSIR)
year (expressed in HK$ per share)
Basic earnings per share SRERRF 13 0.16 0.44
Diluted earnings per share SrR#EERT 13 0.16 0.44

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss should be read in  LLARE 1B 50 7 FE EARE MY BIBHSE — HRIAE
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONISOUIPYATED SwaATIMENTT CFF
COMPRIERENISINVE [INKSQMIE

el e

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 HZE_Z__F+_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—EZC B —F
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEERET
Profit for the year ®X@md) 2374 692.0
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hfth2 & (§518) Uz
Item that may be reclassified to B GEE# BB m 2B -
profit or loss:
Currency translation differences on BINEBZERELE
foreign operations (323.9) (313.3)
Items that will not be reclassified to  # T BEH HIEERm
profit or loss: EH
Change in fair value of equity BATESFAREMEE R
investments at fair value through ZRRERE 2 AT EEE)
other comprehensive income (2.6) 4.3
Remeasurements of post- EMTEREEBERRERZ
employment benefit obligations wmANEE 0.8 8.0
Share of other comprehensive EEEERE
income of joint ventures Hh2mEmiis 3.8 1.4
Income tax relating to these items WMZFIEEBRNPMSR = (3.7)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEEEE
for the year, netof tax Mg (32190 o (303.3).
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FRz2mE (518) /IREILEE
for the year (84.5) 388.7
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for U T & A EEERNEE
the year attributable to: (F518) /W Ae%E
Shareholders of the Company PN/NST] S (49.7) 396.3
Non-controlling interests JEIERS R (34.8) (7.6)
(84.5) 388.7

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSCURATED BALANGE SHIEET
SAERERRR

As at 31 December 2022

R_E_"F+"A=+—H

2022 2021
== T4
Notes HK$M HK$M
Iz BEAT BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME- -BEREE 14 2,202.6 2,256.6
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 618.0 701.5
Investment properties WEYE 16 54.3 56.3
Intangible assets mBTEE 17 786.1 848.9
Investments accounted for using the  FREREARZRE
equity method 18 710.7 907.8
Financial assets at fair value through B AFEFABGRZ TREE
profit or loss 19 0.8 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through #ZAFEStAEMEEWRE Z
other comprehensive income EREE 20 84.8 91.3
Other non-current assets HMIERSEE 23 10.8 14.8
Deferred income tax assets EIEFRSMEE 21 52.5 78.9
4,520.6 4,956.9
Current assets MENEE
Inventories EA = 22 1,323.7 1,567.8
Trade, bills and other receivables B 5 EE R HMEWRRRIE 23 1,640.3 2,226.9
Amounts due from related parties & WS Bl B 75 TR I8 37 82.7 66.8
Derivative financial instruments TEEMTA 25 171 31.1
Tax recoverable AI3R[EIFRIE 31.9 17.3
Pledged bank deposits and restricted B IEIRIRITERE
bank deposits ZREBIIRITER 26 52.3 142.4
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEEE 26 713.7 782.3
3,861.7 4,834.6
Assets held for sale FIELEEE 24 190.7 167.0
4,052.4 5,001.6
Total assets BEEMEE 8,573.0 9,958.5
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ExmkaE
Equity attributable to shareholders 75/ ]I 5 FE(L 1
of the Company
Share capital (& 27 16.1 16.1
Other reserves H A 28 6,389.9 6,704.1
Accumulated losses HtEiE (1,581.8) (1,846.3)
4,824.2 4,873.9
Non-controlling interests JEERR 29 (43.5) (14.4)
Total equity g 4,780.7 4,859.5

BERIRREBERAR
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

SFEHEARR

As at 31 December 2022 HR_E__F+_H=+—H
2022 2021
s —E 5
Notes HK$M HK$M
M 5E BEATT BEAT
Non-current liabilities JERENAE
Borrowings EEN 30 111.3 50.8
Lease liabilities HESRE 31 192.1 190.1
Retirement benefit obligations BRIRENEE 32 11.1 18.9
Other payables H A FE I8 33 98.8 106.8
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFRSIRER 21 281.0 305.8
694.3 672.4
Current liabilities mENBE
Trade, bills and other payables B5 ERREHMENRIE 33 1,778.3 2,240.1
Current income tax liabilities BNERFRIS IR Ea & 85.5 254.0
Borrowings ERN 30 1,030.8 1,611.1
Lease liabilities HEaR 31 119.9 1771
Amounts due to related parties & {1 el Bt 75 7R 18 37 68.4 104.9
Derivative financial instruments TEERTA 25 15.1 394
3,098.0 4,426.6
Total liabilities BfREEE 3,792.3 5,099.0
Total equity and liabilities k& EEEE 8,573.0 9,958.5

The consolidated financial statements on pages 99 to 267 were HNREIIE267TEMNEGEEHHTREN _=
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 Z—=F=AZ+hHESEEGEREET
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: BOWMHTIIESAREES .

Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming

REELE KB E
Director Director
EBEE EBEE

'—F

MRS EE S EREEENW N — 5

o

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

i

with the accompanying notes.
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CONEOUIR/AIED SwATIMENTT ©FF
CRANEES N EQUIRNY

HEEmE8R

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 &E-"Z-_"HF+_H=+—HIFE
Attributable to shareholders of the Company

NG e
Other Non-
Share reserves  Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 28) losses Total interests equity
Hiits \ .
e (Ff#3k28) B8 st FERER s
HK§M HK§M HK§M HK§M HK§M HK§M

BEAT BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR

As at 1 January 2021 RZE--%-A-A 16.1 7,009.8 (2,548.3) 44776 (13.4) 4,464.2

Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EKE/ B
Profit/(Loss) for the year FRERH/ (EH8) - - 7020 702.0 (10.0 692.0

Other comprehensive (loss)fincome ~ St 2 (858) / Wiz
Currency translation differences on BN £ ERERE
foreign operations - (315.7) = (315.7) 24 (3133)
Change in the fair value of financial BATEt AEMZE
assets at fair value through other W@ 2 £BIEEZ

comprehensive income, net of NTEZE)

tax NERE - 3.1 - 3.1 - 3.1
Remeasurement of post- BT EREERREA

employment benefit obligations, 2 BFIEE NiHHRE

net of tax - 55 - 55 - 55

Share of other comprehensive B8t Er HthEE
income of joint ventures W - 14 - 14 = 14

Total other comprehensive (loss)/ ~ EREMRE (i) /

income for the year, net of tax WaEE NR[E - (305.7) = (305.7) 24 (303.3)
Total comprehensive (loss)income ~ ERZE (F18) /R BE
for the year, net of tax NiFRE = (305.7) 702.0 3%.3 (7.6) 3887
Transactions with shareholdersin SRR (URE 1) #f72
their capacity as shareholders X5 )
Contributions from non-controlling  JEERER T8
interests - - - - 135 135
Deregistration of a non-wholly FHERETAR
owned subsidiary - - - - (6.9) (6.9)
Total transactions with shareholders SRR (URRS1) €172
in their capadity as shareholders X 7% - - - - 6.6 6.6
As at 31 December 2021 RZB_—%
+-B=+—-H 16.1 6,704.1 (1,846.3) 4.873.9 (14.4) 4,859.5
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FoEDEBnR

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 #HE_ZE__F+_A=+—HL-FE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company

FAFRREN
Other Non-
Share reserves Accumulated controlling Total
capital (Note 28) losses Total interests equity
Hihi s )
f 2 (KtzE28) RithE B JFEEREL Mg
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR BEAR

As at 1 January 2022 RZZZ”F-F-H 16.1 6,704.1 (1,846.3) 4,873.9 (14.4) 4,859.5

Comprehensive income/(loss) 2EWE/ (B9
Profit/(Loss) for the year EREF/ (58) -

264.5 264.5 (27.1) 237.4

Other comprehensive (loss)/income ~ Eti2 & (858) / Wiz
Currency translation differences on 4N £ ERERE
foreign operations - (316.2) - (316.2) (7.7) (323.9)
Change in the fair value of financial #ATEst AEMZE
assets at fair value through other W@ 2 £BIEEZ

comprehensive income, net of ATFELE,
tax kA = (2.6) = (2.6) = (2.6)
Remeasurement of post- B EERERABRR
employment benefit obligations, 2 &FIEE NHHE
net of tax - 0.8 - 0.8 - 0.8
Share of other comprehensive B8 tEr HthEE
income of joint ventures g - 3.8 - 3.8 - 3.8
Total other comprehensive loss FREMZASBER
for the year, net of tax NkiRE - (314.2) - (314.2) (7.7) (321.9)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income X2 (F18) /W@ BE:
for the year, net of tax NiERE - (314.2) 264.5 (49.7) (34.8) (84.5)
Transactions with shareholdersin SRR (URES17) #f72
their capacity as shareholders X% -
Contributions from non-controlling  JEERER T8
interests - - - - 5.7 5.7
Total transactions with shareholders SRR URRS1) €172
in their capadity as shareholders X 74%E - - - - 5.7 5.7
As at 31 December 2022 RIZZZE
+-B=+-H 16.1 6,389.9 (1,581.8) 4,824.2 (43.5) 4,780.7

7N

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read
in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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GONSOUDATED SATIENT OF WS
FeRERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 HE_ZE__F+_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
T HF T
Notes HKS$M HK$M
M 5E BEET BEAT
Cash flows from operating activities & ;EHFFSHEE R
Cash generated from operations KEMPIRE 39 902.9 653.0
Interest paid BNFE (204.2) (210.5)
Tax paid, net B MNIERER (301.8) (36.8)
Net cash generated from REZHRSRERER
operating activities 396.9 405.7
Cash flows from investing activities R EEHFFFHEE R
Purchases of property, BEME -BEMEE
plant and equipment (299.4) (162.7)
Purchases of intangible assets BERTEE (1.0) (2.0)
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEWZ - BE K& EUKR
plant and equipment and right-of- EREEEMEMIE
use assets 39 40.6 66.5
Placement of pledged bank deposits 7 A BIEIFRITER (58.8) (122.1)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits #2EX B X IFEE1T 17X 142.2 116.8
Investments in financial assets BAFEESFARMEEWE
at fair value through other ZEMEBEZRKE
comprehensive income (1.0) (1.0)
Proceeds from disposals of financial ~HEFABRZEMEEK
assets through profit or loss and FAEMEERE 2R/
financial assets through other BEZFISNIE
comprehensive income 3.2 11.6
Investments in joint ventures KREGERE - (29.7)
Proceeds from disposal of joint HESEREZMIINRIE
ventures - 7.0
Dividends received from joint BWEERERE
ventures 72.5 52.7
Other dividends received BUWEME S 5.7 5.0
Proceeds from disposals of assets HERFHEBEEY
held for sale FriS= I8 39 288.6 343.3
Interest received BUF 8 3.7 5.2
Net cash generated from REEHARSRERE
investing activities 196.3 290.6
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeRERER

For the Year Ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZE__F+_A=1+—HIFE

2022 2021
T HF ZET—fF
Notes HKS$M HK$M
B 5F BEET BEAT
Cash flows from financing activities Bt & EEIFF15IRE R
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITERZFIERIE 242.0 459.5
Repayments of bank borrowings BERIBITENR (350.6) (647.7)
Repayments of other borrowings BERAMMER (352.6) (429.1)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEEEARE (176.9) (198.7)
Contributions from non-controlling JFERERAE
interests 5.7 13.5
Payment to non-controlling interests 34432 & F N\ T % A IEEE
upon deregistration of a LA 24 ot 2
non-wholly owned subsidiary LS - (2.9)
Net cash used in financing activities B & ZENFr AR & 358 (632.4) (805.4)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning E# 2R KIS EEIEH
of the year 782.3 913.8
Net decrease in cash and HERBEEEBEEE
cash equivalents B BER (39.2) (109.1)
Exchange differences on cash and cash & MBS HEEBEHZ
equivalents PE =2 (29.4) (22.4)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZHAEKRREEEEE
at end of the year 26 713.7 782.3

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _E¥it4R &3R5 57 & 7% FE B4 BB MY A9 B 5= — (RS
conjunction with the accompanying notes. Eo
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NIOUES 1© nlE CONSOUIRDATED
FINYANKC/AL SwATEMENTS

tx e M H R M sE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chiho Environmental Group Limited (“the Company”) is an
investment holding company. The Company and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) are mainly engaged in the principal
business of resources recycling, involving recycling of mixed
metal, end-of-life vehicle ("ELV"), waste electrical and electronic
equipment (“WEEE"), wasted oil and Zorba in Asia, Europe and
North America. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in Note 41.

The Company is incorporated and registered as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is Loncin Group Co.,
Ltd. (“Loncin Group”), a limited liability company incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"”), and the Company’s
immediate holding company is USUM Investment Group Hong
Kong Limited (“USUMHK"), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability. Loncin Group is 98% owned by Mr. Tu
Jianhua (“Mr. Tu”), an executive director of the Company.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

—RRE R
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BREZERNAE] - ARNBEKREFAT B
FBIAER)) TER M BUMNKRIESE
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SR SRR (Zorba) e HFATME
BEREHME41 0

RABRBEHESEERBANFHASE
EEMRIKEMASEREBRA
8] o HeF it E FE (U5t Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, and financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies.

2.1.1 Going concern basis

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total
borrowings of HK$1,142.1 million of which
HK$1,030.8 million are current borrowings. Included
in the current borrowings as at 31 December 2022
was a secured syndicated term loan (the “Syndicated
Term Loan”) with an outstanding balance of
HK$742.4 million fully repayable by 31 March
2023 (Note 30), while the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$713.7 million.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

The above conditions indicated the existence of a

material uncertainty with respect to going concern.

In view of such circumstance, the Directors have

given careful consideration to the future liquidity

and performance of the Group, taking into account

the potential impact arising from the fluctuation of

metal commodity prices, and its available sources of

financing in order to mitigate the liquidity pressure

and to improve its financial position which include,
but not limited to, the following:

@

(ii)

In January 2023, the Group collected the
disposal proceeds of certain assets and repaid
HK$128.8 million of the Syndicated Term Loan.

On 24 March 2023, the Group has successfully
agreed in writing with the lender of the
Syndicated Term Loan to extend the maturity
date of the remaining loan principal with two
partial repayment instalments of HK$78.1
million and HK$170.2 million on or before 31
March 2023 and 30 June 2023, respectively,
and the remaining principal balance of
HK$390.4 million to be repayable by 30 March
2024. The Group paid the aforesaid first
instalment of HK$78.1 million on 24 March
2023.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Group plans to finance the remaining
repayment instalments of the Syndicated
Term Loan through financial and operational
measures as mentioned in (iv) to (vii) below. The
Group will continue to monitor its compliance
with the undertaking requirements of the
Syndicated Term Loan. The Directors expect the
Group would be in compliance throughout the
remaining term of the Syndicated Term Loan.

The Group is in advance negotiations with
various financial institutions for a new secured
long-term borrowing with a principal amount
of no less than HK$780.9 million. The Group
received two proposed term sheets but has not
entered into any binding agreement with the
financial institutions as of the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements. The
Directors are confident that the new long-term
borrowing will be obtained in due course.

The Group maintains continuous communication
with other banks and the Directors believe that
the existing other borrowings available to the
Group, amounting to approximately HK$399.7
million as at 31 December 2022, will be
successfully renewed with substantially the same
terms upon expiration. See Note 30 for more
details.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

(vi)  The Group continues its efforts to implement
measures in Europe to generate cash flow from
operations including further control capital and
operating expenditures to strength its working
capital.

(vii)  The Group is actively looking for other sources
of financing including other debt or equity
financing to enhance the capital structure and
reduce the overall financing expenses.

The Directors have assessed the Group's cash flow
projection covering a period of not less than twelve
months from 31 December 2022. They are of the
opinion that the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due
within the next twelve months from 31 December
2022. Accordingly, the Directors are satisfied that it
is appropriate to prepare the Group's consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, a material uncertainty
exists as to whether the Group can achieve the plans
and measures described in (iii) to (vii) above. Whether
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
would depend upon:

a. the Group’s ability to continuously comply with
undertaking requirements of the Syndicated
Term Loan;

b.  successfully secure a new long-term borrowing;

C. successfully renew existing borrowings and
banking facilities with substantially the same
terms upon expiration;

d. successfully implement measures in Europe to
generate cash inflow from operations; and

e. secure various sources of financing as and
when required.

Should the Group be unable to continue as a going
concern, adjustments would have to be made to
write down the carrying values of the Group’s assets
to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities, respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been reflected
in these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEARZHBEREEE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 RREE @B
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 A BREHKRINE

(a)  Amended standards, annual improvements and (a) ASIEETER FEEL
accounting guideline EREEES]
The following amended standards, annual XEBEBBERZE
improvements and accounting guideline have —_—_&F#—HB—H%
been adopted by the Group for the first time Z BB EE
for the financial year beginning on or after 1 EBXEMT I K
January 2022: BT R~ FE U

F&stissl !
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions
BEMFREENE 165 AR R EEREEER
(1B5T4%)

HKAS 16 (Amendments) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before

Intended Use

2 ERISB165% (BFTA) MR KRR HERRA Z SRR

HKAS 37 (Amendments) Onerous Contract — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
EEGTERIFEI7R (BET4) BEMEN-—BAONE
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Reference to the Conceptual Framework
EEMBHREERNEINR 5| AR IESR

(BETA)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle
2018-2020 Cycle

EBUBREEN _T—\FE BFEUBRSEN - N\FE_Z_ZTFHAPNFEN
T EFBRBENEENE i

Accounting Guideline 5 (Revised)  Merger Accounting for Common Control Combinations

651 E55 (&E:]) HEEZEREHHNGHE R

The Group also elected to adopt ~ Z<EE B TMEIEIR PR TIER] ©
the following amendments early:

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
single Transaction.

BBEEERE125E (1B5T4) REE-RXZNEEREBNRRELEIRE

The amended standards, annual ~ EXPRIZ &EFTER N FENE R G5 EEBE
improvements and accounting FEMBRZERERIMNEATE BFEAFSHE
guideline listed above did not A RRFEERERTE
have any significant impact on
the amounts recognised in prior
years and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or
future years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEE @
2.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 2.1.2 B BRESHRINE (@)

(continued)

(b)  Amended standards and interpretation to be (b) FFERLBIAENEET
effective Al R 5% FE
The following amendments to existing UTFRBEAZE
standards and interpretation have been issued SRBREERZ
but are not effective for the financial year —“HF—B—HM
beginning on 1 January 2022 and have not 46 B9 B B EE FE 7R R
been applied by the Company: BREM BHKE

NAFIER

Effective for annual
periods beginning on

or after
RUTHEHZ %
HENEERRER
HKAS 1 (Amendments) and Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
(Amendments)
BRAGHENE IR (B1H) & BHBEKE “Z-fF—-BF—H
BERUMHREENBHRES 2T
(CHEN)
HKAS 8 (Amendments) Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EaEElEACHEN) BEHEHNEER “E-f—fF—H
HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
(Amendments)
EEUBREENEVTREES RREHN “Z2=-f—-fF-H
RS ERFE175 (B34
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
EEGHENSET (BITH) REBEIEARBDIIERE “ZmFE-F—H
HKAS 1 (Amendments) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants January 2024
BAGHEFE IR (BTN MEZENIERBEE “ZMmFE—-F—H
HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback January 2024
BERAMBREENF 165 (B]E) ERENNEESR “ZNFE—-B—H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification 1 January 2024
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

BEARESSR (CE-EH) FHRERN2T - BRAHEIREREEERRN —E-_NE—F—H
TEHERNDE

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor  To be determined
(Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture

BEMBRSEAFI0HRK REEHABENRRAE L X/ BNEELEDY BET
BEGERFE285E (1B5T ) P

The above amended standards and M EREBTEA R

interpretation are not expected to have a Z2EFHIAGHR

material impact on the consolidated financial EEMNRSMFR

statements of the Group. REMBATE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 RARARESZGE
accounting
2.2.1 Subsidiaries 2.2.1 FAH

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 FEFRAIRERGE @

accounting (continued)

2.2.2 Separate financial statements 2.2.2 BEEMHERR
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost FRBZHETH UM A
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable BREE AR A BIER
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are B EHEEBMGMA TR
accounted for by the Company on the basis of BEBTHALABREW
dividend received and receivable. T FEUR G B AR ©
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries BWIREFRANEE
is required upon receiving a dividend from these BoMmREBATFTARANR
investments if the dividend exceeds the total i B BRI 2 | W
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period WER AEEBMFRER
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of NEEREEBAETEERS
the investment in the separate financial statements MBEREARKEE S FE
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated E (BiEmSE) NikmE
financial statements of the investee's net assets Al B BRI EETH
including goodwill. BRI e

2.2.3 Associates 2.2.3 BHEAT]
Associates are all entities over which the Group BENREAERHHER
has significant influence but not control or joint BAFE I MEEFIEN
control. This is generally the case where the Group HEZEGIEZFABEBR-
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. —RBERT AEERFE
Investments in associates are accounted for using 20% E50% % ZEH#E o i
the equity method of accounting (Note 2.2.5), after ERBZEERI TN
initially being recognised at cost. AEDB FAEGSES

JENER (B95E2.2.5) ©

2.2.4 Joint arrangements 224 BERHE
The Group's joint arrangements are classified as either REBNEERHEDER
joint operations or joint ventures. The classification BEEBAEERE D
depends on the contractual rights and obligations of FHRFEEREF 268
each investor, rather than the legal structure of the B REE MEEER
joint arrangement. BEZ AR Eo
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BFEFRAIRERGE @
accounting (continued)

2.2.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint
ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method. Interests in joint ventures are
accounted for using the equity method (Note
2.2.5), after initially being recognised at cost in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.2.5 Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHEEEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 FEFRAIRERGE @
accounting (continued)

2.2.5 HEwE (@)

AEREHEBEADRE

2.2.5 Equity method (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group

and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group'’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to shareholders of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 22 BFEFRAIRERGE @
accounting (continued)
2.2.6 Changes in ownership interests (continued) 2.2.6 FREREDES) (B

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its
fair value, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHBEREHEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

23 EBEH

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-
controlling interests in the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event
of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the
present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured,
and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

Business combinations (continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognised directly in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

Where businesses are acquired and fair values of the net
assets of the acquired business are finalised within 12
months of the acquisition date, all fair value adjustments
are recorded with effect from the date of acquisition and
consequently may result in the restatement of previously
reported financial results.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (“CODM"). The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the Executive Committee that makes strategic
decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash
flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges
or are attributable to part of the net investment in a
foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss within
‘other gains, net'.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gain or loss and translation differences on
non-monetary assets such as equities classified as
fair value through other comprehensive income are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2 EBEAREHEBEREE (@

25 SMNEHBE

(a)

(b)

hAEM 2RE
FEBETEERZUH
BREEHUZBEREE
FIEZEZBEERREZE
K (ThEEEK) STE RS
MBRERIDUBTEY]
MATAEABZINER
BRAEEZ2RERE-

R 5 RAGER

HIBBETEMSER
BRI HEEE
HzEXBMEDINES
K- ZERXHEENESR
B URINESHENE
REENERRFEARE
EMEELNERE
B eRm RN -
HEGERRTREH T
NEERFREHPEH
BN BINEBFRE
B—&R 5y > BT RR IR AL o

R W m REIRIN RS E
mARA THEMIR T F 8 T

2%

DUSNE R AT BT EBRIIF
EREEREEATEE
HREXBQRE - ZATE
STENEERGRNIRE
ERFERATEWRDNE
BH—EBO2K-HIN- 3k
EREERER WHRFAE
BATESABRZIRE)
ERAFENEHEEIRD
—E R B ) T IF
EREE MDEREAT
Bt ARMEEREIR
%) NI EZ AN EME
W bR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(9]

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the rate on the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are
repaid, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

Land and buildings
THRIEF

Plant and machinery

B B e 1% 23

Office furniture and equipment
MAERBERERE

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other gains, net’ in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost. Cost includes the costs of construction
of buildings and the costs of plant and machinery. No
provision for depreciation is made on construction-
in-progress until such time as the relevant assets are
completed and ready for intended use. When the assets
concerned are brought into use, the costs are transferred
to other property, plant and equipment and depreciated in
accordance with the policy as stated in Note 2.6.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and
buildings, are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the
Group. Investment property is initially measured at cost,
including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.9 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms
that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or
disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal
group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group retains a non-controlling interest in its former
subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current non-financial assets classified as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and
fair values less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets and right-of-use assets classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

2.10 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated to
each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill
is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken
annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate a potential impairment. The
carrying value of the CGU containing the goodwill is
compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software acquired is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Brand names, patents and licenses

Separately acquired brand names,
licences are shown at historical cost.

patents and
Brand
names, patents and licences acquired in a business
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Certain brand names, patents and
licences which have a finite useful life are carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of certain brand
names, patents and licenses over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 20 years. Certain brand names
have indefinite useful life and carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment
assessment is undertaken annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHBEREHEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (continued) 2.10 B EE (@)

(d) Customers’ relationship and suppliers’
relationship

Customers’ relationship and suppliers’ relationship
acquired in a business combination are recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. The customers’
relationship and suppliers’ relationship which have a
finite useful life are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected life of the customers’ relationship and
suppliers’ relationship of 5 to 20 years.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets not ready to use are not subject to
amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEARZHBEREEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

212 RERHMEMEE

2.12.1 Classification 2121 348
The Group classifies its financial assets in the rEBRBHEEMEESE
following measurement categories: A THEt 2585

° those to be measured subsequently at fair value

e HBEREZEATE(H

(either through other comprehensive income or ERHEME2EWE
through profit or loss); and BB m) sTEM
ETHEE; &

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group's business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

e WBREBEAASE
BEREE-

PERIAEERUEE
THEENEBRELAKER
EREMNELVERME ©

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses HREAFTESFENE
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other B Wa kBB AR
comprehensive income. For investments in equity mIEMEEKE  ER
instruments that are not held for trading, this FERFFEENRETADN
will depend on whether the Group has made an KRE REFTEEERS
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition ERYLERBEFIEHFA
to account for the equity investment at fair value WENEE BRTES
through other comprehensive income. A H fih 2 [ U 2 R AR RE 3R
BARo
The Group reclassifies debt investments when and AEERTRETHEEE

only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

2.12.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the

2122

BEZEEENEBREA
R ZT8ENDEEHR
EO

TR R 48 L FESR
EREESREENRKS
HBIAEREREEEZE

Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial EzBH) ERR -emME
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive ERNBEMEEWRRERESE
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or MEZENE RN CESE
have been transferred and the Group has transferred BEHAEBECHEBBERE

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

BERIRREBERAR

ZABAREB D R i £ [ 3R B
HEAEFESD

B HEER

129



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.12.3 Measurement 2123 5t=

212 KERHEMEHMEE (@

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVPL") are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset.

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in ‘other gains, net’ together
with foreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment
losses are presented as separate line item in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

2.12.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the
Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in ‘other gains, net’ in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are not
reported separately from other changes in fair value.

2.12.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk.

For trade and bills receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach in accordance with HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the receivables
(Note 23(b)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the
date a derivative contract is entered into, and they are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The accounting for subsequent
changes in fair value depends on whether the derivative is
designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature
of the item being hedged. The Group designates certain
derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised assets
or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedges).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEARZHBEREEE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 214 FTESRTE @)

At inception of the hedge relationship, the Group
documents the economic relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, including whether changes
in the fair values of the hedging instruments are expected
to offset changes in the fair value of hedged items. The
Group documents its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions.

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated
in hedge relationships are disclosed in Note 25. The full fair
value of a hedging derivative is classified as a non-current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is more than 12 months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity of the hedged
item is less than 12 months. Trading derivatives are classified
as a current asset or liability.

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, together with any
changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that
are attributable to the hedged risk. The gain or loss relating
to the ineffective portion is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains, net’.

Derivative financial instruments not subject to hedge
accounting

Certain derivative financial instruments do not qualify
for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any
derivative financial instruments that does not qualify
for hedge accounting are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains,
net’ without any adjustment to the hedge items.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHBEREHEE @)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Derivative financial instruments (continued) 214 TEEMTIA (@
Method for assessing effectiveness of hedging BB 5%
The Group assesses whether the hedging relationship AEBE R EHREE B R HB AR
conforms to the hedge effectiveness requirements at the FEHHIRAGRESHE A
inception date of the hedge and the subsequent periods RN B SR AE H FTAE o ¥ [F) B R
continuously. A hedge is regarded as conforming to the ETIESR REBRKREY
hedge effectiveness requirement if all of the following HERTEHHPEREER

conditions are met:

. An economic relationship exists between the hedged . WHHAEBEEREHT A
items and the hedging instruments. EfF E AT RE 7 o

. The effect of credit risk is not dominant in the . WHHIER REAHA T AL
changes in value arising from the economic BREGEENBEEZS
relationship between the hedged items and the o EERBHNEETMG
hedging instruments. FEH o

. The hedge ratio of hedging relationship is equal to . HPRAAENE L &
the ratio between the quantity of actual hedged ENAEBRBRE K
items of the Group and the actual quantity of HAHTEEHERHHET
hedging instruments to hedge them. HANHE A TABSEHE

Zlbo

Where the hedging relationship no longer conforms to the R BN E L RN R A

hedging effectiveness requirement due to hedge ratio, but TEHREHPTERMER BF

the risk management objective for such set of hedging EEIEEZEPHANRKREIE

relationship designated by the Group stays unchanged, BRI EE  NEBEFET

the Group will rebalance the hedging relationship and HHRMRBE TS HEFENY

adjust the quantity of the hedged items or hedging HEGRPREHAEERE P TR

instruments having existed in the hedging relationship to B EETRE  UEH X

make the hedge ratio conform to the hedge effectiveness BN AERMEERK.

requirement again.

Any gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is BRI EL A B el Uk 2 S
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement B RNERGEaEaRANIE
of profit or loss within ‘other gains, net’ without any U =2 RE FEED > M A ¥
adjustment to the hedge items. HEEHE AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEARZHBEREEE @)

POLICIES (continued)

2.15 Inventories 215 8

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods comprises
raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads. It excludes borrowing costs. Cost of
inventories also includes gains and losses on qualifying fair
value hedge in respect of inventories designated as hedged
items. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

2.16 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables are amounts due from customers
for merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade, bills and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

The Group holds trade, bills and other receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows. Accordingly,
trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less loss allowance
(Note 2.12.3).

Trade, bills and other receivables are written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Impairment losses on trade, bills and other receivables are
presented as net impairment losses in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and bank overdrafts.

2.18 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

2.19 Trade and bills payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers.

Trade and bills payables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Borrowings (continued)

2.21

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest expense, finance charges
in respect of borrowings and lease liabilities, and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to
the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs. The exchange gains and losses that are
an adjustment to interest costs include the interest rate
differential between borrowing costs that would be
incurred if the entity had borrowed funds in its functional
currency, and the borrowing costs actually incurred on
foreign currency borrowings. Such amounts are estimated
based on interest rates on similar borrowings in the entity’s
functional currency.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company'’s subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying
assets or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The
Group accounts for such allowances as tax credits,
which means that the allowance reduces income tax
payable and current tax expense. A deferred tax asset
is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are carried
forward as deferred tax assets.

2.23 Employee benefits

2.23.1 Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHBEREHEE @)

POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Employee benefits (continued) 223 EE®/F (&)

2.23.2 Other long-term employee benefit obligations 2232 HttREAESRHEE

The liabilities for long service leave and annual
leave are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. They
are therefore measured as the present value of
expected future payments to be made in respect
of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit
method. Consideration is given to expected future
wage and salary levels, experience of employee
departures and periods of service. Expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the
end of the reporting period of high-quality corporate
bonds with terms and currencies that match,
as closely as possible, the estimated future cash
outflows. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in profit or loss.

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including defined benefit plans and defined
contribution pension plans.

(a)  Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The Group
has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions if the fund does not
hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods. A defined benefit
plan is a pension plan that is not a defined
contribution plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

Typically, defined benefit plans define an
amount of pension benefit that an employee
will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, years of
service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit
pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of plan
assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent certified
actuaries from Heubeck AG and Kélner Spezial
Beratungs-GmbH using the projected unit
credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which
the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the
related pension obligation. In countries where
there is no deep market in such bonds, the
market rates on government bonds are used.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

Pension obligations (continued)

The current service cost of the defined benefit
plan, recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit
obligation results from employee service in the
current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Changes in the present value of the defined
benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service
costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of
plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

Remeasurement arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (continued)

2.23.3 Post-employment obligations (continued)

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations (continued)

For defined contribution plans, the Group
pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever
an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period
are discounted to their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns (if any) and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
goods is transferred to the customers in accordance
with relevant shipping terms, the customers have
full discretion over the goods and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the goods. Delivery occurs when
the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to customers, and either customers have
accepted the products in accordance with the sales
contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or
the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

144 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

2 EAREFHR

224

2.25

BE (&

]
ErERREEENEHMEL
RAENERIMEEERT ; BRI

BEBERN ML UAEERT
R R E W P Fefl 51 > BUBE SR
o BRERMRRELEHRER
Bt o

BHBRARAF X RIBATE
BEMEBNIHREE &
FRRRE R IH Y T EREE
MEREHEA BRI

W bR

WmBERAEREEEBBIE
thiEH & 7 A AR TS B IS IR
RERAFE - Wm i RIEE
MRE WA) RIEHEEA
HERZY-

(@) #HEEm
ﬂ—\—ﬁ /\4:

)5,%1 # EDD%EE%
MiE#B T E|EMKRET
EBERERRERED
E%%L/Uﬁ_ﬂ EEMWPE

EREME BRI
S’EE’JJ—HZ #E#RERRH
ERFRBHESHNERER
7E on A B IR ST B R R EK
rEEEREHBBREARE
W PR B B IR R AR > Bl
BERE.



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

(b)

Sales of goods (continued)

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for the
returns, if any, using the expected value method,
and revenue is only recognised to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. A refund liability (included in trade and
other payables) is recognised for expected returns in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting
period. No element of financing is deemed present
as the sales are made with credit terms that are
consistent with market practice.

A receivable is recognised when control of the goods
is transferred to the customers as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments
exceed the services rendered or products delivered, a
contract liability is recognised.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 BEAZHBEREHEE @)

POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)
(c) Service income

Service income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when a service is
transferred to the customer and the customer obtains
control of that service.

2.26 Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVPL is included in
the net fair value gains/(losses) on these assets.

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Any other interest income is
included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Dividend income 227 REWA
Dividends are received from financial assets measured at REBRAFESABTREA
FVPL and at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as other TESFAEMEEN G 2 EME
income in profit or loss when the right to receive payment BE WUER o ' W R R ) T 1T BRE RS
is established. This applies even if they are paid out of pre- ERRaH M - BIEHET
acquisition profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a B ERTREN AT AR A
recovery of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, B BRIER BERm R R AU E 3
the dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income PDERERAE -FIBERT > WA
if it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However, BHEEATFESAEMEERG
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a AENKERRE BMRENEAM
consequence. 2EUNEMES AT & 5E

REEETRERNR -

2.28 Leases 228 fAE
2.28.1 As the lessor 2281 fEAHTEAAN

A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys HERA—MOHZE HILW

to the lessee in return for a payment, or series of EUNEZESEUN -

payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed HERNEREENET

period of time. MM —EMIEL — R
FRIH

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, EEERELEREM

the asset is included in the balance sheet based on B ZEEREEMES

the nature of the asset. ABEBER

Lease income on operating leases is recognised over KREMBEEENHEERA

the term of the lease on a straight-line basis. REERAUERERE
29 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payment that are based on an
index or a rate;

° amounts expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.

Lease payment to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in the
measurement of the liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued) 228 THE (@)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued) 2282 1EAEFEAN (@

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value in a similar economic environment
with similar terms and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee as
a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing
was received;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-
free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group entity, which does not
have recent third-party financing; and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g.
term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued)

2.28 fAE ()
2.2821EAETEAN (&)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group's estimate of the amount expected to
be payable under a residual value guarantee, or
there is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration
for a lease that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract (“lease modification”) that is not
accounted for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the revised lease
payments and lease term using a revised discount
rate at the effective date of the modification. The
only exceptions are rent concessions that occurred
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph 46B of
HKFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient not to assess
whether the rent concessions are lease modifications,
and recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EAXGHEBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (continued)
2.28.2 As the lessee (continued)

2.28 fAE (&)
2282 1EAATAAN (8

In the consolidated balance sheet, the current portion
of long-term lease liabilities is determined as the
present value of contractual payments that are due to
be settled within twelve months after the reporting
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising
the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease

REEEEEEGRRT K
HREEaERREE DK
EERBRBRESHPETZ
B8R B ERN SRR
&

ERAREERMASE
BIEUTEIE

e MHEBENVWIE

liability; BEE;

0 any lease payments made at or before the . RBEB BN A
commencement date less any lease incentives FRENEFEE T
received; ;o ORE BB EMR

HEEBE;

. any initial direct costs; and . EEIIEEERE ;
&

. restoration costs. o BB A

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life
(Notes 2.6 and 2.10).

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment, vehicles, offices, warehouse and all leases
of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease
term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise
IT equipment and small items of office furniture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

2.30 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group's major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial assets, pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
payables, derivative financial liabilities and borrowings,
etc. Details of the financial instruments by category are
disclosed in Note 34.

The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

(@) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has foreign currency sales,
purchases, trade, bills and other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, trade, bills and other payables,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings
and amounts due from/(to) related parties
which expose the Group to market risk arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group currently does not have a specific
foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management closely monitors its foreign
currency risk exposure and considers any
foreign currency forward contracts should the
need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(1)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

In addition, the Group had entered into several
foreign currency forward contracts with banks
to reduce its exposure to currency fluctuation
risk. The derivatives were not accounted for
under hedge accounting. The Group was
required to estimate the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts at the end
of the reporting period, which therefore also
exposed the Group to foreign exchange risk.

As at 31 December 2022, if Renminbi (“RMB")
had strengthened/weakened by 7% (2021:
5%) against the HK$ with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax profit (2021: pre-tax
profit) for the year would have been HK$24.6
million lower/higher (2021: HK$25.7 million
lower/higher), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB
denominated trade, bills and other payables/
receivables and cash and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

0

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, if Euro (“EUR") had
strengthened/weakened by 8% (2021: 7%)
against the HK$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit (2021: pre-tax profit)
for the year would have been HK$11.8 million
higher/lower (2021: HK$6.8 million higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of EUR denominated
trade, bills and other receivables/payables and
cash and bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2022, if EUR had
strengthened/weakened by 8% (2021: 7%)
against the US$ with all other variables held
constant, pre-tax profit (2021: pre-tax profit)
for the year would have been HK$57.2 million
higher/lower (2021: HK$34.9 million higher/
lower), mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade, bills and other receivables/payables,
borrowings, derivative financial instruments,
amounts due from/to related parties and cash
and bank deposits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3

TREARER (8

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 =RABEZR (@)
(@) Market risk (continued) (a) THIZE (@)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (continued) (i) SIEEEE (B)
The Directors considered the foreign exchange RE T8 E i
risk between HK$ and US$ is minimal as HK$ EERABTHAE
has been linked to USS$. 70 2 fE B9 9 BB R B
TR g3 o
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEEE
The Group's interest rate risk mainly arises from REBWFER R
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable FERBER R
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest BAEmMENER
rate risk. EAERRZTRE
gl EYE 1
Based on the simulations performed, with a RIRFTEITRESE
100 basis points shift in interest rate, the pre- GHZEEH)100EE
tax profit (2021: pre-tax profit) would have a 2o R\ ATRT (2
maximum increase by the following magnitude: T —F  FRAR
) BB KGN0 0EE
mr
2022 2021
T - S
HKS$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
Impact on profit HERFTSRAIAFINFE
before income tax 14.1 6.3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(@) Market risk (continued)

(1)

Price risk

Commodity price risks

The scrap/recycled metal prices are affected
by numerous factors and events that are
beyond the control of the Group. These metal
prices change on a daily basis and can vary
significantly up and down over time. The
factors impacting metal prices include both
broader macro-economic developments and
micro-economic considerations relating more
specifically to the particular metal concerned.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group entered into various commodity futures
to hedge the fair value of scrap/recycled metals.
Certain hedges will be settled in 2023 and the
fair value of such derivatives is disclosed in
Note 25.

All of the metal commodities future contracts
outstanding as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 are designated and qualified as fair value
hedges. Any change in the fair value of the
metal commodities future contracts in relation
to commodity price change will be offset by
corresponding change in the fair value of the
hedged item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk

(@

Risk management

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial
instruments, amounts due from related parties,
trade, bills and other receivables and deposits
with banks and financial institutions. The
carrying amounts of these balances represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets.

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
Management has policies in place to monitor
the exposures to these credit risks on trade,
bills and other receivables on an on-going
basis.

To manage credit risk arising from cash and cash
equivalents, derivative financial instruments and
deposits with banks and financial institutions,
the Group only transacts with reputable and
creditworthy commercial financial institutions
and investment counterparties. Management
does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these financial institutions,
therefore, the expected credit loss for such
financial assets is minimal. The Group has no
policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management (continued)

The Group generally grants credit terms
ranging from 30 to 90 days to customers
upon the approval of management according
to the credit quality of individual customers.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. The Group also
has policies on granting different settlement
methods to different customers to monitor
the credit exposure. The Group measures
expected credit losses and applies lifetime
expected loss allowances for all trade and
bills receivables. As at 31 December 2022,
the Group held trade and bills receivables
amounted to approximately HK$1,328.8 million
(2021: HK$1,830.3 million) and loss allowances
of HK$38.3 million (2021: HK$55.4 million)
has been provided for such trade and bills
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management (continued)

Amounts due from related parties and other
receivables are considered to have low
credit risk. These balances are continuously
monitored by assessing the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account its financial
position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal
or external ratings in accordance with limits set
by the Board. The compliance with credit limit
by customers and counter-parties is regularly
monitored by management.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
concentration of credit risk as 6% and
18% (2021: 6% and 23%) of its total trade
receivables was due from its largest trade
debtors and the five largest trade debtors,
respectively. The five largest trade debtors
have good repayment history and credit quality
with reference to the track records of these
customers under internal assessment by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

- Trade and bills receivables

- Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with banks are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, as all banks are
rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade and bills receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. Details of
the quantification in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk on trade and bills
receivables are set out in Note 23(b).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade and bills receivables (continued)

To measure the ECL, trade and bills receivables
have been grouped based on the settlement
profiles of customers, shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the payment
profiles of sales over a period of 24 months
before 31 December 2022 or 31 December
2021, respectively, and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factor affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the gross domestic
product (“GDP”) and unemployment rate of
the countries in which it sells its goods and
services to be the most relevant factors, and
accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates on
expected changes in these factors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost
include amounts due from related parties and
other receivables (except for prepayments).
Management assesses the credit quality of
the counterparties, taking into account the
historical risk of default and capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of an asset and
whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating

- external credit rating (as far as available)

3 ERAMEIRE @
31 ERAKEZER @)
(b) EERK @)

(i)

BERIRREBERAR

=B ERE (B)
RSN AT ER
Hih SR & E
BREBIHM A ERN
HthemEESR
P& s 8 Bk 75 AR TR e
HAEUGRIRE (FAfY
MIERRSN) - BERE
KERELENR
MRTEARNET
BHREREBN
BENTEHFFH
EEEE-

AEEEEEEY
TR R ER B
B 40 19 T AE M L R
EEREPNEE
FEMESRARE
TREE N o BT

B AERREE
AHREAMELEE
B9 R R 2 ) 4 e
BEHNENRR
ETLER-cEEE
BEURNGENX
FIERIBEIEER L
HEMAL TSR

— REME TR

—  SEERETAR
&ErIae)

—s-—x5K 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)~ Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

- actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower

- significant increases in credit risk on
other financial instruments of the same
borrower

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral supporting the obligation or in
the quality of third-party guarantees or
credit enhancements

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the
Group and changes in the operating
results of the borrower.

Macroeconomic information (such as market
interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as
part of the internal rating model.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)

Regardless of the analysis above, a significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 90 days past due in making a
contractual payment.

A default on a financial asset is when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group. Where loans or receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to
engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due. Where recoveries
are made, these are recognised in consolidated
statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
(continued)
As at 31 December 2022, provision for
impairment on other receivables, excluding
prepayment, amounted approximately to
HK$2.8 million (2021: HK$1.6 million). Other
financial assets at amortised cost are considered
to be of low credit risk primarily because
historically they had no history of default and
the debtors had a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

() Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating
entities of the Group and aggregated by group
finance. Group finance monitors rolling forecasts
of the Group's liquidity requirements to ensure it
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs. Such
forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance
with internal balance sheet ratio targets and, if
applicable external regulatory or legal requirements —
for example, currency restrictions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(o)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 =RABEZR (@)
Liquidity risk (continued) (0 FHEEAR (@
The table below analyses the Group's and the TERAMAEBRAAE]
Company's non-derivative financial liabilities and net- NIETEERBENR TR
settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant EENTESRAE 1L
maturity groupings based on the remaining period Th & ERABRARN EI BRAR B
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity REHEEEBERHES
date. Derivative financial liabilities are included in the AN SR HARET
analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for Do mMTEEMEBEN
an understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The ERERERE T HIRE
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual TN EREE ) B g5t
undiscounted cash flows. ADMAF-ETRARE
NEBASNRMIENIR
EME o
On demand Between Between
or less than 1and3 3 months and Between Over
1 month months 1year 1and5 years 5 years
BERY
DR-BR -Z=fR Z=@RE-%& ik RENE
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
As at 31 December 2022 g
tZA=+-H
Non-derivative EZhkd Al
financial liabilities
Borrowings fam 1,028.6 14 84.9 1323 =
Lease liabilities REEE 10.9 2.7 97.8 176.4 45.0
Trade, bills and other payables % EERAMENZE 1,117.9 370.1 53.2 274 29
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTRENE S FNE 212 257 215 - -
2,178.6 4189 2574 336.1 47.9
As at 31 December 2021 RIZZ-%
+-A=+-H
Non-derivative it eRad
financial liabilities
Borrowings B3 14045 143 200.3 475 -
Lease liahilities fEaR 15.6 311 139.9 1735 514
Trade, bills and other payables ~ B% REREMENTE 1,789.6 115.9 125 183 26
Amounts due to related parties  FEfTBERE VA 748 04 297 = =
3,284.5 161.7 382.4 2393 54.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2022, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$185.4 million (2021: HK$284.5 million). Taking
into account the Group's financial position, the
Directors do not believe that it is probable that
the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe
that such bank borrowings will be repaid within five
years after the reporting date in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. At that time, the aggregate principal and
interest cash outflows of HK$188.8 million (2021:
HK$285.3 million) will be repaid within five year.

The amounts included above for the variable interest
rate instruments are subject to change if changes in
actual interest rates differ to those estimated at the
end of the reporting period.

3.2 Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remained unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities
as disclosed in Notes 30 and 31 and, net of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising capital, various reserves and
accumulated losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
monitor capital on basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated based on total borrowings divided by our total
assets.

The Group's gearing ratio as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 was as follows:

S E M ERIEE

ERIEMGSIE (&)
32 EBAXREE@E

PRE-S-#+-A=1—
AR A REREAES®
IR E AR HE R ELER
BERRER R PNEESE
e L

KEBR 2 _FR-_FT"—
E+"BA=+—HMNEESEL
HMF -

2022 2021

—E-- T —fF

HK$M HK$M

BHEAT BEEAT

Total borrowings BER 1,142.1 1,661.9
Total assets mEE 8,573.0 9,958.5
Gearing ratio BEAGEIE 13.3% 16.7%

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
The Directors also balance the overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share repurchases as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the year ended 31
December 2022.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

Fair value measurements and valuation process

The directors of the Company determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 and 2 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation for financial instruments that are measured at
fair value on a recurring basis. The Directors and the senior
management team work closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques
and inputs to the model.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used
in determining the fair value of various assets and liabilities
are disclosed below.

The following table analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair value as at 31 December 2022 by
level of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels
within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Financial assets/(liabilities)

S E M ERIEE

3 TREAREE @

33

AFEGE (@
AT EFERGERRF (@)

Fair value as at

EHEE/ (B8R RUTHBNATE
31 December 31 December Fair value
2022 2021 hierarchy
—E-C T
+-B=+-B +-B=+-g ATEER
HKSM HK$M
BEAET BEAT
1) Publicly traded metal commodities future contracts classified as (1.9) (1.0) Level 1
derivative financial instruments in the consolidated balance sheet
RRAEEARRTPEANTESRTIAZ A ARRZEBREREE F—1
=
2) Metal commodities future contracts classified as derivative financial 6.1 29.2 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (13.0) (33.1)
RERBEAERRPNEATESRNIAZEBERNESH FH
3) Foreign currency forward contracts classified as derivative financial 11.0 1.9 Level 2
instruments in the consolidated balance sheet (0.2) (5.3)
R EBEARRPAEATESRIAIMNERERGK E4H
4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 0.8 0.8 Level 3
BATEFABRZ SHEE B
5) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 84.8 91.3 Level 3
BRATESAHMEZEKRGE SHEE F=R

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of derivative financial instruments publicly
traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices
at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial
assets held by the Group is the quoted bid commodity
future price. These instruments are included in level 1 and
comprise primarily metal commodities future contracts
publicly traded in the London Metal Exchange.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation process
(continued)

Financial instruments in level 2

The Group’'s metal commodities future contracts
represented the Group’s derivative financial instruments
which are included in level 2. The basis of fair value
measurement and valuation technique of such derivative
financial instruments are par method and taking actively
traded future prices into account.

The Group's foreign currency forward contracts represented
the Group’s derivative financial instruments which are
included in level 2. The basis of fair value measurement and
valuation technique of such derivative financial instruments
are discount cash flow method and present value of the
future cash flows estimated based on forward exchange
rates. The unobservable input is expected future cash flow,
therefore lower cash flow results in lower present value.

Financial instruments in level 3

The Group's equity interests in unlisted entities represented
the Group’s financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which are included in level 3. The
basis of fair value measurement and valuation technique
of such financial assets are discount cash flow method and
present value of the estimated future cash flows of the
investee entities. The unobservable input is expected future
cash flow, therefore lower cash flow results in lower present
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMESIE (@)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 2AFEME @)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AEEFERGERER @&
(continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated RiEaEERBRBEDRNATE
balance sheet: =
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& B B ot
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
B8AT HEAn HEAT HEER
As at 31 December 2022 i
+-R=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BATFEFABGZZ EREE
profit or loss - - 0.8 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFARMZEKGEZ
other comprehensive income EHEE - - 84.8 84.8
Hedging derivatives HHT4E TR
- metal commodities futures -EBEmBE - 6.1 - 6.1
Trading derivatives RBMETR
— foreign currency forwards —HMEEER - 11.0 - 11.0
Liabilities afE
Hedging derivatives HHT4ETA
- metal commodities futures -EBEmBE (1.9) (13.0) - (14.9)
Trading derivatives RBMTETR
— foreign currency forwards — MR = 0.2) = 0.2)
As at 31 December 2021 RIE-_—&
+ZB=+—H
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BAFEFABRZ SHEE
profit or loss - - 0.8 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through ~ BATEFAEMZEKEZ
other comprehensive income EMEE - - 913 91.3
Hedging derivatives HHTETA
- metal commodities futures -sBEREE - 29.2 - 29.2
Trading derivatives XBMETR
— foreign currency forwards —HhtE A - 19 - 19
Liabilities &
Hedging derivatives HHTETAR
- metal commodities futures -¢BERPE (1.0) (33.1) = (34.1)
Trading derivatives RBMETR
— foreign currency forwards — MR = (5.3) = (5.3)
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S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 SREAMSESIE (@)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 QXFEMGE @)
Fair value measurements and valuation process AFEAERGERR (&
(continued)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRFIIEEZZEZZERZE
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2022 and ——H+"B=+—HIEESF
2021: —HRTEMES
Financial Financial
Financial assets at Financial assets at
assets at fair value assets at fair value
fair value through fair value through
through other through other
profit comprehensive profit - comprehensive
or loss income  Total 2022 or loss income Total 2021
BATE BATE
BATE AR BATE AR
iAEEZ  2EKEz ZEZIZE HABRZz  2EM&Ez ZEC-%
EHEE EHEE a% ERMEE EHEE at
HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

FE#tT BEAnT 2 EREn  EEBEx  BEEn  BEER

As at 1 January r-B-H 08 913 92.1 0.9 104.6 105.5
Additions e - 1.0 1.0 - 10 10
Disposals e (32 - (32 - (116) (116)
Fair value gain/(loss) NEERE/ (BB 32 (2.6) 0.6 = 43 43
Currency translation differences ERES - (4.9) (4.9) 0.1 (7.0) VA))
As at 31 December K+ZA=+-H 0.8 84.8 85.6 08 913 92.1
There were no transfers among the three levels during REE_Z_—_ 4 -_F_—%
either of the years ended 31 December 2022 or 2021. +ZA=+—HIFE > =Z@EE
Rz RN EmEER o

The management considers that the carrying amounts BEERA RNEEVMEBERENRN
of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at BBER AT ENSRHEERS
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements FIEBENREmERAE A FENE
approximate their fair values. e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

(a)

Financial assets

The following financial assets are subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements

and similar agreements:

S E M ERIEE

3 ERAMEIRE @
34 RHERMEEREREE

() =HREE

UTEMEEZKH ]
BREIRITHR—PEEER
HER R LUR MR

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial assets  ARNGAEEBERMEN
amounts of liabilities ~presented RLE
recognised et off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2022 assets  balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIBN  REREE
BRDER  CHIER  BRREIN BRERE
KZE-Z£+ZA=+-H EELE BREE SHMEETE EMIR gk 28
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BRAT BRAT BRAT BEAT
Pledged and restricted BEARERE
bank deposits RITER 523 - 523 - 43.0) 93
Cashand cash equivalents ~ BEREESEER 3.7 - 1.7 - 8.1) 705.6
Derivative financial instruments #7458
- Foreign currency forward —— —SMEREIAH
contracts 1.0 - 1.0 - - 1.0
- Metal commodities futre ~ ~2BERBEEH
contracts 6.1 - 6.1 - - 6.1
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S e M ERE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

3 =RARERE
34 EMSMEERSMEE @

(@) Financial assets (continued) (a) =REEGE
Related amounts not net off
Grossamount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised of financial balance sheet
Gross finandial aels  RREREESERNEN
amounts of liabiliies presented EBLE
recognised  net off in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2021 assets  balance sheet  halance sheet instruments received amount
RESEE
BERIBY  RREEE
BRIzR  CEREE  BEREINW ElERE
KZE--%+ZA=+-A EEln BENE SHEESE $BTR iRl e
HK$M HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEET BEET BEET BEAT BEET BEET
Pledged and restricted BRRRZRH
bank deposits ROER 1424 = 142.4 - (124.0) 184
Cash and cash equivalents ~ RE&RFEEERE 7823 - 7823 - 4.6) .
Derivative financial instruments 78T &
- Foreign currency forward ~ —JMEERHRAH
contracts 19 - 19 - - 19
- Metal commodities futre ~ ~£BEREHEH
contracts 29.2 - 292 - - 29.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)
(b) Financial liabilities
The following financial liabilities are subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements:

S E M ERIEE

3 =RARERE
34 ENSMEERSMEE @

(b) ETRER

UTEmMEEZEH 7]
BREIRITHR—PEEER
HER R LUR MR

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount  Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised  of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabilites KRG EEEEERNIN
amounts assets netoff presented il
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2022 liabilities balance sheet balance sheet  instruments received amount
RESEE
BERNRN  REREE
BRAEH CEDEH ARREIN ERERE
KZEZZE+ZB=1+-H BffH BEAT SHMERE $HMIA il B
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BRAT BEAT BEAT BERAT BEAT BEAT
Borrowings B 1,142.1 1,142 - (83.0) 1,099.1
Derivative financial fTE$MIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —SMEREAH
contracts 0.2 0.2 - - 0.2
~ Metal commodities future —% BREREE
contracts =5 14.9 14.9 - (8.1) 6.8
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S e M ERE

ERERER (B
34 EMSMEERSMEE @

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial liabilities (continued) (b) =RHEBEG

Related amounts not net off

Gross amount ~ Net amounts in the consolidated
of recognised ~ of financial balance sheet
Gross financial liabiites ~ KRGAEEEERNRN
amounts  assets net off presented HELE
of recognised in the in the Cash
financial  consolidated  consolidated Financial collateral Net
As at 31 December 2021 liabilities  balance sheet  balance sheet  instruments received amount
REREE
BERIBYN RRREE
BN CHEISE 8EREIN ElERE
RZE_-F+ZRA=1+-H BEQE EELE SRBETE £RMTA EAm B
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEET BEER BEER BEER BEER
Borrowings fam 16619 - 16619 - (124.0) 15379
Derivative financial fTEeMIA
instruments
- Foreign currency forward  —SMEEEIAH
contracts 53 - 53 - - 53
— Metal commodities future —% B RiEH]
contracts =r) 341 = 341 = (4.6) 295
The gross amounts of the recognised financial assets rERGREEEEBRA

and financial liabilities as presented in the Group's
consolidated balance sheet, both of which have been
disclosed in the above tables, are measured as fair
value.

The disclosures set out in the tables above include
commodities futures contracts traded through
brokers, and foreign currency forward/swap contracts
contracted with banks. If a default event (included
but not limited to default payment, liquidation,
bankruptcy or insolvency) occurs, the brokers and the
banks are able to exercise the right to offset against
any favourable contracts and/or the collaterals placed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill and
other assets that have indefinite useful lives have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Notes 2.10 and 2.11. Other assets that are
subject to depreciation and amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amounts of an asset
or a cash-generating unit have been determined based
on value-in-use calculations or its fair value less costs of
disposal, whichever is higher. These calculations require the
use of estimates. The value-in-use calculations primarily use
cash flow projections. Judgement is required to determine
key assumptions adopted in the cash flow projections and
changes to key assumptions can significantly affect these
cash flow projections and therefore the results of the
impairment reviews.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Asset retirement obligations

Various pieces of land was leased by the Group for
operating scrap yards and preparation of the land might be
needed to make it appropriate for operation as scrap yards.

It was the Group's contractual obligation to bring the land
to its original condition as the Group is not the owner of
the land. The Group estimates the expected costs necessary
to dismantle the scrap yards by assessing the discount rate
as well as expected increment in future cost which might
lead to changes in the provisions recognised.

Estimation of provision for impairment of
receivables

The loss allowances for receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the allowances calculation,
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying values of receivables
and the impairment loss on receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have changed.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain, such as
deductibility of compensation payments to customers.
The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

180 CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

4 SBEEsHEERFIE (&)

(b)

(0

(d)

BERERE
FEBREAZELIMEERR T
5 AILHBER I MITERES
EEER TS

MR LRI I MAYEE
It ARERAGNERRR LR
ERFR -AEEBBTHHIRE
KRR P AR B B SR B e
BYR IR AL A G 18 - BB EE
TG BB fhET Rl o

PR R TR B B e = (i =t

FEWR IR B EHTHIRRARE
MR RFARERERNVERRE
R-AEBEAEFHZTRRNE
BERESEEARER RELX
EENSRESHARNELEES
B IRAHRURATE MG
sHEH i - EFRHIAE B R IA
5T > 22 F = RA 5L B RN
TERAREE > M REWRIE R B
BN BRI E BENENFERE

o

BPHA R IEIEFR1S TR
FEBAEGNZEE ARG
B0 - B E tt R A FTIS 10 B
BRBEFLEAAEG -FES
HLURTERKRIRIBIIRZ 7 MEHE
7% IS F &R BIREER
AIHIMEE - AEBBBRMLFE
BHEEIMIRE MR TRAIR
BEEZEENEE -HZEEE
MREMNBERARVTIROE
BrRE ARMERRSEREFEY
B BIRTE R BRI EA KR AE PRAS
MEEKRERE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

(e)

()

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimates, such difference will impact the
recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax in the
period in which such estimates are changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
cost to completion and selling expenses. Management of
the Group reviews the inventories listing on a category-
by-category basis at the end of the reporting period, and
assesses whether the cost of the finished products will
exceed their net realisable value. Management estimates
the net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest resale value and quoted prices on applicable
commodity exchanges. If the market price of inventories
is to decline, additional write down may be required.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value of derivatives and other financial
assets

The fair value of financial instruments and other financial
assets (including embedded derivative components of
convertible bonds and options over shares in joint ventures
to joint venture partners, if any) that are not traded in an
active market is determined by using appropriate valuation
techniques and making assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date.

The fair value of options over shares of non-listed entities
are determined using discounted cash-flow method, which
requires the determination of an appropriate discount rate
as well as assumptions regarding the cash-flow projections.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(9)

(h)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges
for its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
by reference to the estimated periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use of
these assets. These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets of similar nature
and functions. Management will adjust useful lives as
appropriate.

The Group periodically reassesses the useful lives of its
property, plant and equipment, taking into consideration
past usage and performance, prior repair and maintenance
efforts, current physical and operating conditions of these
assets, industry practices as well as future usage plans.
Periodic review could result in a change in useful lives and
therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in the
future periods.

Determination of the lease term

In determining the lease term, management considers
all facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise an extension option, or not exercise a
termination option. Extension options (or not periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term
if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended (or not
terminated). The assessment is reviewed when a significant
event or a significant change in circumstances occurs which
affects this assessment and that is within the control of the
leasee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue mainly represents the amounts received or
receivable for the sales of recycled scraps and wastes, net of sales
related taxes, during the year. The Group derives revenue mainly
from transfer of these goods at a point in time.

The Group's CODM, which has been identified as the Executive
Committee that makes strategic decisions, assesses the Group's
performance from geographic perspective and has identified
three reportable segments of its business: Asia, Europe and
North America. The operating segments are assessed based on
the measure of segment profit. This measurement basis excludes
the effects of non-operating gains/losses, such as impairments
on non-financial assets, fair value gain/loss on trading derivative
financial instruments, and gain/loss on disposals of assets held
for sale, joint ventures, property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets. The measure also excludes
centralised costs such as the Group’s key managements’
remunerations and other central administrative expenses. Finance
income, finance costs, income tax expenses and those unallocated
income and expenses are not included in the result for each
operating segment that is reviewed by the Group’s CODM. Inter-
segment sales are charged at prevailing market price.

Total segment assets exclude deferred income tax assets, tax
recoverable, derivative financial instruments and cash and cash
equivalents which are managed centrally. Information relating
to segment liabilities is not disclosed as such information is not
regularly reported to the CODM.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following table presents revenue and segment profit
information regarding the Group’s reportable segments for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, respectively:

5 ﬁ ﬁB ﬁ*‘l’ (n\E)
TRAOMNSEIERMAERGHE _Z
——ER-E-—#+-A=+—8
IFFER 2D EPHY UL R K BB E F)

NEK :
For the year ended
HENTEHLEE
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZBICETIREt-H B -#+IR=+-A
North North
Asia  Europe  America Unallocated Total Asia furope  America  Unallocated Total

i I ) - Bt il o RN R0E A3t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
EB%n AEdn AEEn ABRn ABEn GEEr EREn  BREL  BEET  BEERD

Revenue I

Total segment revenue il et 17811 178414 357 - 196642 21308  19150.0 10124 - 22932

Inter-seqment sales HEERE (39) (86.0) - - (89.9) 19 (3275 (134) - 309
Brternal sales BE 17832 17,7554 357 - 195743 21289 188225 9990 - 219504
Seqment (loss)fprofit A ER) /ER (1040) 7078 (17.9) 48 590.7 189 9940 1823 ) AN
Finance income HBUA 83 95
Finance costs IR (195.0) (2433)
Profit before income tax I 4040 8837
Income tax expense FiEhRE (166.6) (191.7)
Profit for the year EREE 814 692.0
Depreciation and amortisation expenses &R &HE: (693)  (114) 05 (161 (333  (21)  (074) (89) (181) (406
Fair value gain on trading derivatie ~ RBIEGTESHTIRZATE

financia instruments (Note) s () - - - 15.7 15.7 = = = 32 32
Fair value gainfloss) on financial assets  BATEFABRZ $BEE

atfair value through profit or loss 2ATENE/ (B8 - 32 - - 32 05) = = = (05)
Loss on disposals of property, plant and ~ HEWE BERZERER

equipment and right-of-use assets BEEZER 18 115 - - 33 = = = (39 (29
Gain on disposals and deregistration ~ HERFHFATTAELE

of subsidiaries or joint ventures b - - - - - - - - 10 10
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale  (HERfEHEBEZ A 827 740 - - 157 - - = 1131 1131
Provision for impairments on property, 1% FERREURERE

plant and equipment and right-o-use ~ EEZHEEE

assets - - - (1.0) (1.0) - - - (13) (13)
Provision for impairment on investments & EAB (%7 RERRE

in joint ventures (12.0) (613) - - (133) - - - (13) (13)
Provision for impairments on intangible &% 2 B

assets - - - - - - - - (210 21.0)

Note: The fair value gain on trading derivative financial instruments for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 represented the fair value gain related to
those trading derivative financial instruments that were not subject to hedge
accounting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets

Reconciliation of segment assets to total assets as at 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2021 are provided as follows:

AEER (&R
HEWEE

A—EB-—F+-A=+—BAR_-Z
_—H+ZA=+—HoHEEHRE

ERENHRWT
As at
1
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
Z¥--#+ZA=1+-H “F—#+°A=1-H
North North

Asia  Europe  America Total Asia Europe  America Total
i Bl J6EM izt bl B J6EM st
HKSM HK$SM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BERAT BE8An GEAn FREAT @EErT BSEEn B8En BEEn
Segment assets PHEE 13376 62735 1467 7,518 17390  7,069.9 200 9,0489
Deferred income tax assets BiEmEHER 525 789
Tax recoverable TREHRE 319 17.3
Derivative financial instruments {74 4RI E 171 311
Cash and cash equivalents BERBRESEES 7137 7823
Total assets BEBE 8,573.0 9,958.5

Geographical information HEER

Non-current assets, other than financial instruments and deferred
income tax assets, are analysed by geographic regions as follows:

FERBEENBREM T BRIEIERR
BREE  HMEDFINT :

As at
7

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E2-C B4
+Z-“A=+—H +ZA=+—H
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Asia EEDN 604.2 716.8
Europe B 3,774.2 3,865.4
North America 6= - 194.7
Total 4ast 4,378.4 4,776.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5 REER @)
Analysis of revenue by category HEBEN D EZ WS D
For the year ended
HEUTHHLEEE
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
== —E_—fF
+ZA=+—H +-A=+—H
HK$M HK$M
BEET BE&AT
Metal recycling FEOU

— Ferrous metal —EOEE 12,624.8 14,136.9

— Non-ferrous metal -EBEE 6,272.7 7,142.8
Forging and foundry IS K i8S 86.2 67.6
Others Hih 590.6 603.1
Total 4t 19,574.3 21,950.4
Information about major customers FEERNER
No single customer contributed 10% or more to the Group's RBEEZE__HFRIZE"—F+Z
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. B=+—HILEE IEBE—XKFEH

BAAEEWER10% M Lo
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HUgA
2022 2021
T HE T
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ETT
Rental income for short-term HAREHEREWA

operating leases 7.7 13.4
Rental income from investment properties & &£ W A (F=E16)

(Note 16) 13.3 15.5
Government grants/subsidies BRT BN, FE RS 4.3 3.4
Dividend income g S WA 5.7 5.0
Other income from related parties R 2 B B 5 B EL A O

(Note 37(a)) (M45¥37(a)) 5.3 6.2
Compensation from insurance coverage REEfEE 19.1 15.0
Tax subsidies received B U R U 43 B 8.1 22.5
Service income ARFEULA 2.8 3.0
Others Hith 8.1 49

74.4 88.9
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OTHER GAINS, NET

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

2022 2021
- —E—F
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEATT
Gain/(Loss) on fair value change of: N EEENE, S (B8
— trading derivative financial instruments ~ — @B BETEH B E =t EEMN
not subject to hedge accounting REMETEEMTA 15.7 3.2
— financial assets at fair value through —BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss (Note 19) EREE (5E19) 3.2 (0.5)
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains, net ER (518) W& 35 (15.1) 29.2
Gain/(Loss) on disposals of property, plant  HEYZ 5 K& B KR E B
and equipment and right-of-use assets EEZ W, (518) 35.3 (32.9)
Gain on disposals and deregistration HERFHFRAIHGEBE
of subsidiaries or joint ventures Z Wz - 11.0
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HEFELEEE NG
(Note 24) (Py5E24) 156.7 113.1
Impairments on non-financial assets: FFERMEERE !
— provision for impairments on property, —ME - -BEREEZRE
plant and equipment (Note 14) BB (sE14) (1.0) (1.3)
— provision for impairment —RKEGERE S
on investments in joint ventures HEEE (73.3) (7.3)
— provision for impairments on intangible ~ —EFEE Z B EEH
assets (Note 17) (FF5E17) = (21.0)
Paycheck Protection Program loan TEREFE GRS
forgiveness - 40.2
Others HAth 10.1 (4.0)
131.6 129.7

ESRFERERRARE B FFRK
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S e M ERE

8

EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 BMHIDZHEX

2022 2021
= —E—F
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ATT
Changes in inventories of work-in-progress 8 R R B RF & 2 B H)
and finished goods 177.4 (79.4)
Raw materials and consumables used B AR L Ko JE FE 16,005.2 17,639.0
Provision for impairments on inventories,  F&ERERE FEE (fs£22)
net (Note 22) 33.6 31.3
Freight cost EH 780.8 883.5
Utilities and waste disposal cost KB E KREYRIEMR A 395.5 438.7
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) BERFIB (f519) 975.6 1,111.0
Depreciation and amortisation expenses of ¥ -MWEKHZH BEEE
property, plant and equipment, FTREBEEMEENE .
intangible assets, right-of-use assets T M H R S
and investment properties 363.3 406.7
Legal and professional expenses FEREERE 32.3 175.0
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 24 Bl 7 B
— audit services —IZHARTS 18.6 19.2
— non-audit services —IEZBRTE 3.7 8.0
Repair and maintenance expenses HEREEER 165.4 222.7
Lease expenses HERR%
— short-term leases — A 3.2 7.6
— low-value leases —REEHEE 6.8 5.9
Administrative services provided by FA B 5 IR R ITEARTS
related parties (Note 37(a)) (F¥5E37(a)) 18.0 4.0
Other expenses HihBasz 362.0 434.4
Total cost of sales, distribution and selling S8 A~ D8 R HER UL
expenses and administrative expenses RATH Rz 42 %R 19,341.4 21,307.6
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SFaMEERME

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

9 EERMRAX

Employee benefit expenses during the year are as follows: FANESRMNBAZUNT
2022 2021
-2 B4
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Wages and salaries TERFE 794.2 916.5
Other termination benefits E AR R AE A - 0.4
Social security costs FARAL AR ‘ 42.5 62.5
Pension costs — defined contribution plans 3R ¢R<E A 4~ — 5 E R EH8
(Note (a)) _ (MizE@) Y 50.9 71.9
Pension costs — defined benefit plans RRE A — R EENEHE - 0.4
Other employee benefits Hitfg 817 88.0 59.3
Total employee benefit expense BERMNMEZAREE 975.6 1,111.0
Notes: 5T -
(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (a) BAE-REMNETE
Contributions totalling HK$0.1 million (2021: HK$0.1 million) were payable to HREHIEEET(CE—F 1018
the fund as at 31 December 2022. BET) AR _Z-_”“F#+”°-HA=+—H
BBEAES
No forfeiture of contributions were used to reduce the existing level of RBEE_ZE__F+_B=+—HLHF
contributions during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil). B RS AERIWNHRURERE
HHRKE (C2Z—F 8\ o
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) AfiEEHMAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the FRAEEZ AfIREHMA L 2EM
year include three (2021: three) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in SEWANMEISF Az =01 (&°F
the analysis shown in Note 38. The emoluments payable to the remaining two T—F =) EE-FREMN TR TR
(2021: two) individuals during the year are as follows: CEZ—F W) ALZME0T
2022 2021
—E-= TR
HK$M HK$M
HERBTT BEAT
Salaries, bonus and other allowances %< ~ /E4L Ko EL 205 13.3 9.2
Penson Costs — defined contribution 3B {k& i 4s — B E A2 st 3
plan 0.2 -
13.5 9.2
The emoluments fell within the following bands: ENFUTER :
Number of Number of
individual individual
A¥ N ¢
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,003 7 5,000,000 7 = 2
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 75 %6,500,00078 7T 1 =
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,00177c % 7,500,000 7T 1 -
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FEMBIIRERMEE
10 FINANCE COSTS, NET 10 BAFSAR A3 %A
2022 2021
—E-= —E %
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEEBT
Interest income from bank deposits RITERZHEUWA 7.0 7.9
Interest income from related parties KA RS ZF EUWA
(Note 37(a)) (f$5E37(a)) 1.3 1.6
Financeincome _________________MBYA S 83 =
Interest expense on bank loans, IRITER  BX RENER
overdrafts and bills payables ZHBR% (61.1) (65.0)
Interest expense on other borrowings Higmz A EBR% (122.1) (159.0)
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 31) FHE & B> F| BB (i531) (11.2) (18.6)
Interest expense on loans from KERBANERZF Sz
related parties (Note 37(a)) (FF5E37(a)) (0.6) 0.7)
Financecosts  ___________________®BEx_ 0] 222
Finance costs, net AT B A JF EE (186.7) (233.8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FaMBRRMEE
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 FrieAx
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% FAMBRABIREN G EERE
(2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. FIEIRE16.5% (B -—4F : 16.5%)
BEEEE
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT") BIBFRETEMER (TEEMBER)
and the relevant EIT Implementation Regulations, the tax rate of R AT EFRBE RG> R E
PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2021: 25%) on PEMIRLBIREN G EERE
the estimated assessable profit for the year. MR E25% (B —HF :25%) 5t
IRRH o
Germany and the United States (“US") income taxes have been BEEKRERMERIDRBEENGE
provided at the rate of approximately 30% (2021: 30%) and BREN D BIRIREL30% (TEZ—
26% (2021: 26%) respectively, on the estimated assessable profit F130%) K26% (ZEZ—F :26%)
for the year. BEEE R
Taxation on profits from other jurisdictions has been calculated REHMBEE &R ZRIBTIRE
on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of FAGEFERR MR AERCERN
taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. AERZIRITREFAE -
2022 2021
== —E £
HKSM HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Current income tax (expense)/credit: BIHAFR 1SR (B iK%
Germany = (111.9) (175.7)
us ESE - 0.1
PRC EIT PEIEEPRER (12.6) (4.4)
Hong Kong profits tax FAENSH = (5.6)
Other jurisdictions HtelEE (31.8) (26.7)
(156.3) (212.3)
Over/(Under) provision in prior years: BEEEBEEE
BETR
Germany 2 1.8 0.4
Hong Kong &5 (0.6) -
Other jurisdictions Hhalz#E 1.6 0.8
2.8 1.2
Deferred income tax (expense)/credit RILFTISM (B) K%
(Note 21) oo Wes2) @31 194
Income tax expense FriEMBEX (166.6) (191.7)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profit of the consolidated entities as

FRigiifR< (48)

7 S5 B R P AS 00 40 i ) B0 T T 5 £ P
BN G A B SR BT X
MELNEHSEZZRMT :

follows:
2022 2021
—E_— %
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Profit before income tax FRPTISATEF) 404.0 883.7
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ¥ A AR E ORI
applicable to profits in the respective AR BHIRIE
countries 133.4 255.9
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for AR IR TS L
tax purpose 85.5 50.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARRBRANRBZE
tax purpose (45.5) (29.7)
Tax effect of temporary differences RN R EENRETEE
not recognised 5.4 (28.0)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERINIEBEGEBNRBELE 40.0 48.0
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A ZAIREDRRIBEEN
previously not recognised ML E (10.9) (27.2)
Tax impact on share of results from HEEE—EEAS K
an associate and joint ventures HEPEEENRNBEFE (38.5) (76.1)
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFEEBEERB (2.8) (1.2)
Income tax expense for the year FARMERESZ 166.6 191.7

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 33.0% (2021:
28.9%). The increase is caused by changes in the profitability of
certain subsidiaries.

CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED = ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FaMBRRMEE
12 DIVIDENDS 12 BB
No dividend was paid or proposed during 2022 and 2021, nor KABRRIEZFERZIZEZ—F
has any dividend been proposed by the Company since the end of HARKNHERZBRMNEARE > BE
the reporting period in respect of the years ended 31 December EE__ER-EFE—H5+_"H
2022 and 2021. =T —HLEFEMNRSHRTERS
TAT ARG B o
13 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13 SkEF
(a) Basic () E=F
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit SREARTRFTHIEAR B RERE
for the year attributable to shareholders of the Company HAEERANRUREEEETT
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue LRI EERL

during the year.

2022 2021
= TET—fF
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BERBT
Profit il
Profit for the year attributable to AN T PR ERAE(L
shareholders of the Company KEERF 264.5 702.0
Number of shares &8
Weighted average number BEITEBRMETEHE
of ordinary shares in issue (F5)
(thousands) 1,605,152 1,605,152
Basic earnings per share BREXRF
(expressed in HK$) (LB TTEIER) 0.16 0.44
(b) Diluted (b) 8
The Group has no potentially dilutive shares outstanding REBEE_SZ-_"_ER-T-—F
during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. +ZA=+—HI-FEAE@MT

EOHTETHERD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ME-BERSE

Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings machinery  equipment in progress Total
BARER
THREF  BERES RtE TEIR st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
As at 1 January 2021 RZZ2Z-%-F-H
Cost B 2,396.3 1,090.5 192.7 99.5 3,779.0
Accumulated depreciation and BTERAERE

impairment loss (451.6) (606.1) (97.4) - (1,155.1)
Net book amount REFE 1,944.7 484 .4 953 99.5 2,623.9
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZ--H+°A=1+-H

IEEE
Opening net book amount FNERDEE 1,944.7 484.4 95.3 99.5 2,623.9
Additions RE 19.0 48.8 32.1 57.7 157.6
Transfer upon completion ASeR R R 69.1 34.9 = (104.0) =
Transfer to assets held for sale BEREHEEE (H5R24K(ii)

(Notes 24 & (iii)) (55.7) (24.6) - (2.7) (83.0)
Transfer to investment properties BEREME (H:16)

(Note 16) (35.7) - - - (35.7)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (iv)) REERE (FE7RW) 09 - - (0.4) (13)
Disposals HE (50.2) 2.1) 2.2) (1.5) (56.0)
Depreciation charge MERY (913) (88.6) (38.1) = (218.0)
Currency translation differences ERER (101.7) (22.9) @.4) (1.9) (130.9)
Closing net book amount FXRZEEmEE 1697.3 429.9 82.7 467 2,256.6
As at 31 December 2021 RIB2Z-F+ZA=1+—H
Cost %N 2,206.4 1,089.7 212.0 471 3,555.2
Accumulated depreciation and EHMERABERE

impairment loss (509.1) (659.8) (129.3) (0.4) (1,298.6)
Net book amount REZE 1,697.3 429.9 82.7 46.7 2,256.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FAMRBERERME
14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14 ME- -BERSE (&)
(continued)
Office
Land Plant furniture
and and and  Construction
buildings ~ machinery  equipment in progress Total
WAKER
THREF RERES R HREIR st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BRET BRET BEET BREET BEET

Year ended 31 December 2022 HEZCHE+-A=1-H

ILFE
Opening net book amount FNRDEE 1,697.3 429.9 82.7 46.7 2,256.6
Additions RE 16.1 95.0 35.5 152.8 299.4
Transfer upon completion R EEE 17.6 43.6 2.8 (64.0) =
Transfer to investment properties BERBEME (H:16)

(Note 16) (6.6) - - - (6.6)
Impairment loss (Notes 7 & (iv)) HESE (E7Rv) (0.9) - - (0.1) (1.0)
Disposals HE (1.2) (14.8) (2.0) (0.9) (18.9)
Depreciation charge EMS (70.9) (102.3) (33.4) - (206.6)
Currency translation differences BERER (90.3) (25.0) (3.9) (1.1) (120.3)
Closing net book amount FXZEEmFE 1,561.1 426.4 81.7 1334 2,202.6
As at 31 December 2022 RZZ2Z-H+ZF=+—-H
Cost [ 2,110.5 1,091.9 2374 133.8 3,573.6
Accumulated depreciation and RAMERABEER

impairment loss (549.4) (665.5) (155.7) (0.4) (1,371.0)
Net book amount REPE 1,561.1 426.4 81.7 133.4 2,202.6
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Construction in progress as at 31 December 2022 mainly comprises new yard
(2021: new sewage treatment plant) being constructed in Europe.

As at 31 December 2022, property, plant and equipment with a net book
value of HK$1,507.9 million (2021: HK$1,519.8 million) were pledged to
secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group
(Note 35).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no property, plant and equipment
were transferred to assets held for sale (2021: HK$83.0 million)

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised a provision
for impairments on property, plant and equipment of HK$1.0 million
(2021: HK$1.3 million) related to certain idle assets in Europe, which their
recoverable amounts are below their carrying values based on management'’s
assessment (Note 7).

The recoverable amounts of performing property, plant and equipment is
determined through value-in-use (Note 17). Recoverable amounts for non-
performing property, plant and equipment is determined based on fair value
less cost of disposal.
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14 % KB K=&k (&)

Fy5E -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RIE_ZH#+"A=+—HBWEET
RIZOEERNBRRTNNISR (T
Z—F IS KEER) ©

RIZEZ-F+ZA=+—H REFE
%1,507 9@ BB T (CE-—4 11,5198
BEBT) N -BRERLFHCIRIE £
ARERERETER R —RIBITHREN
518 (B EE35) ©

REBE_Z__F+_A=+—HULEE
R TMEME BERREBRFIELE
HEE(CE-—F:83.0888T °

REES-__F+-FA=+—HIEE
R REBBYE - BERRERDEE
BEIL0EEAT (CE-—F 138848
7o) BB ETRESERR ERNEE
B EEATKO&BEEPEKREE (T
7) e

EEYE BFEkREF KOS ERE
ERBEETE E17) - ARYE -BE
Fe iR B By P UR (Bl & BB AR 45 A T B R H & AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

S E M ERIEE

15 FHEEE

Office
Land and Plant and furniture and
buildings machinery equipment Total
WARER .
THRIET BERER B @
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEET BEET BEET
As at 1 January 2021 RZ2Z-F5—-F—H
Cost A 658.0 501.4 3174 1,476.8
Accumulated depreciation, REITE EER
amortisation and impairment loss HEEE (232.8) (285.1) (114.4) (632.3)
Net book amount REZE 4252 216.3 203.0 8445
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_E=_—-£+_H
=t+—HLEEE
Opening net book amount FREFE 4252 2163 203.0 8445
Additions RE 432 18.4 413 102.9
Disposals HE (5.3) (17.4) (8.1) (30.8)
Depreciation and EREHMS
amortisation charge (51.3) (61.9) (52.1) (165.3)
Transfer to assets held for sale BERFHESE
(Note 24 & (iii)) (P EE24 R (i) 1.0) (4.0) (21.0) (26.0)
Currency translation differences BERER 2.4) (10.4) (11.0) (23.8)
Closing net book amount FRZEEFE 408.4 141.0 152.1 7015
As at 31 December 2021 S
Cost 51% 678.5 425.0 283.4 1,386.9
Accumulated depreciation, REHNE B8R
amortisation and impairment loss BB (270.1) (284.0) (131.3) (685.4)
Net book amount REFE 408.4 141.0 152.1 7015
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEZE-_#1+-8
=+—HIEEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 408.4 141.0 152.1 701.5
Additions hRE 39.8 59.6 55.0 154.4
Disposals HE (16.9) (46.7) 7.7 (55.9)
Depreciation and EREHES
amortisation charge (52.4) (33.0) (48.9) (134.3)
Currency translation differences EREE (18.2) (15.2) (14.3) (47.7)
Closing net book amount FRZEETFE 360.7 105.7 151.6 618.0
As at 31 December 2022 RZE-_#+-A
=S E
Cost B 613.8 401.6 297.7 1,313.1
Accumulated depreciation, R E A ES
amortisation and impairment loss B (253.1) (295.9) (146.1) (695.1)
Net book amount REFE 360.7 105.7 151.6 618.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2022, certain leasehold land and land use rights with a
net book value of HK$142.6 million (2021: HK$145.3 million) were pledged
to secure certain borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 35).

(ii) Expenses relating to short-term leases of HK$3.2 million (2021: HK$7.6
million) and expenses relating to leases of low-value assets that are not
classified as short-term leases of HK$6.8 million (2021: HK$5.9 million) were
charged to the consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended
31 December 2022 (Note 8).

(iii) During the year ended 31 December 2022, no right-of-use assets were
transferred to assets held for sale (2021: HK$26.0 million).
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15 EREERE (&)

EE

0]

(i)

(iii)

RIE__F+"A=+—0 FEFE
2142 6EBBT (CE—F 145388
B 2ETHEL MR T MEREER
B EAAEEERTETER R —RKIR
TR RIIEIR (MI5E35) ©

EREHEEZEEZ3 28BET (ZF
Z—F.7.6E8BT RERMLENES
RREEREAEEMEZM%6.88
BAT(CEI—HF 5988871 BEEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

SFaMEERME

16 REYFE

2022 2021

== —E %

HK$M HK$M

BEAT BEBT

As at 1 January w—B—H 56.3 20.7

Depreciation charge ERZ (3.7) (1.3)

Transfer from property, HEYE R KL E

plant and equipment (Note 14) (MF5E14) 6.6 35.7

Currency translation differences PER=RE (4.9) 1.2

As at 31 December R+ZHA=+—H 54.3 56.3
Notes: B EE -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The above investment properties, which are situated in the PRC (2021: the
PRC), are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the remaining useful lives.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 December 2022
was HK$219.3 million (2021: HK$227.4 million).

Rental income from these investment properties recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2022
amounted to HK$13.3 million (2021: HK$15.5 million) (Note 6).

As at 31 December 2022, investment properties with a net book value of
HK$54.3 million (2021: HK$26.2 million) were pledged to secure certain
borrowings and general banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 35).

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

LR (S5 PE) NREY
RERBTERAFHUERRERERE-

rEEREYER _S__5£+_A8
Z+—HANAFEA219.38BB T (CE
T—F I 2274EBET) ©

REEZS-__F+-A=+—HItEE
EREBRERABINKEZ SR EME
HHEESWAZIBIEEET (CE—F:
15.58 @B 7m) (MiEe) o

RIZEZZH&+ZA=+—8 KEZFE
AS43EEBT (CE—F 12628848
7o) ZIREYMECEE LUEAAEEER
FETFERR—RIBTRE ML (M
35) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17 BREE
Customers'
relationship
Brand names, and
Computer patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses relationship Total
mIELTE BRMGER
BE BiaTH S RSB Y EA st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEAT BEAT BEAT BEET BEET

As at 1 January 2021 RZZZ—F—A—H
Cost (%N 596.9 20.3 3146 104.3 1,083.8
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (12.5) (38.0) (28.4) (126.6)
Net book amount IREFE 596.9 7.8 276.6 75.9 957.2
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE_ZT_—F

+ZBA=1+—HItEE
Opening net book amount EEEEE 596.9 78 276.6 75.9 957.2
Additions RE - 2.0 - - 2.0
Impairment loss (Note 7) BEEBRE (H:7) - - (21.0) - (21.0)
Amortisation charges BT = @.1) (10.2) (7.8) (22.1)
Currency translation differences ERERE (42.9) (0.5) (18.7) (5.1) (67.2)
Closing net book amount EXRE@MEE 554.0 52 226.7 63.0 848.9
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F

+ZB=+-H
Cost A 554.0 6.6 271.7 9.8 929.1
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (1.4) (45.0) (33.8) (80.2)
Net book amount REEE 554.0 52 226.7 63.0 848.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

17 EBEREEE (&)

Customers’
relationship
Brand names, and
Computer  patents and suppliers’
Goodwill software licenses  relationship Total
R TE ERMAGR
[k B NG EHREE  HEERG st
HKSM HKSM HK$SM HK$SM HKSM
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEAT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEE__F
+ZB=+—HIEFE
Opening net book amount FRAZE 554.0 5.2 226.7 63.0 848.9
Additions HE - 1.0 - - 1.0
Amortisation charges BiEEY - (2.5) 9.2) (7.0) (18.7)
Currency translation differences ERERE (29.6) (0.2) (11.9) (3.4) (45.1)
Closing net book amount EXRE@EE 524.4 35 205.6 52.6 786.1
As at 31 December 2022 = —_—- 2
+ZA=+—H
Cost B 524.4 49 257.5 91.7 878.5
Accumulated amortisation Rt #H - (1.4) (51.9) (39.1) (92.4)
Net book amount REBE 524.4 35 205.6 52.6 786.1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BEREE @&

202

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives

Goodwill is recognised through the acquisition of Scholz Holding
GmbH ("”Scholz Holding”) in 2016. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives represented brand names, amounted to
HK$150.4 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$158.9
million).

Management reviews the business performance based on
geographic regions. It has identified Asia and Europe regions as
the main regions. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of Scholz
Holding is allocated to metal recycling CGU in Asia and Europe
regions. Brand names have been allocated to CGUs in Europe
region.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. The growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the recycling businesses in which the CGU
operates.

*  For identification only
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

17 BEEE @&
HERARRITERENR BLEE
ZRERE @
SEEREFRAGEAESE BLE
EZHEANS CHREBEFESER
METERSL B EXRLITEXE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

For the impairment test for goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives, the key assumptions, long term growth
rate and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are

disclosed below:

BRFX:

Metal recycling

EBEK
Asia Europe
b | EX
2022 e
Long term growth rate RHEEX 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i)) BRAAITIEER (f5E()) 22.0% 17.7%

Gross profit margin

)%

3.8%-7.8%

6.2%-8.3%

Revenue growth rate Wi R E 6.0%-27.0% 4.5%-6.8%
Metal recycling
EREER

Asia Europe

2 B
2021 —E--F
Long term growth rate RABEX 2.0% 2.0%
Pre-tax discount rate (Note (i)) BRARITIER (f5E() 19.3% 13.7%

Gross profit margin

%

4.9%-8.9%

7.0%-8.4%

Revenue growth rate lyGgi Bk 6.7%-48.3% -4.0%-10.5%

Note: PsE

(i) Pre-tax discount rate applied to the pre-tax cash flow forecast. (i) FE £ B2 BR#6 A1 3R <5 % T8RN B9 BR AR A #7 3R
=o

BERIRREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 17 BEREE @&

Impairment tests for goodwill and intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group divested
the processing operations in the US to strategically focus on the
brokerage business in the US. Management has considered the
effect from the business restructuring of US region operation
and concluded there will be minimal recoverable amount to be
generated from the intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.
As such, the remaining carrying value of the intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives of HK$21.0 million was fully written
off as at 31 December 2021.

The recoverable amounts for Asia and Europe CGUs would still
exceed their remaining carrying amounts if the assumptions were
changed as follows:

o lowering long term growth rate by 1 percentage point;
° raising pre-tax discount rate by 1 percentage point; or
° lowering revenue growth rate by 20% of the expected

growth rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {EAREZEZEARMNIESE

EQUITY METHOD

(a) Interest in an associate (a) M—HEBEATZER
2022 2021
—ECHE BT
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEEBT
Cost of unlisted investment in e El =N
an associate (Note) JEEHTERA () 2.3 2.3
Share of post-acquisition FE1LUREE R (RetisE)
(accumulated losses)/ {REB R F
retained earnings (1.5) 0.1
0.8 2.4

Notes:

Details of the Group’s associate at the end of the reporting period are as

MyEE

FEBNREARNBEQATFBOT ¢

follows:
Proportion of
Place of ownership interest
Name of entity principal business held by the Group Principal activity
NEEFASES
BRERE FEE M RIS EBER
Poly Metals Company Limited (“Poly Metals") Hong Kong 20% Trading of metal scrap
EBEBERAT (TEE) BN BEEBRS

Poly Metals is a private company and there is no quoted market price available
for its shares.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in an associate.

BRI RBIMARBDRERN L EASNTES

wE

TEARAERNBEAT 2
mZEHARE R

ESRFERERRARE B FFRK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FH#EEEABNEE (@)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a) Interest in an associate (continued) (a) M—MEEERTZER (&)
Summarised financial information for an associate —EBEAT M EERBRE
Set out below is the summarised financial information TXHEHEBEER 2 BEERNBTE
for Poly Metals which is accounted for using the equity HEAEmREAR.
method.

Summarised balance sheet EEERREBE
2022 2021
—E_C BT
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEET
Total current assets MENEEMEE 20.2 26.3
Total non-current assets ERENEELEE 0.9 0.9
Total current liabilities Ve =N L (24.8) (22.9)
Total non-current liabilities R B EIERE - -
Summarised statement of comprehensive income 2EKNEREE
2022 2021
—E-= T
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEBIT
Revenue W 269.3 131.7

(Loss)/Profit and total comprehensive  (E518) /& # R 2 E
(loss)/income (F518) /W 4e%E (8.0) 4.1
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18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interest in an associate (continued)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

(continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in Poly

SFaMEERME

18 ER#EEEARNKZE (@)

() H—EBEQB T (@)
EEWEHREE (&

LA BER RN ER D
ZREE REEMBRERARE

Metals recognised in the consolidated financial statements: ) 2 HERWT ¢
2022 2021
—E-— =
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERBTT
(Net liabilities)/net assets of BERRt+_B=+—H1
Poly Metals as at 31 December (BE3%E EEFE (3.7) 4.3
Proportion of the Group’s ownership ZAS&EE A E EhZ A 1
interest in Poly Metals T EE 20% 20%
Share of (net liabilities)/net assets of FE{SE B (B1E%2EE)
Poly Metals BETFE (0.7) 0.9
Goodwill e 1.5 1.5
Closing carrying value FRIREE 0.8 2.4

The information above reflects the amounts presented
in the financial statements of the associate adjusted for
differences in accounting policies between the Group and

the associate.

LB R R MR A S E B A g
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S e M ERE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 {FH#EZEZARMNIGE (B

EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (b) MNEELEZHER
Particulars of the significant joint ventures are set out FTEHEREZFHBHINUWT
below:
Place of
establishment/
principal place Principal  Measurement
Name of entity of business % of ownership interest activities method Carrying amount
Rt/
BRLE TERLHE BEEEGZANL TEEH HERE IREfE
2022 2021 2022 2021
k- et g% k- et 5%
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT
Schrott und Metallhandel Germany 75% 75% Note (i) Equity 148.9 1479
M. Kaatsch GmbH &R M) #
Scholz Austria GmbH Austria 63.35% 63.35% Note (ii) Equity 318.0 3032
B Mz (i) ¢t
Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. Mexico 50% 50% Note (iii) Equity - 180.1
2R Lg()] 44
Rematholding Co. s.r.| Romania 50% 50% Note (iv) Equity 76.1 89.3
ESED HizE(v) i
Individually immaterial joint ventures Note (v) Equity 166.9 184.9
ERIFEARELE MizEw) B
709.9 905.4
Notes: FieE
(i) Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH is a private company (i) Schrott und Metallhandel M.
and there is no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in Kaatsch GmbHZA—REfAAARE K
collection, processing and trading of scrap metal in Germany. HRMUEEDBRE ZATNE
ERENE-NMIKEEBRELS
Bo
(ii) Scholz Austria GmbH is a private company and there is no quoted (ii) Scholz Austria GmbHZA—BFAA R
market price for its shares. It is engaged in metal recycling business in BRERM I ENISZRE  ZAE
Austria. RERMFEEEEBER-
(iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V. is a private company and there is (iii) Kalischatarra, S.de R.L. de C.V.&3—

no quoted market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection,
processing and trading of scrap metal in Mexico.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv) Rematholding Co. s.r.l is a private company and there is no quoted
market price for its shares. It is engaged in collection, processing and
trading of scrap metal in Romania.

(v) In addition to the interests in joint ventures as disclosed above, the
Group also has interests in a number of individually immaterial joint
ventures that are accounted for using the equity method:

SFaMEERME

18 EAERZEARNKRE (B

(b)

REEREZ#E (B
GESEC)

(iv) Rematholding Co. s.r.l&—RIFAA
NERERPUETIHRE ZA
ERAGEERENE-MIRE
BERERE-

v) BRENERBZREERE B
S AEET R BB ENIFERE
EhEEAED DEAEEEAN

iR

2022 2021
k- Jemnt - 3 BT —F
HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEHET

Aggregate carrying amount of individually ~FRMERIJEEAGE B>
immaterial joint ventures IRE{EAEEE 233.1 184.9

Aggregate amount of the Group's share of: ZSEE B (L 2 44945 ©

Profit for the year FRiEF] 38.0 88.8
Other comprehensive loss Hih2mEEE - 0.1
Total comprehensive income EEUEAEEE 38.0 88.9

Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of
joint ventures

The Group provided guarantees for borrowings of
approximately HK$49.9 million (2021: HK$53.7 million) to
certain joint ventures as at 31 December 2022 (Note 42

().

There are no other contingent liabilities relating to the
Group's interests in the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

18 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 18 (SR EARNIEE @)
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MESLEZEZDS @
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BETEZMBEERME
Set out below is the summarised financial information for T 5 & Schrott und Metallhandel
Schrott und Metallhandel M. Kaatsch GmbH, Scholz Austria M. Kaatsch GmbH ~ Scholz Austria
GmbH, Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de C.V. and Rematholding GmbH ~ Kalischatarra S.de R.L. de
Co. s.rl which are accounted for using the equity method. C.V.JzRematholding Co. s.r.I8984
In the opinion of the Directors, these joint ventures are BEREE  HigEm E AR
material to the Group. EERA ZEAERERAE
EmsSEEKXe
Summarised statement of comprehensive income EEHBEREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Austria Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH GmbH S.deR.L. de CV. Rematholding Co. s.r.
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
ZTCCE CZC-f  CECCE CEC-f TECCE RO ZECIE CRC-f
HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HKSM

BREn BEET  BEBn  BEEn EEEn  EREn  BEBER BEER

Revenue W& 1,538.5 1,555.0 3,894.5 44010 9374 14390 1,011 1,164.8
Depreciation and amortisation #7E R (27.7) (294) (64.2) (134) (137) 237) (158) (143)
Interest income FEKA 07 07 0.1 - - 17 - -
Interest expense HSER (14) (5.6) (10.0 (107) (1.0) (106) (26) (1.5)
Income tax expense FigiEs (.1 (163) (20.1) (299 (31.6) (44.8) (36) (14)
Profit for the year i 248 447 749 145.2 58.9 105.7 8.0 2.1
Other comprehensive B2 ElE

income - - 55 18 0.7 04 - -
Dividends received from joint  BRAELERE

ventures 9.6 70 215 235 - - 128 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

18
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

18 EAERZEARNKRE (B

(b) Interests in joint ventures (continued) (b) MESLEZEZDS @
Summarised balance sheet EEAEREE
Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deR.L de C.V. Rematholding Co. s.rl
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
§-Cf 3% CZBITE “Z--F ZECTE “%°-F ZZ-TE “T°-&
HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
BERAT EEEr BEET  BEEr EREAT  BBEn  BEARm BEEn
Current it
Cash and cash equivalents &K
Re%EEA 13 103 2366 161.1 - 232 43 99
Other current assets AthrEEE 209.8 230.7 354.6 518.0 - 3932 205.9 211
Total current assets THEELR 21741 2410 591.2 679.1 - 4164 2102 231.0
Current financial liabilities  FE1S B &R
(excluding trade payables)  (FEIEER
FEf1508) (37.0) (10.3) (221.6) (205.5) - (122.5) (40.2)
Other current liabilities =Ry EELE (103.2) (131.6) (217.3) (319.0) - (129.9) (41.9)
Total current liabilities MEEREE (140.2) (1419) (438.9) (524.5) - (252.4) (82.1) (88.1)
Total net current assets BB EBE
Fak] 76.9 99.1 1523 154.6 - 164.0 128.1 1429
Non-current (i)
Total non-current assets ~ JERBEELE 215 2043 384.2 4188 - 188.2 34.1 387
Non-current financial FREEHER
liabilities (excluding trade ~ (FEEES
payables iz (996)  (1180) (552  (1099) - (16.4) 81) 02)
Other non-current liabiliies  E3EREN&E (8.2) (08) (47.1) (56.3) = (7.8) (12.8) (14.2)
Total non-current liabilities  JEEI& E1EE (107.8) (118.8) (102.3) (166.2) - (24.2) (20.9) (14.4)
Net assets BEFE 186.6 184.6 4342 407.2 - 328.0 1413 167.2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

18

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

(b)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

Summarised balance sheet (continued)

18

J

fEREDEEARNRE (B)

(b)
B

Schrott und
Metallhandel Scholz Kalischatarra,
M. Kaatsch GmbH Austria GmbH S.deRL deCV. Rematholding Co. s.r.|
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
“§-”§ "T--F ZBIZE “2--F ZEIF 5% ZFI”E C“Z°-F
HKSM HKIM HKSM HKSM HKSM HK$M HKSM HK$M
BEAr EBEr EBEBAR EBEr  BEEn  EEEr  BEER BEER
Reconciliation to carrying BREIfEHR :
amounts:
Operating net assets R-A—B8
asat 1 January LEEELA 184.6 1643 4072 3261 3280 2321 1672 1408
Profit for the year ERET 238 447 749 145.2 58.9 105.7 8.0 421
Other comprehensive A2 EkE
income - - 5.5 18 0.7 04 - -
Dividend paid BRRE (12.7) 93) (34.0) (37.1) - - (25.5) -
Currency translation EREE
differences (10.1) (15.1) (19.4) (28.8) 10.7 (10.2) (8.4) (15.7)
Impairment AE - - - - (123.4) - - -
Transfer 1 - - - - (274.9) = - =
Closing net assets HREESE 186.6 1846 1342 4072 - 3280 3 167.2
Group's share in % RE@ELR
Eale 5% 75% 63.35% 63.35% 50% 50% 50% 50%
Group's share in HKSM ~ AEETE(S
BEER 140.0 1385 275.1 2579 - 1640 70.7 836
Goodwil BE 8.9 94 429 453 - 16.1 54 57
Closing carrying value EXRREE 148.9 1479 318.0 3032 - 180.1 76.1 89.3

The information above reflects the amounts presented in
the consolidated financial statements of the joint ventures
adjusted for differences in accounting policies between the
Group and the joint ventures.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SARBHRRMEE
19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 19 BHAFESFABEZEMSE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =5
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are all held for BAFEFABRZ EMEENTFE
trading and include the following: BHE X BFEUT
2022 2021
- - S
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT
Unlisted equity securities ELEHRAES
As at 1 January w—RB—H 0.8 0.9
Disposal HE (3.2) =
Fair value change REEEEH 3.2 -
Currency translation differences BB ER - (0.1)
As at 31 December w+ZB=+—H 0.8 0.8
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S e M ERE

20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
comprise equity securities of unlisted entities mainly located in
Czech Republic, Slovenia, Poland and Germany. They are all held
as long-term strategic investments that are not expected to be
sold in the short to medium term and include the following:

BRATE AHMEE RS
ZEMEE

BRAFTESFARMEERZZEME
EGEFZUNERANE HAX
B KM KREENIEETERNR
rEF o RFEMEEIRIFRENE
AETPHRTTHEZRPARBMLER
B aEUTRIE!

2022 2021
-t 5 - 5
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BE&AT

Unlisted equity securities JE LT AES
As at 1 January w—RB—H 91.3 104.6
Additions = 1.0 1.0
Disposals HE - (11.6)
Fair value change NEEEEH (2.6) 4.3
Currency exchange differences PE =28 (4.9) (7.0)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H 84.8 91.3

Upon disposal of these unlisted equity securities, any related
balances with the financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the retained earnings.

Dividend income of HK$5.7 million (2021: HK$5.0 million) from
these unlisted equity securities are recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2022 (Note 6).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBIRERMEE
21 DEFERRED TAXATION IEIEFRIE
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and deferred income IREFRSMEBEEMEIEFMSRAE
tax liabilities is as follows: DU -
2022 2021
-t 5 - 5
HKSM HK$M
BEAT BEBTT
Deferred income tax assets: EILFRISINEE ©
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 1218 B & Uk BB
after 12 months FIERRIEE B 4.5 23.2
Deferred tax assets to be recovered REF 1218 B AU B89
within 12 months EIERRIEE B 48.0 55.7
52.5 777777777?.7977
Deferred income tax liabilities: IRIEFTEINEE
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 12E B BEEW
after 12 months RERIEE R (257.3) (258.3)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled R 1218 B REEE N
within 12 months RIERIEEE (23.7) (47.5)
(281.00 (739§782 -
Deferred income tax liabilities, net IRIEFRISRAEFEE (228.5) (226.9)
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FEMBIIRERMEE
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 RERIE (@&
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FRIEFISRNEERBRBZEE R
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of FRE—MBEAEE AN AR
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows: wmr
Accelerated
Deferred income tax
tax liabilities depreciation Others Total
MEERRE
IRIEFRIGMAR e Hith st
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEAT BEET
As at 1 January 2021 W_E-—F—HF—H 306.3 57.5 363.8
Credited to the consolidated REREEmRETA
statement of profit or loss (22.3) (14.4) (36.7)
Currency translation differences BE 7 =48 (19.6) (1.7) (21.3)
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+_H
=+—H 264.4 41.4 305.8
Credited to the consolidated RiEEEmARETA
statement of profit
or loss (1.9) (6.4) (8.3)
Currency translation differences b 2 = RE (14.5) (2.0) (16.5)
As at 31 December 2022 RNIE-_F#+—"8
Sar=2 248.0 33.0 281.0
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S MB R
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 RIEFRIE (8B
Decelerate Unrealised
tax profit on
Deferred income tax assets Tax losses depreciation ~ Provisions  inventories Others Total
HERE FER
BEFEREE MIESS e B FEEA Hth Mt
HK$M HKSM HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M

BEEr  BEAx BEEn  ABEn  BEEAn  BEERn

As at 1 January 2021 RIZZ-E—-F-H (16.2) 9.1 213) 3.1 (60.7) (1104)
Charged/(Credited) to the ReEaREERNR/

consolidated statement (Gt A)

of profit or loss 16.5 0.2 9.2 15 (10.1) 17.3
Credited to the consolidated RiagEM2ENER

statement of other A

comprehensive income - - - - 3.7 3.7
Transfer to assets held for sale BETHEHELE

(Note 24) (Myz£24) - - - - 6.4 6.4
Currency translation differences ~ ERER (03) 03) - - 47 4.1
As at 31 December 2021 RZB-—-&+"H

=1+-H = 9.2) (12.1) (1.6) (56.0) (78.9)

(Credited)/charged to the REEBREE N/

consolidated statement nex

of profit or loss - (0.1) 18 1.0 127 214
Charged to the consolidated KRR ERGER

statement of other %

comprehensive income - - - - - -
Currency translation differences ~ ER =% - 0.5 0.9 03 33 5.0
As at 31 December 2022 RZBZ_F+ZR

=t+-H - (8.8) (3.4) (0.3) (40.0) (52.5)
The Company controls the dividend policy of its subsidiaries and KRB AR FRENKEBRKRE
the Directors do not have an intention to distribute the retained EEEDRETTFRAZRERF)
earnings of certain subsidiaries such that deferred income tax WERMZEFRENRELRAE
liabilities of HK$230.3 million (2021: HK$237.8 million) have BARRY TR0 e EL Ath 77 TR e 5B IR SE PR
not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes BRAaE2303EE BT (T2 —F
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of these 2378BEAET cNIEF+H
subsidiaries. Unremitted earnings amounted to HK$1,033.6 =+—B > XEHEBEFNEH*%1,0336
million (2021: HK$1,069.0 million) as at 31 December 2022. BEBT(CZTT—F:1,00.088%
JT) ©
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SARBHmRMEE
21 DEFERRED TAXATION (continued) 21 IREMIE (48B)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried KRB EREE 2 MIBEIEES
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax Fir 3%&,@%"@@%@%@1@&5%
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. The Group did EEEBHBZREERNEMNERES
not recognise deferred income tax assets of HK$410.5 million fRo REMET MR IERE1,931.98
(2021: HK$409.0 million) in respect of tax losses amounting to BET(CE-_—F:1,869.88&8 8
HK$1,931.9 million (2021: HK$1,869.8 million). Unrecognised 7T) FESRIRIE TSI E E410 58 B AT
tax losses of HK$782.6 million (2021: HK$1,657.6 million) have (_7_—¢ 409.08 B HIT) o K&
no expiry date and the remaining tax losses will expire at various RIRIEEE7S2. 68 BT (T —
dates up to and including 2028 (2021: 2028). E 1,657.6B & &) LREmB R
Mmer TRIBEEBRN S N\F CE
T—FIZEI)N\H) BFEP Hz
Al 2 R[E H A& o
22 INVENTORIES 22 78
2022 2021
ke B4
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Raw materials R AL 210.2 190.1
Finished goods B pY 1,113.5 1,377.7
1,323.7 1,567.8

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to HK$16,216.2 million (2021: HK$17,590.9
million), which included a net provision for impairments on
inventory of HK$33.6 million (2021: HK$31.3 million) (Note 8).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged inventories
with a net book value of HK$1,006.1 million (2021: HK$1,065.3
million) to secure certain borrowings and general facilities to the
Group (Note 35).
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S E M ERIEE

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B5 - -FEREMEUWRIE
2022 2021

—E_— %

HKS$M HK$M

BEAT BEBTT

Trade receivables B 5 EWIE 1,312.5 1,827.1
Less: loss allowance RS (38.3) (55.4)
Trade receivables, net B EWRRIEFE 1,274.2 1.771.7
Bills receivables FEN ik 16.3 3.2
Deposits and prepayments & &AM RIE 123.7 191.2
Deposits paid for purchase of raw materials B E R~ BFi2E 18.9 49 .4
VAT recoverable BREIE(ER 108.1 128.2
Other receivables (Note) HpEahig (st 109.9 98.0
1,651.1 2,241.7

Less: non-current portion o IERENER D

Other deposits and receivables HAthin & K FE I8 (10.8) (14.8)
1,640.3 2,226.9

Note: As at 31 December 2022, the balance includes a receivable of HK$42.5
million (2021: HK$46.7 million) from the Taizhou Bay Committee, a
government authority in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has pledged trade
receivables with a net book value of HK$969.0 million (2021:
HK$1,448.7 million) to secure certain borrowings and general
banking facilities to the Group (Note 35).

Mz : WZEZZFE+-A=+—H &8neE
REFEBFEREAMNEESS R RIS
RSEBAET(CTI—F:46.7588
7T) °

RIE-__F+_"_A=+—H '&x&
BEREFEA69.06888T (T
T 1,448 7EEET) 2 BIKHE
SEWGRIE UMERAEEERNSE
FERKR—MRIRITRE (I5E35) ©
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SARBHmRMEE
23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B5 -EERHEMEWRIE
(continued) (48)
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the aging analysis of the N BT _ER_E_—F+_H
gross trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows: =+—B BSRWHIBEEEZRER
BHARVERE DATA0 T -
2022 2021
—E_C %
HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEET
0 - 90 days 0E90H 1,258.6 1,729.3
91 — 180 days 91&180H 18.1 28.0
Over 180 days BiB180H 35.8 69.8
1,312.5 1,827.1
(a) Fair values of trade receivables (a) BZERWHREATE
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, BRI W IBRsSEEA &
their carrying amount is considered to approximate their HIEEEHRRARE QA FENE
fair values. o
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S E M ERIEE

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 B3 FRERHMEWRIE
(continued) (4&)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (b) BEREMEEE
The Group measures the expected credit losses on the AEBRBERFEEERBRIFHK
trade and bills receivables by grouping them based on AR BB 5 K B R WEIE
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. NIEHRE EBEETOMESE.
The Group has divided the trade and bills receivables into AEEDRBEMN BUNKIEE
three groups shared with similar credit risk characteristics A IR (U B i B 5 I IR FEUR
based on geographical locations which are Asia, Europe MEXAEBHEUGEEREEHE
and North America. The expected loss rates are estimated HN=fE -FEEEXRRBEFEE
based on the historical credit losses experienced, adjusted BB A B 5T > W AR HE B L Bt
to reflect differences between economic conditions during Y 55 FE S8 B KL HA R 2 AR AR
the period over which the historic data has been collected, IR R AR U0 s s £ [ i B 1 AR AR
current conditions and the Group's view of forward-looking MERZEBRE - REILLEE R
economic conditions. On that basis, the loss allowances B TERTE_—F+_"H
as at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were determined as =+—BHNEEREETNT
follows:
Gross carrying
amount
Expected - trade and bills Loss
credit loss rate receivables allowances
EIREE
HHEE —BARERE
| 5pES FE R I8 BiRRE
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEAT
As at 31 December 2022 A S = |
=+—H
Active accounts EEBIRE
Current mE 0.2% 993.2 2.2
Past due 1 — 30 days wmHR1E30% 5.2% 238.5 12.4
Past due 31 - 90 days BEA31E90K 12.4% 25.9 3.2
Past due over 90 days HHABIB0K 32.0% 50.6 16.2
Terminated accounts KIFERE 100% 43 43
Total “Et 1,312.5 38.3

BERIRREBERAR

—so—xgR 221



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23 B5 -EBREHMERKRIE

(continued) (48)
(b) Impairment and risk exposure (continued) (b) RERRMREE @&
Gross carrying
amount
Expected - trade and bills Loss
credit loss rate receivables allowances
BERMEE
BHEE —BEKER
BiEx e FIE EiERE
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
As at 31 December 2021 R_E_—F+_4
S—E
Active accounts EIBER P
Current E 0.7% 1,274.0 9.0
Past due 1 - 30 days BEE3I0KR 3.6% 299.7 10.6
Past due 31 - 90 days BHA31EI0K 2.5% 110.5 2.7
Past due over 90 days BHAEIBI0K 13.0% 126.2 16.4
Terminated accounts KILERE 100% 16.7 16.7
Total “a st 1,827.1 55.4

RIEBRAREIEREARSDRE
S - T 0E B AR P RS R B
1 R BB 3 2k B BUM A0 36 520N 3

=]
oo ©

Loss allowances on terminated accounts are mostly from
the Asia region and majority of the loss allowances on
active accounts are from the Europe and North America
regions.

FEEESRWRIAZ BIREE
ZEBBERNT

Movements on the Group's loss allowance of trade
receivables are as follows:

222

2022 2021

—EC TET £

HKS$M HK$M

BEET BEATT

As at 1 January n®—B—H 55.4 50.0
(Reversal)/increase in loss allowance  BHEREEEE (&E@)

recognised B (0.6) 8.3

Receivables written off during FREEEA AT EZ

the year as uncollectable FE W =R I8 (12.6) 0.1)

Currency translation differences PER =4E (3.9) (2.8)

As at 31 December w+=ZB=+—H 38.3 55.4
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23 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(b)

Impairment and risk exposure (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, provision for impairments
on other receivables and prepayments amounted to
approximately HK$18.5 million (2021: HK$18.8 million).

The other classes within trade, bills and other receivables do
not contain impaired assets. The Group does not hold any
collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables, net
of provision, are denominated in the following currencies:

S E M ERIEE

23 %I%) REREMEWRIE
=}

(b)

AR B P A (48)
W_&2__&#+_-_B=+—H"
E A EWETE K TR I R B
BANISSEERBT (ZE -—
F I 18.8EEATT) °

B85 RERHEMEURERNH
MEBRTAESERBEBEE &
EEIESE E AT REE
fRe

FEEZ B S EUGRIA (0kRE
#) ZBREED U TGS HE:

2022 2021
T HF T —F

HK$M HK$M

BEATT BEAT

RMB AR 101.6 85.0
EUR 5w 957.1 1,273.5
Us$ E7T 130.0 265.1
Other currencies HE# 85.5 148.1
1,274.2 1,771.7

The carrying amounts of the Group's other receivables are
mainly denominated in RMB, EUR, US$ and Polish Zloty
("PLN") (2021: RMB, EUR, US$ and PLN) as at 31 December
2022.

brire

BERIRREBERAR

KRB "H#+"HF=+—A8"
FEBMHEMBWRIREZ REET
ZUARB BT EnAORE
Lotz (&R C2T—F:
AR BT EU KRR 5t
He
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR
24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 24 FEHEEE
2022 2021
= T4
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT B
Property, plant and equipment (Note (i) MR E K& BTEEG) 59.3 90.5
Right-of-use assets (Note (ii)) FREEE GIEEi) 2.3 59.2
Investment properties (Note (ii)) BEYE FEEG)) - 17.3
Interests in joint ventures (Note (iii)) REeerEr#m BEGi) 129.1 =
190.7 167.0
Representing: 5.
Assets held for sale FELEEE 190.7 167.0
190.7 167.0
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FaMBRRMEE
24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued) 24 FEHEEE @)
Movements on the Group's assets and liabilities held for sales are AEBRRELEEERABBZEDHE
as follows: T

2022 2021
—E-F B
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEETT
As at 1 January w—HB—H 167.0 265.3
Transfers from: #y .
— Property, plant and equipment, e/ EN G E SR
net of impairments (Note 14) MkRE (ME14) = 83.0
— Right-of-use assets, —fERREE NRRE
net of impairments (Note 15) (FF5E15) - 26.0
— Deferred income tax assets —REFRSMEE
(Note 21) (MF5E21) - 6.4
— Investment accounted for using the —FREREARZ
equity method (Note 18) B (95E18) 152.5 =
~ Lease liabilities (Note 31) —HEaE& (:E31) - (33.2)
Disposals HE (113.2) (181.0)
Currency translation differences PR A= RE (15.6) 0.5
190.7 167.0

BERIRREBERAR
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S e M ERE

24 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (continued)

Notes:

@)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The balance represented certain land, building, plant and equipment located
in Asia and Europe with a net book value of HK$50.2 million (2021: HK$71.4
million) and HK$9.1 million (2021: HK$19.1 million), respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of certain
land, building, plant, and equipment located in Asia and Europe with a net
book value of HK$16.2 million (2021: HK$2.1 million) and HK$9.5 million
(2021: HK$82.6 million) respectively. The Group is actively looking for
potential buyers for the remaining property, plant and equipment which are
held for sales in the market.

The balance represented certain leased lands and investment properties with
a net book value of HK$2.3 million (2021: HK$59.2 million) and Nil (2021:
HK$17.3 million), respectively, located in Asia and Europe.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group disposed of certain
leased lands and investment properties located in Asia with a net book
value of HK$55.7 million (2021: HK$4.8 million) and HK$17.0 million (2021:
HK$3.0 million) respectively. The Group is actively looking for potential buyers
for the remaining right-of-use assets and investment properties which are held
for sales in the market.

The balance represented the investment in joint ventures located in Mexico
with a net book value of HK$129.1 million (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group reclassified investment
in joint ventures located in Mexico as assets held for sale. The Group disposed
of investment in joint ventures located in Mexico with a net book value of
HK$14.8 million. The Group is actively looking for potential buyers for the
remaining investment in joint ventures which are held for sales in the market.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised a gain an
disposals of assets held for sales of HK$156.7 million (2021: HK$113.1
million) in “other gain, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
(Note 7).
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HERIBEREFE DB AS0.2EB BT (T
T —F 7 AE8ET) RIBEEET
(T2 —F 19188870 VUM
EEBUMME T L ST RE R R
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16.2EE8AB T (CE—F 1 2.188%7T)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

o= =
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 TEERMTIA
2022 2021
= T
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEERATT
Derivative financial assets TTEEmEE
Hedging derivatives — metal commodities ¥ HHTE T E—BE &
future contracts (Note (i)) BRE&H (FEEG)) 6.1 29.2
Trading derivatives — foreign currency RBTETHR -
forward contracts (Note (ii)) B4 (MIEEG)) 11.0 1.9
17.1 31.1
Derivative financial liabilities TTEEmERE
Hedging derivatives — metal commodities ~ ¥H T4 TE—SEE @
future contracts (Note (i)) BHEEH (FEE)) (14.9) (34.1)
Trading derivatives — foreign currency RBTETR-SMNEE
forward contracts (Note (ii)) a4 (EEG)) (0.2) (5.3)
(15.1) (39.4)
Notes: PEEE -
(i) Hedging derivatives - metal commodities future contracts (i) HATETRA-sBERPEEYN
The Group enters into copper and other metal future contracts in order REBGTUIAKEMEBHESH UE
to manage its exposure to the price risk of inventories. All these metal BHEENERRAR FIEZSEBE S
commodities future contracts are designated as hedges of the fair values of HESARIEEAKXERMEERATE
the commodities held by the Group (fair value hedges). These contracts are HER (AFEHET) cZEENRIERT
actively traded in an active market and are measured at fair values based BREERUARBRRE HRAZRERA
on quoted price as at reporting date, with gain or loss recognised directly in TEsT = B R ER R RER S
consolidated statement of profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair B TERZEAAFEEE BERE
value of the hedged commodities that are attributable to the hedged risk. BEARER
The notional principal amount of the outstanding metal commodities future RIEZZF+ZA=+—H > k&€=
contracts was approximately HK$640.5 million (2021: HK$1,666.5 million) as BRI ESNNRERSTRL640.5
at 31 December 2022. BEEBT (TR _-—4F:1,666.5A8%
7T) °

EABREEERAT —S-—gFR 227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

4= = ==
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 {TEEMTIA (@

(continued)

Notes: (continued) MiEE @ (48)

(i) Hedging derivatives — metal commodities future contracts (continued) (i) HATETA-sBERBESH (@
The following table contains details of the hedging instrument used in the TREEVR_BI_F+A=+—8XK
Group's hedging strategy as at 31 December 2022: EEE PRI ANE AT RS

Carrying Hedging
amount of gain Hedge
hedging adjusted  ineffectiveness
instrument, against recognised in
Term net inventories profit or loss
HHTH REEREN RRIB TR
k-3 BREEE Eapll 6 Bk
HK$SM HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET BEET
As at 31 December 2022
RZZ2Z_F+-RA=+—H
Fair value hedges NFEEHA 3 months (8.8) 8.0 =
=1@a
As at 31 December 2021
RZZ2Z—&5+-A=+—H
Fair value hedges A Ep 3 months (4.9) 46 =
=1@a
The following table contains details of the hedged items under the Group’s TREGVR B _F+A=+—H=RK
hedging strategy as at 31 December 2022: EENERRIRIE TN ERAEEFE
2022 2021
ZEICHE —E-—%
HK$M HK$M
BEAET BEET
Carrying amount of the hedged item EHHIER ZREE
Accumulated amount of fair value hedge BHIPIEE QAT EEPREEN
adjustments on the hedged item included Rt £8E GtAEE FIEE REE)
in the carrying amount of the hedged item 8.0 4.6
Net carrying amount of the hedged item SFATFENEHNIEBRERE
included in the inventories as recognised (RirEEEBBERTRED)
in the consolidated balance sheet 334.2 726.4
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SFaMEERME

go— = =
25 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 25 {TEEMTIA (@
(continued)
Notes: (continued) MisE @ (48)
(ii) Trading derivatives - foreign currency forward contracts (ii) RBTETA-SMEEHEN
The Group entered into foreign currency forward contracts in order to NERMTLIMNBIERENLURESNER
mitigate its exposure to the foreign currency risk. These contracts were Mo ESNNREHREARPREE
measured at fair value using quoted forward exchange rates at the end of ERATESE HEBREERGSE
the reporting period, with gain or loss recognised directly in consolidated R I E M P R8P RERR o

statement of profit or loss within ‘other gains, net’.

The notional principal amount of the outstanding foreign currency forward REENEBRBEESANBELRSEOS
contracts were approximately HK$327.5 million (2021: HK$332.8 million). 7 SEEBT(CE_—F:332888%
7o) °
26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 26 BERFRITER  ZIRHIR
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH TERRREERFEEER
EQUIVALENTS =]
Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks to BIRFRTEMRIERRTEFEUAR
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group. Deposits EEERN—RIBTEEFEEFRNE
amounting to HK$43.0 million (2021: HK$125.4 million) have HeolFR43.08EB T (CE_—F:
been pledged to secure bank borrowings, and are therefore 1254888 m) BB ERITERN
classified as current assets (Note 35). ER AEESBEARIHEE (s
35) °
Restricted bank deposits represent the restricted cash of HK$9.3 ZIREIBITERIEEAZHHERE
million (2021: HK$17.0 million) placed in escrow bank accounts SHEIFTEIRITIRA PR IEHIIRE9.3
for the Paycheck Protection Program in the US. BEET (CEZ—F17.088%
JT) °
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S e M ERE

26 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, RESTRICTED 26
BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

ERRIR1TER - ZIRFIIR
TERRRERREEEE
B (@)
BeRBSSEENSRAPAA=
BARUTHREREWRTER

2022 2021
—E_C %
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Cash at bank and on hands IRITAFHEREE 705.6 777.7
Security deposit (Note) ReEE (5D 8.1 4.6
Total cash and cash equivalents as per FeRERERZRER
consolidated statement of cash flows fﬁ%?ﬁélﬁ B#48%8 713.7 782.3
Note: The balance represents deposits placed with financial institutions as security Wizt . BRETASHBBEARGESER R
for open metal commodity future contracts. The security deposits are non- Hﬁ% HABERNZE - REBERH TR
interest bearing.
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 &
Numbers
of shares Share capital
it & B (&N
(Thousands) HK$M
(FBR) BEET
Authorised share capital EER A
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as at RIZ2Z—F—HF—8-
1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, 2 —%+"A=+—H~
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 _E__F—-A—HK
2+ ZHA=+t—HzZ
SREE.OBITZ ZER 5,000,000 50
Issued and fully paid BETRER
As at 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, (‘:—\, e e =
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 “2—H+ZHA=+—8"
“E-"F-A—HK
B+ RB=+—H 1,605,152 16.1
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OTHER RESERVES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

28 HthfzE

Foreign
Capital Statutory Enterprise  Remeasurement ~ Remeasurement currency
Share redemption Capital general expansion on financial of pension translation
premium reserve reserve reserve fund assets plans reserve Total
) ) BNt EfitE |
RiER  RAREHE Ratih  EE-REE  CEIRES EHEE BREsl  SMRERRR @t
HKSM HK$M HK$M HKSM HKM HK$M HK$M HKSM HKSM
BE%R BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET BEET
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i)
() GEI)] ()
Asat 1 January 2021 RZ%Z-5-F-H 59119 03 4 107.1 107.1 (1.0 (82) 677.2 70098
Currenqy translation differences SN EHZERER
on foreign operations - - - - - - - (315.7) (315.7)
Change in fair value of RATEFARMEEREZ
financial assets at fai value SHEEZATERD
through other comprehensive iR
income, net of tax - - - - - 31 - - 31
Remeasurement of post-employment X3t BEEERRHKE
benefit obligations, net of tax BHEE NBRE - - - - - - 55 - 55
Share of other comprehensive loss of A E R 2 EM2EHE
joint ventures - - - - - - 14 - 14
As at 31 December 2021 RZBZ-£+2AZ+-A 59119 03 014 1071 107.1 39 (13 3615 6,704.1
Asat 1 January 2022 RZE-“5-F-H 59119 03 m4 107.1 107.1 (3.9) (13) 3615 6,704.1
Curency translation differences ~ BNEBZERER
on foreign operations - - - - - - - (3162) (316.2)
Change in fair value of RATEARMRERGZ
financial asets at far value SHERZATERY
through other comprehensive il
income, net of tax - - - - - (26) - - (26)
Remeasurement of post-employment B33t EREERFHH
benefit obligations, net of tax BREM NRRE - - - - - - 08 - 08
Share of other comprehensive EfagrEz A2 ENE
income of joint ventures = o - - - - 38 - 38
As at 31 December 2022 RZB-ZE+ZR=1+-H 59119 03 m4 107.1 1071 (6.5) 33 453 6,389.9
Notes: P5E
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BAEERQAIRDNR T N\FEAE
value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries HRFTNE T AR A RRMD R EREY
acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the EEERNABD MR ERETRMZEE
nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange and (b) a HNEERDO -ZZE—ZSFERRRERZ
capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010. “afe
(ii) Statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund represent the (ii) KABFEFRABNAHRERMARE

appropriation of 10% of profit after tax determined based on the relevant
accounting rules and regulations of the PRC as required by the Articles
of Association of the Company's PRC subsidiaries. The appropriation may
cease to apply if the balance of the statutory general reserve and enterprise
expansion fund has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’ registered capital.
The statutory general reserve and enterprise expansion fund can be used to
make up prior year losses or to increase share capital.

BERIRREBERAR

BREPEARME S RA KA REER R
MEBEFN0%BAEE —REFEREEE
REZ -HEE—REBREEZERES
BRERE R E F AR M EABI50% 0 BIET
RIEBE - FE—REFRLCEZRES
AARBRAEFEBRBRIIEMARE
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FEMBIIRERMEE
29 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 29 FEERER
Share of net liabilities of
subsidiaries
B FRATAERE
2022 2021
—E-- BT
HKS$M HK$M
BEATT BEBTT
As at 1 January n—B—H (14.4) (13.4)
Transactions with non-controlling interests B2 JEIERG TR EITT 25 5.7 6.6
Share of loss for the year, net FREGEEZE (27.1) (10.0)
Share of other comprehensive FEMLEMET (BB18) &
(loss)/income, net FEE (7.7) 2.4
As at 31 December w+=ZB=+—H (43.5) (14.4)
30 BORROWINGS 30 f&mK
2022 2021
—EIH T4
HK$M HK$M
BEATT BEAT
Non-current JETRED
Bank borrowings  8RfFE®* 1113 508
Current B
Bank borrowings RITER 286.1 493.9
Other borrowings HER 744.7 1,117.2
1,030.8 1,611.1
Total borrowings Rtk 1,142.1 1,661.9
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30 BORROWINGS (continued)

Bank borrowings mature at various dates up to 2025 (2021:
2026) and bear average coupons ranging from 0.9% to 12% per

annum (2021: 0.9% to 8.0% per annum).

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group’s bank and other

borrowings were repayable as follows:

Bank borrowings

S E M ERIEE

30 f&®R (&)
RITEFRNAR BRI BEE_T
TREALE(CEZ—F I ZE N
F) FHEBFEMENF09%E12%
(CTEZ—F  FFZFE0.9%ZE8.0%) ©

ATE 2 —-®#+_"H
=t+—H xEBERTREMERZ
BRIERNOTE

Other borrowings Total
Hitifig R st
2021 2022 2021 2022 2021

“E--f CZB--E C-B--#5 ZBE-_f C"E-_-§

HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM

BEArT EBE8Er BEEx BEBEn  BHEBERT BEERD

Within 1 year —ER 4939 744.7 1,117.2 1,030.8 1,611.1
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 13.5 - - 88.8 13.5
Between 2 and 5 years MERF 373 - - 22,5 373
50.8 - - 113 50.8

544.7 744.7 1,117.2 1,142.1 1,661.9

The carrying amounts of the bank and other borrowings are

IRITREMERZEEEDUTIE

denominated in the following currencies: HEtE
2022 2021
= e
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
EUR BRT 45.2 111.2
uss$ E7T 768.2 1,222.2
RMB UNESL 163.6 126.5
Czech Koruna (“CZK") Rl (MET TR 164.9 174.9
PLN LR 0.2 27.1
1,142.1 1,661.9
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30 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had aggregate facilities of
approximately HK$3,541.7 million (2021: HK$4,067.2 million)
for loans, factoring and guarantees. Unused facilities as at the
same date amounted to approximately HK$1,135.8 million (2021:
HK$818.3 million) which were uncommitted facilities. These
facilities are secured/guaranteed by certain properties, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, investment properties, inventories,
trade receivables, assets held for sale and bank deposits with an
aggregate amount of HK$3,722.9 million (2021: HK$4,330.7
million) (Note 35).

Included in other borrowings was a Syndicated Term Loan drawn
down in 2018 with a principal balance of US$95.0 million (2021:
US$140.0 million) as at 31 December 2022, of which US$5.0
million was overdue on that day. Management repaid US$13.2
million of the loan principal on 31 January 2023,
the aforesaid overdue balance and subsequently extended the

including

maturity date of the remaining loan balance from 31 March
2023, with certain partial repayment instalments, to 30 March
2024. The loan was guaranteed by USUMHK, Mr. Tu and certain
subsidiaries of the Company. The Group has pledged the shares
of certain subsidiaries and others assets, including certain land in
the PRC, to secure the loan (Note 2.1.1).

As at 31 December 2022, current bank borrowings of HK$163.0
million (2021: HK$175.2 million) could not meet certain restrictive
financial undertakings and might be immediately repayable
should the relevant bank exercise their right of demand.
Subsequent to year-end, the Group has obtained waiver letters
from relevant banks confirming that such non-compliance would
not trigger their immediate demand for repayment of these loan
balances.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values.
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S e M ERE

30

famk (48)
ATE-_HE+"A=Z+—H ' F&
EmER RERERZEEMHRE
HWA3ISMNTEEBT(CE—F:
4,0672E8 BT -FBEXBAEE
#97%1,135. 8@%%713(-7—_35
8183BEBT) " EAXRKHEEH ¢
%E%Em%¥%¥\@%&mﬁ\@
AHEE REYE - FE EHERK
MEFEHEEERIBTERALEE
3722988 BT (TE T —%F 14,3307
BEBT) (FIRI R (F5E35) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases various land and land use rights, property,
plant and equipment (Note 15). Rental contracts are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 to 62 years but may have extension
options. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of
the Group's lease liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021:

S E M ERIEE

31 HE&[E
rEBRAERALI R T MERE-
MR fs Rt (Y5E15) - BE S/
BEIE—ERT_FENEEMHR
Ve B] B B L B S o M B IR RUR(E
MEEETERD B3 2BTENGK
TR B A A o 7 B 19 5% 3 4 IR 0 A ) 22

ik

hHo

TRIIRAEBHEEGENR T2
ERTE—F+-B=+—HZ&
TEHEHBER

2022 2021
- —ET—fF
HKS$M HK$M
BEEAT BEEAT
Gross lease liabilities HEaERLE
— minimum lease payments —REBEMR
No later than 1 year TR —5 130.4 186.6
Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years ER—EBNERAE 176.4 173.5
Later than 5 years BRAF 45.0 51.4
351.8 411.5
Future finance charges on leases HENRKMESH (39.8) (44.3)
Present value of lease liabilities HEaENRE 312.0 367.2
The present value of lease HEaENREWNT :
liabilities is as follows:
No later than 1 year TEBR—%F 119.9 1771
Later than 1 year BR—F 192.1 190.1
312.0 367.2
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S e M ERE

31 LEASE LIABILITIES (continued) 31

Interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$11.2 million (2021:
HK$18.6 million) was charged to finance cost for the year ended
31 December 2022 (Note 10).

The total cash outflow for leases was HK$194.7 million (2021:
HK$226.1 million) for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no lease liabilities
were transferred to liabilities directly associated with assets held
for sale (2021: HK$33.2 million).

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 32

The table below outlines where the Group’s post-employment
amounts and activity are included in the consolidated financial
statements.

HEAaE @
HEaGzMEBX1128E8ET (T
T —F 18.6B&EBIT) BFFAERE
B _H#+_A=+—HULEEEZ
IR AR (FizE10) ©

BHE—_Z-_—_#+_F=+—HLHE
EZHEERSRHBEA104ATEES
TT(CEZ—F:226.18EHBT) o

REE_ZE-__F+"“HA=+—HIt
FE IEHEaEEAHEFERE
EEERERANAGEE (CEZ—F:
3325887 °

BREFIETE
FRBLSEE S AGAREREZ
REBLERRHEZLERED-

2022 2021
—E-C B
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Consolidated balance sheet obligations for: &2 & B EBBEERMLUT
BREZEFE:
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) REBHTE FfsEb)) 11.1 18.9
Consolidated statement of profit or loss FEEBEmRMUT
charges included in operating profit for: FIEFTALE RH 22 !
Defined contribution plans (Note (a)) REMAETE (HF5E@Q)) (50.9) (71.9)
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) FERFIFTE FEEb)) - (0.4)
(50.9) (72.3)
Remeasurements for: MU TRIBEZEMFE .
Defined benefit plans (Note (b)) RERH B FF5ED)) 0.8 8.0
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

(a)

(b)

S E M ERIEE

32 BRIAEFFE (B

Defined contribution plans (a) REMFRETE
The Group operates a couple of defined contribution plans AEBEZBLEREHARETE
which receive fixed contributions from group companies. HEEE QB WEEREHER &
The Group’s legal or constructive obligation for these plans EEMZEAHT ZEERET
is limited to the contributions. The expense recognised EEMERBR - AFEMZE
in the current year in relation to these contributions was RIS 2 F2 45098 B HE T
HK$50.9 million (2021: HK$71.9 million). (CEZ—F 71985887 °
Defined benefit plans (b) HRERFIEE
The Group operates several defined benefit pension plans AEEMAERREENETT
for selected former and active employees of the Group's Q}EE’\J“‘“%EH\JE&T‘EE%L
certain subsidiaries in Germany. The plans provide benefits EETRERMBAKEETEIZ
in the form of a guaranteed level of pension payable for EtEREBEREZKEEEE
life. The plans are mostly financed by the Group's internal B o ZEFTEKREDHAER
resources. A part of the plans is covered by plans assets in ABEREE -MzE2EH D
the form of reinsurance policies. HUBRBREFLANGEEE
=
The Group’s major plans are valued by qualified actuaries KEFEZ T EAASFHGER
annually using the projected unit credit method. The % B R 52 A TR AR B8 i 50 AR VA 1
amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are B -RNEEEEABERABRRZ
determined as follows: SERILEUATHAETE
2022 2021
—E-HF B4
HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEAT
Present value of funded obligations BA@EMEENIEE - 12.1
Present value of unfunded obligations B EERIRE 11.1 14.1
Fair value of plan assets FEBEENAFE - (7.3)
Liabilities in the consolidated balance #%REEEBERMNE
sheet 111 18.9
BLEREEERAR —S-—sR 237
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32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The movement in the present values of defined benefit

32 EBAEFEE (@
(b) REEFIHE @D

FNRERNEERRERS S

obligations and fair value of plan assets over the year is as BENATFEZHNOT -
follows:
2022
ZZZCZE
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERH HEEEMN
BENRE ATE st
HK$M HKSM HK$M
HEAT HEAT BRAT
As at 1 January K—B—H 26.2 (7.3) 18.9
Current service cost EHRRBAE = = -
Interest expense FIEHZ 0.1 - 0.1
Interest income FIEWA - - =
(Gain)/loss on settlement 8 s /5E (11.3) 6.8 (4.5)
15.0 (0.5) 14.5
Remeasurements: BiTEHE !
Effects from change in EREEHNTE
discount rates (0.3) - (0.3)
Effect from changes in financial BB RBREBNTE
assumptions (0.8) - (0.8)
Effect from other experienced HEiz QR ENT 2
based adjustments 0.3 - 0.3
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ fEIEEMNLIR FEIE
amounts included in interest AR EMANEEE
income - - =
(0.8) - (0.8)
Currency translation ERESH
differences (1.6) 0.5 (1.5)
Contributions s
— Employers —Ex - - -
Payments from plans: SRS
- Benefit payments — A (1.1) = (1.1)
As at 31 December B+ZB=+—H 11.1 - 1.1
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SFaMEERME

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 32 BRAREFEE @)

(b) Defined benefit plans (continued) (b) REEFEE @
2021
it St
Present
value of
defined Fair value
benefit of plan
obligations assets Total
RERH HEEEN
EEMRE NFE 1@zt
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBT BEAT EBAT
As at 1 January ®—BA—H 36.9 (7.2) 29.7
Current service cost SHEREME 0.4 = 0.4
Interest expense FERHX 0.1 - 0.1
Interest income FEWA = 0.2) (0.2)
374 (7.4) 30.0
Remeasurements: BHtE
Effects from change in BREEHNTE
discount rates (1.0) - (1.0)
Effect from other experienced HthiZ Qs EHNRENT 2
based adjustments (6.9) - (6.9)
Return on plan assets, excluding ~ stEIEEMNER > FE1E
amounts included in interest AR BMANEEE
income - 0.1 (0.1)
(7.9 0.1 (8.0)
Currency translation EREHE
differences (2.0) 0.5 (1.5)
Contributions {3
- Employers —EF - (0.3) (0.3)
Payments from plans: SRR
— Benefit payments o LARNEN (1.3) = (1.3)
As at 31 December R+ZB=+—-8 26.2 (73) 18.9
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BRAEFIEHE ()
(b) FEEFIHE @
FRERFRRY = B E BT :

32 RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued) 32
(b) Defined benefit plans (continued)

The principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:

2022 2021

—E-C BT

HK$M HK$M

BEET BEEAT

Discount rate ARIRZ 3.10% 0.70%
Future pension increase rate AR R B I AN LE = 1% - 2% 1% - 2%
Future salary increase rate FREEMFLLE - —

SRR B M B R
B2 BEEMT :

The sensitivity of the defined benefit plans to changes in
the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on defined benefit liabilities

HAERIEANTE
2022 2021
-%-C ZEIf

Change in _Increase in Decrease in _ Changein Increase in  Decrease in
assumption assumption assumption assumption  assumption  assumption
Rees  RREM  BRAEL BREH 0 BRRED GERED
HKSM HKSM HK$M HK$M
BE#AT HBEERT BEBAET HBHEAR
Discount rate LA 0.50% decrease increase 0.50% decrease increase
by 0.4 by 0.4 by 1.5 by 1.6
0.4 1&mo.4 "5 1E101.6
Pension increase rate BREIZINLEE 0.25% increase  decrease 0.25% increase decrease
by 0.2 by 0.2 by 0.7 by 0.7
18 mo.2 H10.2 ®h00.7  EA0.7

SRS TR R — B
HIRBBTIFAA LB RS T
B L BETATAERS A

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an
assumption while holding all other assumptions constant.
In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of
the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the
sensitivity of the defined benefit obligations to significant
actuarial assumptions the same method (present value
of the defined benefit obligations calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting

AEACENEAHEABER
RZHHER EEBEAELRS
BEEBRRTERIAZERESE
EAERZ 7% BILLTEHRE 52

period) has been applied as when calculating the pension
liabilities recognised within the consolidated balance sheet.
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FaMBRRMEE
33 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES 33 B5 REMHMEMRIE
2022 2021
ZEIZHF T
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BEERATT
Trade payables B ENRIE 1,418.8 1,801.3
Contract liabilities (Note (i) anas’ W) 57.9 40.0
Other taxes payable HihfELHRIE 38.0 53.8
Accrued salaries and employee benefits et & REE RN 138.8 164.6
Provision for claims and contingencies RERNAEIEERE 2.4 3.4
Accrued professional expenses FESTE R 39.1 31.2
Asset retirement obligations BERESE 68.5 69.5
Other payables and accruals HMEAHIEREST &R
(Note (i) (T EEGi)) 113.6 183.1
1,877.1 2,346.9
Less: non-current portion B IERBEE D
Asset retirement obligations EERESE (68.5) (69.5)
Other payables HAhrE T =IE (30.3) (37.3)
1,778.3 2,240.1
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33 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES

(continued)

Notes:

(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in the current

E5  RiE R E MG TRIE

(48)
Fy5E -

0] e EEERH S

TRITNARSHBAEINEEHS

reporting period relates to carried-forward contract liabilities. HeEERAN W -
2022 2021
bt —BC—F
HK$SM HK$M
BEET BEET
Revenue recognised that was included in the BEAFYENEEEGRAN
contract liabilities balance at the beginning of
the year 40.0 18.1
(ii) As at 31 December 2022, no receipt in advance for disposals of certain assets (ii) RIEZ—F+A=+—H > TERF

held for sales in the PRC (2021: HK$44.3 million).

The aging analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date

EHESETRFERELEEZRERE (2

BT —F I 4A3EEBTT) ©

BZRMRERBRERARZRED

was as follows: T -
2022 2021
T T —fF
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
0 - 90 days 1,374.0 1,747.6
91 — 180 days 25.6 11.9
Over 180 days 19.2 41.8
1,418.8 1,801.3
The carrying amounts of the trade, bills and other payables B ERKREMECARBZREE
approximate their fair values. HENFERS-
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 1REREDZEMT A

Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through  comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATEHA
REHERE  BATEHA Hit2 &
FIRZEE BaZEE KEzEE o
HKSM HKSM HK$SM HKSM
BRET BEAT BEAT BEAT
31 December 2022 ZB-ZE+ZA=+-AH
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ HEBEEBERIEE
Trade, bills and other receivables B5 EBREMERZIE
excluding non-financial assets TEEFERERE 1,481.4 - - 1,481.4
Amounts due from related parties FE W RRE 5 0B 82.7 - - 82.7
Derivative financial instruments fTEEmMIA - 17.1 - 17.1
Pledged bank deposits and BERRTERK
restricted bank deposits ZRERITER 523 - - 52.3
Cash and cash equivalents RekFELEEER 713.7 - - 713.7
Financial assets at fair value through BATESABRZ
profit or loss EHEE - 0.8 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFARMEERZZ
other comprehensive income EREE - - 84.8 84.8
Other non-current assets HiEReEE 4.1 - - 441
Total s 2,334.2 17.9 84.8 2,436.9
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34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 1ZERIEDZ2EMT A (@

(continued)
Assets at
fair value
Assets at through the
Assets at fair value other
amortisation through comprehensive
cost profit or loss income Total
BATEFA
REHERA  BATESA Hi2HE
FIiRZ EE BaZEE Wz EE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEAT BEET BEAT
31 December 2021 —E_-f#+”°B=+-H
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~ SABEABRZEE
Trade, bills and other receivables B5 EEMEMERIE
excluding non-financial assets TEEESHEE 1,877.3 - - 18773
Amounts due from related parties PR A B 66.8 - - 66.8
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - 311 - 311
Pledged bank deposits and BERRITERK
restricted bank deposits ZRGIRITER 1424 - - 1424
Cash and cash equivalents RekHFEEEER 7823 - - 7823
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFABRZ
profit or loss SHEE - 08 - 0.8
Financial assets at fair value through BRATESAREME2ARZZ
other comprehensive income FHEE - - 913 913
Other non-current assets HiEReEE 8.9 - - 8.9
Total b 2,877.7 319 91.3 3,000.9
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34 HENBSZEMIA (B

(continued)
Other Liabilities
financial at fair value
liabilities at through
amortised profit or
cost loss Total
F 188 85 pY 2 BATE
FERz  ETABEZ
Hitma s =i st
HK$M HK$M HK$M
BE&ETT BE&ET BEET
31 December 2022 —E-__H#+ZB=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated #GEEEEERZ AR
balance sheet
Borrowings EEN 1,142.1 - 1,142.1
Lease liabilities HEaRE 312.0 - 312.0
Derivative financial instruments #T4& &R T A - 15.1 15.1
Trade, bills and other payables, 25« ZE % Hith
excluding non-financial FE(IT RIS REIE
liabilities FFERAaE 1,710.3 - 1,710.3
Amounts due to related parties FE{T B H% 75 R IB 68.4 - 68.4
Total 4Bt 3,232.8 15.1 3,247.9
31 December 2021 —B2-_—#+”-B=+—H
Liabilities as per consolidated 4EaEEEERZ AR
balance sheet
Borrowings EEN 1,661.9 - 1,661.9
Lease liabilities HE&aE 367.2 - 367.2
Derivative financial instruments #T4& £/ TE - 39.4 39.4
Trade, bills and other payables, &5 - Z¥#5 & H 1t
excluding non-financial FE(TRIE > RELIE
liabilities JEEREE 1,938.9 - 1,938.9
Amounts due to related parties  F&E{J BB 75 =B 104.9 - 104.9
Total 4Bt 4,072.9 394 4,112.3
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la
SARBHmRMEE
35 PLEDGES OF ASSETS 35 BEKH
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged RREHER AEBSERUTEE
the following assets to secure certain borrowings and general DIEREFEAER 2 ETFTERR—K
banking facilities granted to the Group: RITHE -
2022 2021
T B
HK$M HK$M
BEET BE&AT
Property, plant and equipment ME- BB REE 1,507.9 1,519.8
Right-of-use assets FRAREE 142.6 1453
Investment properties KEYE 54.3 26.2
Inventories =8 1,006.1 1,065.3
Trade receivables B 5 WA 969.0 1,448.7
Pledged bank deposits BIEFIRITER 43.0 125.4
3,722.9 4,330.7
36 COMMITMENTS 36 ik
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAKIE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, significant capital NZEZFRZZEZ—F+Z
expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred is as A=+—H >BiINEXREELZ
follows: BEABABEZOT :
2022 2021
- - S
HKS$M HK$M
BHEBT BEERATT
Capital expenditure contracted for BEIAERR
but not provided in the REMBIRRPEEDN
consolidated financial statements BAMY
in respect of:
— acquisition of property, plantand ~ — XY HEKRRE
equipment 63.4 88.6
— additions in construction in —AEEEIR
progress 9.5 14.4
72.9 103.0
Authorised but not contracted for: EEEEHRTN .
— additions of property, —hEBEVE -BEKRFE
plant and equipment 11.5 9.6
— additions in construction in —AEEEIR
progress 2.0 2.1
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36 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments - as lessor (b)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

36 HIE (4B)

KEHERE—(FAEEA
RN B SRS 2 RKE
WRBERE BT -

2022 2021

—E-HF B4

HK$M HK$M

BEET BE&AT

No later than 1 year TEBR—%F 11.7 15.9
Later than 1 year and no later BR—FEFRERASE

than 5 years 11.6 24.2

Later than 5 years BRAF 17.2 18.9

40.5 59.0

37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by USUMHK which owns 60.95% of
the Company’s shares. The remaining 39.05% of the shares
are widely held. The ultimate holding company of the Group is
Loncin Group Co., Ltd. (incorporated in the PRC). The ultimate

controlling party of the Group is Mr. Tu.

(a) Transactions

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with its related parties which mainly comprises
of joint ventures, associates, Loncin International Limited,
USUMHK and their subsidiaries during the years ended 31

December 2022 and 2021.

37 FABARS

rEERABEBEN ABEBHE
BARRE60.95% 1% o ELER39.05% %
PHEZBEEAFA FERRKE
KRB AEEEEFRRAE (RFEH

SEMRARIL) o AnEE B ARSI 7T AR ST

o

(@ X%
MREEGS

P ER R A AR D I
BENAEERBEE-ST
FRZFI-F+ZA=+—H
IE 52 B R EL R
EELE BEAR ERER

(X288

BRAB ABEBREENTF
AR ETUTRS

BERIRREBERAR
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SARBHmRMEE
37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37 RAAERZ @)
(continued)
(a) Transactions (continued) @ X5 @
All of the transactions were carried out in the normal FIBXZHENEAEEBEEBEE
course of the Group's business and on terms as agreed R 5% i E N IRRGE
between the transacting parties. They are summarised as 170 BN
follows:
2022 2021
—E-C BT
HKS$M HK$M
BHEBT BEET
Sales of goods to MU TEHHEE R
— Joint ventures —aEhE 328.1 454.2
— Related parties — R S 28.6 92.8
Purchases of goods from TUTE S HER R
— An associate —HENE] - (0.5)
— Joint ventures —5E ¥ 514.1 (598.5)
— Related parties — R S 147.4 (213.3)
Purchase of property, plant and TUTEFERBEY =
equipment from R 5 K s& 1
— A related party —RA A - (0.3)
Interest income from KEUTEAZREWA
— Joint ventures —aghE 0.7 0.8
— Related parties — RS 0.6 0.8
Interest expense to TAFUTEHZHERE
— Related parties — A 0.6 (0.7)
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37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(a) Transactions (continued)

SFaMEERME

37 FAMAERS (@)

() =% @)

2022 2021
—EC TET £
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEBT
Other income from (Note (i) KEUTE A ZEMBA
(M =E())
— Joint ventures —aEhE 1.9 2.3
— Related parties — RS 3.4 3.9
Administrative expenses to (Note (i) I FUTEHZTEEX
D)
— Joint ventures —BEhE - (0.1)
— Related parties —FAMA (18.0) (3.9)
Notes: M5
(i) Other income mainly comprised management fee income, rental (i) HMWATEZEEEEHERAE

income, service income and commission income.

(ii) Administrative expenses mainly comprised management fee, lease
expense and service fee.

A RFBFWARABE A

(ii) THRXTEaEEESE AR
S RARFBE -
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AR
37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37 RAEARS (@
(continued)
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEEHM
Key management includes chairman of the Company, EEEEEREARBERE -2
all directors and other senior managements. The BESKAMSREEAS 5
compensations paid or payable to key management for REREREMENRENEE
employee services are shown below: BIEEMFHMIIRAT
2022 2021
-t - 3 - S
HKS$M HK$M
BEAT BEET
Wages and salaries, including TEMx BIEEARAS R
restructuring costs and other B IFEEER
termination benefits 35.1 33.0
Pension costs — defined contribution E{REiA—F E(HZ T2
plans 0.5 0.1
Other employee benefits HtEEREH 0.3 0.1
Total “ast 35.9 33.2
() Year-end balances () EFEREERR
2022 2021
s F £
HKS$M HK$M
BEET BEET
Receivables from: FEWLL R R IS ©
— Joint ventures (Note (i) — &8 (M) 65.1 56.7
— Related parties (Note (i) —RAEE S (MF5EG3)) 17.6 10.1
82.7 66.8
Payables to: FER U TR ANIE
- Joint ventures (Note (ii)) —aEEFE GHED) (33.1) (53.8)
— Related parties (Note (ii)) —FBAEE T (R 5EG0) (35.3) (51.1)
(68.4) (104.9)
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S E M ERIEE

—— — —
37 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 37 RAEAERZ @)
(continued)
() Year-end balances (continued) () &R ®@
Notes: FfEE
(i) The receivables from joint ventures and related parties include trade (i) FElREEPEKRMEARIBEEE
receivables and other receivables. Trade receivables are repayable B o RWFIER Bt R RIE B
within 60 days, and other receivables are repayable on demand. Both ZFEWRERIEARR60H AEE » Hith
are unsecured and non-interest bearing. FEWGRIER /B ZREIR - ZMEE

FIAH R BRI RS

(if) The payables to joint ventures and related parties include trade (ii) ERNEErERMELARIBERE
payables and other payables. Trade payables are repayable within 60 BoREARIEREMENRIE &Z
days, and other payable are repayable on demand. Both are unsecured SFEIFRIEARG0H AEE  Hith
and non-interest bearing. FEFRIERIBIZ ZREIR - ZMEE

FIAHRERIRRTER

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38 EFEHRERE

(a) Directors’ emoluments () EEM=E
The remuneration of the directors for the years ended 31 HE_Z-Z B —fF
December 2022 and 2021 is set out below: +-B=+—RHIEEZEEH
EME AT
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees  allowances bonus contributions benefits Total
RIKAER
Year ended 31 December 2022 e HEREM RREAL HEEE HitigRH st
HECSZZETRSt+-HIEEE HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEET BEET
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RBERE - 40 3.0 - - 7.0
Mr. Li Linhui (Note (i) THERE (WEH) - 28 18 - 0.1 4.7
Mr. Miao Yu BREE - 0.6 0.3 - - 0.9
Mr. Yao Jietian (Note (i) SRR A (r5LGi) - 33 18 0.2 0.1 5.4
Mr. Wang Li (Note (iif) TERE (F5i) = = = = = =
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Prof. Li Zhiguo (Note (viii)) EEHE (F 5 i) 0.2 - - - - 0.2
Prof. Yan Guowan (Note (xii)) SEEHR (i) 0.2 = = = = 0.2
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (Note (xii)) AfESIEAE (i) 0.2 - - - - 0.2

0.6 10.7 6.9 0.2 0.2 18.6
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38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

EEEMRiED (@)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () EFHME @&
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and  Performance scheme Other
Fees allowances bonus  contributions benefits Total
RAEH
Year ended 31 December 2021 e HehEk RREL BEE HtER st
HECZ--F+-A=1+-HLEE HKSM HK$M HK§M HKSM HK$M HK§M
BEAT BEET BEET BEAT BEET BEAET
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Tu Jianhua RRERE - 40 35 - - 75
Mr. Li Linhui (Note () THBESE (H15H) - 0.1 - - - 0.1
Mr. Miao Yu BREE - 0.6 02 = = 08
Mr. Yao Jietian (Note (i) SRR 74 (s (i)) = = = = = =
Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan (Note (iv))  Rafael Heinrich Suchan?t 4
(Mizk (i) - 6.5 - - - 6.5
Mr. Martin Simon (Note (v)) Martin Simon%t 4 (fit35(v)) = 37 14 = = 5.1
Mr. Chen Chunguo (Note (vi) BEELE (V) = 12 = = = 12
Mr. Ding Zhiyi (Note (vii)) FEHEE (i 5Evi) - 09 - - - 09
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Prof. Li Zhiguo (Note (viii) EEEHR (5 vii) 02 = = = = 02
Dr. Loke Yu (Note (ix) R EL (X)) 02 = = = - 02
Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew (Note (x)) Sk (faK) 02 - - - _ 02
Ms. Yang Yali (Note (xi) R () 0.05 = = = = 0.05
Mr. Wang Qiwei (Note (x)) TEH6ERE () 0.05 = = = = 0.05
0.7 17.0 5.1 - - 228
Notes: B st
(i) Mr. Li Linhui was appointed as an executive director and the chairman (i) EMEBEEB S -_—F+_A4

(iii)

of the board of director with effect from 13 December 2021 and
resigned as an executive director and ceased to be chairman of the
Board and the chairman of each of the Executive Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Strategy and Investment Committee and
the Pricing Committee and ceased to assume the responsibilities of
a chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 21 March
2023.

Mr. Yao Jietian was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 13 December 2021.

Mr. Wang Li was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 9 June 2022.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan was appointed as an executive director
and the Chief Executive Officer (“CEO") of the Company with effect
from 1 March 2020 and was removed as an executive director by an
ordinary resolution duly passed in the extraordinary general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company on 7 January 2022. He was also
ceased to be the CEO of the Company with effect from 7 January
2022. His emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the CEO of the Company.

Mr. Martin Simon was appointed as an executive director and the
Chief Financial Officer ("CFO") of the Company with effect from 23
June 2020. He also acted as the CFO of one of the major operation
groups of the Group.

With effect from 14 December 2021, he resigned as an executive
director and the CFO of the Company.

His emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by
him as the CFOs.

Mr. Chen Chunguo was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 December 2020 and resigned with
effect from 3 March 2021.

Mr. Ding Zhiyi was appointed as an executive director of the Company
with effect from 29 December 2020 and resigned with effect from 5
March 2021.

Prof. Li Zhiguo was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 24 May 2021.

Dr. Loke Yu resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 6 December 2021.

Mr. Ko Frankie Andrew was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 19 February 2020
and resigned with effect from 29 December 2020.

He was re-appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 5 March 2021 and resigned again with
effect from 6 December 2021.

SFaMEERME

EEEMRiED (@)

() EFM=E @
GERNC)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi) Ms. Yang Yali and Mr. Wang Qiwei were appointed as the
independent non-executive directors of the Company with effect from
29 December 2020 and resigned with effect from 5 March 2021.

(xii) Prof. Yan Guowan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 4 March 2022.

(xiii) ~ Ms. Szeto Yuk Ting was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 4 March 2022.

(xiv)  During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during both years.

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu lJianhua, Mr. Miao Yu, Mr. Li
Hinhui, and Mr. Yao Jietia in the amount of HK$18,000,
HK$18,000, HK$18,000 and HK$18,000, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
made contributions to the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme for Mr. Tu Jianhua, Mr. Miao Yu, Mr. Yao
Jietian, Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan, Mr. Chen Chunguo and
Mr. Ding Zhiyi in the amount of HK$18,000, HK$19,500,
HK$1,500, HK$18,000, HK$6,000 and HK$6,000,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled
bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such directors

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and controlled
entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the financial year
(2021: Nil).

(9]

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SARBHmRMEE
39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 39 REFRFHE
Reconciliation from profit before income tax to cash generated PREFISI AR A B S PTIS IR S HAR

from operations:

2022 2021
e T —F
HK$M HK$M
BEAT BEATT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEEMBHRER
Profit before income tax PRETEIATRF] 404.0 883.7
Adjustments for: MUTRIERE .
Finance costs (Note 10) B A (Hi5E10) 195.0 2433
Finance income (Note 10) BBUA (fEE10) (8.3) (9.5)
Dividend income (Note 6) R U A (Mizt6) (5.7) (5.0)
Depreciation and amortisation (Note 8) TE R (fi5E8) 363.3 406.7
Fair value gain on derivative financial TEEMIAEZ RFE
instruments, net (Note 7) a3 5E (FFsE7) (15.7) (3.2)
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets at fair BATEFABRZ S/
value through profit or loss (Note 7) BEZATE WH)
B518 (M5E7) (3.2 0.5
(Gain)/loss on disposals of property, HEME - BRE RSB
plant and equipment and UREREEEY (Km) /
right-of-use assets (Note 7) 518 (EE7) (35.3) 32.9
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HERFHEEEZ WE
(Note 7) GER) (156.7) (113.1)
Paycheck Protection Program loan forgiveness TERBFHEETRL
(Note 7) (Py5E7) = (40.2)
(Reversal of)/provision for impairments SRIEE (RERR) /BE
on financial assets, net PR (15.9) 32.9
Provision for impairments on inventories, net FEREREZE (H:F8)
(Note 8) 33.6 31.3
Provision for impairments on property, plant, M- -BRERREZ
and equipment (Note 7) HERE (7)) 1.0 1.3
Provision for impairment on investments in joint REA=REZFE
ventures (Note 7) M (WE7) 73.3 73
Provision for impairments on intangible assets ~ EEEZ BEEE (f:E7)
(Note 7) - 21.0
Provision for gain on disposal and deregistration  H & Kt F AT 3k
of subsidiaries or joint ventures (Note 7) BEPEZINEERE
( MI5E7) - (11.0)
Share of post-tax loss/(profit) of an associate FEALEE N B IRIR B RS 1R
/ G&#) 1.6 (0.8)
Share of post-tax profit of joint ventures MBI &S X RN B IRT] (137.5) (288.2)
Non-cash post-employment benefit expenses FREEEERRERZ
B (1.1) (1.3)
Net foreign exchange losses SNERSIEERE 7.0 6.6
699.4 1,195.2
Changes in working capital EESTES)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories 7(‘5:? b/ (1870) 51.5 (495.6)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade, g5 ?F&ﬁfﬁﬁgﬂﬁwﬁ
bills and other receivables ‘ b/ (1810) 445.2 (625.3)
Change in derivative financial instruments Tﬁiﬁ%ﬂIﬁ@@] 4.0 (32.2)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade, bills and other E% iR AN FE(S 718
payables L) (297.2) 610.9
902.9 653.0
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FaMBRRMEE
39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 39 KEMFHE @)
(continued)
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RiEeRERER HEVME -BEK
disposals of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets REURGEHAEEE ZMERIBEGSE !
comprise:
2022 2021
T HF e S
HK$M HK$M
BHEBT BN
Net book amount of property, ME - -BERZEZREZE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (FFzE14) 18.9 56.0
Net book amount of right-of-use assets FRESEZIREMFE
(Note 15) (M45E15) 55.9 30.8
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant ~ HE¥E - HERREUL
and equipment and right-of-use assets FRAREEEZ WG
(Note 7) (E518) (Mi5%7) 35.3 (32.9)
(Increase)/Decrease in proceeds receivable — FEURFFISFRIE (120) R/ (62.9) 17.7
Reduction in lease liabilities HEa®RLD (6.6) (5.1)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BRERREUKR
plant and equipment and FHEEEZFSMIE
right-of-use assets 40.6 66.5

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from

RiEERERER

HERFHESR

disposals of assets held for sales comprise: EZFTSRIEEE
2022 2021
—E-—% S
HK$M HK$M
BHEAT BE&ET
Net book amount of assets held for sales  FIEHEEZEEZREFE
(Note 24) (Py5E24) 113.2 181.0
Gain on disposals of assets held for sale HEREHEEEZ G
(Note 7) (M$5E7) 156.7 113.1
Receipt in advance (Note 33(ii)) FE R IE (M 5E33(i0) - 443
Related tax expenses refunded by buyers B3R [0l 2 HHEAFRIER 18.7 49
Proceeds from disposals of assets HEFEFHEEEZ
held for sale FRiSTRIE 288.6 343.3
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(continued)

39 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements
in net debt for each of the years presented.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

39

REFRRRE (8

KA BB BFEIM K2 EE
BRSSP EREE) -

Liabilities from financing activities

MEEDELMAE

Lease liabilities Bank Bank Other

due Lease liabilities borrowings Borrowing borrowings

within due due within due after due within
1 year after 1 year 1year 1year 1year Total

R—EREHAN R-ERIEN R-FANEN R-E23EN R-FRIHEN
HEaE HEafE BITER BITER HitvfE™ @t
Net debt as at 1 January 2021 R_E-_—&F—FB—-HNEBIE 2022 3423 604.8 1783 15153 2,842.9
Proceeds/additions FigE/ HE 62.7 34.1 4102 493 - 556.3
Reversals Ml (3.0) (2.1) - - = (5.1)
Repayments BigzE (116.4) (82.3) (466.6) (181.1) (429.1) (1,275.5)
Other non-cash movement HitEREET 57.5 (85.9) (52.8) 126 241 (44.5)
Currency translation differences ERER (25.9) (16.0) (1.7) (8.3) 6.9 (45.0)

Net debt as at 31 December 2021 RIBZ—-F+ZB=+—HN
HHBE 1771 190.1 493.9 50.8 1,117.2 2,029.1
Proceeds/additions Fi8RmE,/ HE 120.1 34.6 161.5 80.5 - 396.7
Reversals e (6.6) - - - - (6.6)
Repayments BIEFE (176.1) 0.8) (337.9) (12.7) (352.6) (880.1)
Other non-cash movement HiERE& &8 26.5 (29.9) - - (20.8) (24.2)
Currency translation differences ERER (21.1) (1.9) (31.4) (7.3) 0.9 (60.8)
Net debt as at 31 December 2022 RZEZZ#+ZHA=+—AK

HHIE 119.9 192.1 286.1 113 744.7 1,454.1
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S E M ERIEE

40 BEERRRRHEES

Balance sheet of the Company TRFIZEEEER
2022 2021
—E-= —E £
Note HK$M HK$M
Iz BEATT BEBT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREMEE
Investment in subsidiaries, unlisted & F AT JE LT 3,500.4 3,500.4
Right-of-use assets FREEE 4.0 8.9
Other deposit Hithizx 0.5 2.7
3,504.9 3,512.0
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables HinpE W =IE 18.0 18.0
Amounts due from subsidiaries B FRABRIE 1,219.3 1,724.6
Cash and cash equivalents REAREEEEB 1.9 22.3
1,239.2 1,764.9
Total assets BEEMHE 4,744.1 5,276.9
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES HEkaE
Equity attributable to AT REGEE D
shareholders of the Company
Share capital A& s 27 16.1 16.1
Reserves EE 3,186.6 3,401.9
Total equity R 3,202.7 3,418.0

BERIRREBERAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&EXRKLEEHEE (@)

(continued)
Balance sheet of the Company (continued) TATZEEGER (@)
2022 2021
—E-= s
Note HK$M HK$M
M 5F BEBT BERBT
LIABILITIES &R
Non-current liabilities ERBAR
Lease liabilities HEARE 2.8 -
2.8 -
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals and other payables FESTE B R HAamELRIE 32.7 32.7
Amounts due to subsidiaries BT FABIE 762.0 704.6
Lease liabilities HEAaE 1.5 8.8
Other borrowings HhfE™® 742.4 1,112.8
1,538.6 1,858.9
Total liabilities BB 1,541.4 1,858.9
Total equity and liabilities HEkBERE 4,744.1 5,276.9
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of KREIZEEBERCBEEEENZ
Directors on 29 March 2023 and was signed on its behalf: ET=F=RBZ+NBHMELHXUT
BERREE
Mr. Tu Jianhua Mr. Qin Yongming
REERE FKBAXE
Director Director

EF EF
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SFaMEERME

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&EXRKEHEES @)

(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company TRFZEEES
Capital
Share  redemption Capital  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
[N
1 E B e Rl RiBE 45t
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEET BEEx BEEx BEExn  BEERD
(Note (i)
(PF=E())
As at 1 January 2021 WoE-—F
—H—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,515.6) 3,612.8
Loss for the year FRER - = - (210.9) (210.9)
Total comprehensive loss ERN2EEBEE
for the year - - - (210.9) (210.9)
As at 31 December 2021 RS- —&
+-B=1+—H 5911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,726.5) 3,401.9
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

S e M ERE

40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 40 BE&EXRKLEEHEE (@)

(continued)
Reserves movement of the Company (continued) TREZREEE (B
Capital
Share redemption Capital Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
% 2 B 5]
A7 B s REHE - RiEHE st
HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M HK$M
BEBET BEBT BEBT BEBET BEBR
(Note (i)
(PFEE(i))
As at 1 January 2022 ATE -
—H—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,726.5) 3,401.9
Loss for the year E R - - - (215.3) (215.3)
Total comprehensive loss ERNREERSE
for the year - - - (215.3) (215.3)
As at 31 December 2022 N_E- &
+ZB=+—H 5,911.9 0.3 216.2 (2,941.8) 3,186.6
Note: B EE
(i) Capital reserve represents the sum of (a) the difference between the nominal (i) BAREER@QFIRBENR T N\FEEE

value of the aggregate share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries

acquired by the Company upon a group reorganisation in 2008 and the

nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange and (b) a

capitalisation of shareholders’ loans in 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SFaMEERME

= == E
41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 4 KRBT Z2FREFHE
COMPANY
(@) General information of principal subsidiaries () FEFATMN—KENR
The table below shows the subsidiaries as at 31 December TRITESIARN-EF
2022, which in the opinion of the Directors, principally +ZR=+—BHEFEEWA
affect the revenue, net assets or business aspects of the FEEREBREIEFEZTA
Group. To give details of all subsidiaries would, in the Bl EBEERA REFMABTFAE
opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive ZHBERESRIEBR IR
length.
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BETRBRRES/ FEAFEEMERE
FARRHE g AWML/ M RS EEREFE TEEH
2022 2021
IZICE CZT-F
Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
BaXM (&8 BRAF BE B 157 Group and providing
services to group
companies
FEERBAER
RERBTERAT
Chiho Eco Protection Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
EAGBERRERAR s B 10,000%7T metal scrap and WEEE
MIKEEBLERR
BEREFEM
Chiho Environmental Recycling Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
Industry Limited &8 B 80,000,000%7T Group and wholesales
EaRFBETIEERAT of metal scrap without
processing
FERRBABRBERE
MIZBEEE
Chiho Environmental (Beijing) The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
Company Limited** HE HE AE#50,000,0007T companies
EaRR R BRAF! RERBTERRT
Taizhou Chiho-Tiande Metals The PRC The PRC 1S$108,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Company Limited** HE HE 108,000,000% 7T metal scrap
EMEAREEBERAR! MIRBEBLER
Chiho-Tiande (YanTai) Resources The PRC The PRC US$22,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Recycling Company Limited** HE HE 22,000,000% 7T metal scrap
BaXit (B5) BAERERAR! MIRBEBLER
Yantai Liheng Environmental Protection ~ The PRC The PRC RMBS5,150,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Technology Company Limited** HE HE AE#55,150,0007T |ubricating il
EEUHRRRRERAR MIRBEBER

A
*

+

All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company
For identification purpose only
Limited liability company

b FAZEFARNASARMBEREAR
* o fEHEER
© AREEAR

BERIRREBERAR

B HEER
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S e M ERE

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

(@) General information of principal subsidiaries

KRB ZFARFE (B)

(@) FEFALRN—REH (@

(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BEARMRRS/ FEBFHESRS
FRFEHE Pk BT AT AR k17N BHRRRE TEEH
2022 2021
S CB-F
Yantai Qisheng Petrochemical The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 60% 60%  Processing and sales of
Co, Ltd.* HE HE AE50,000,0007C lubricating oil
ERERBRIEIBERAT! MIRHERER
Dalian New Green Recycle & The PRC The PRC JPY8,556,011,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Resources Corporation** FE HE 8,556,011,0008 metal scrap
RENGBLERNIARAT! MIRHEBLLE
Scholz Recycling (Beijing) Co., Ltd** The PRC The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
IEBHER (bR) BRAF FE HE AE50,000,0007C companies
RERHTEERE
Heng Hup Chiho Recycling Malaysia Malaysia RM5,000,000 51% 51%  Processing of metal scrap
(Malaysia) SDN. BND. ERAED ERES 5,000,0005RBES S MIB4:E
Hidaka-Chiho Metal Recycling (Thailand) ~ Thailand Thailand Baht298,451,250 47.5% 45.7%  Processing and sales of
Company Limited? %E % 298,451,250% 4k metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
Delco Europe B.V. The Netherlands The Netherlands EUR18,151 100% 100%  Purchasing agent of the
wE wE 18,1518 7T Group
FEEZRBAE
Fegert Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR84,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
6 26 84,0007 metal scrap
MIRHEBLERE
Scholz Industrieservice GmbH Germany Germany EUR50,000 100% 100%  Providing industrial and
6 26 50,0008 70 logistic services
RETERMRRS
Scholz Recycling GmbH Germany Germany EUR100,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
6 26 100,000,0008% 7T metal scrap
MIRBEBLER
SIV Immobilien Verwaltungs GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Purchase and administration
6 26 25,0007 of real estate

All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company
*  For identification purpose only

+  Limited liability company

U The Group controls the board of directors
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SFaMEERME

= =12 NE (4
41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41 FRABVZFAEFHE @)
COMPANY (continued)
(a) General information of principal subsidiaries (a) FEFATN—MREN @
(continued)
Issued and
fully paid
Place of share capital/ Attributable equity
Place of incorporation/ registered interest and voting power
Name of subsidiary operation establishment capital held by the Group Principal activities
BETRBRRES/ FEAFEREMERE
FRFEHE g BT AT AR k17N B RRRE TEEH
2022 2021
ZfIZF ZZC-f%
Scholz Management Service GmbH Germany Germany EUR25,000 100% 100%  Providing services to group
6 = 25,0008 7 companies
RERHEFERLE
SRW metalfloat GmbH Germany Germany EUR1,000,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
Z6 = 1,000,00087 7 metal scrap
MIRHEBLERE
Liberty Iron & Metal, Inc. us Us US$3,100 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
%6 %H 3,100%7T metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
Scholz Polska Sp. z.0.0. Poland Poland PLN88,501,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
bt it 88,501,00044 12 metal scrap
MIRHEBLLE
Scholz Austria Holding Gmbh Republic of Austria Republic of Austria EUR35,000 100% 100%  Holding company
BRI BRI HAIE 35,000817¢ BRAT
Kovosrot Group CZ s.r.0. Czech Republic Czech Republic (ZK499,834,000 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
BRI RRAHE 499,834,000 52 52 68 metal scrap
MIKHEBLELE
Sberne suroviny, a.s. Czech Republic Czech Republic (CZK61,217,000 79.6% 79.6%  Processing and sales of
BRI RRAHE 61,217,000 2 52 5 metal scrap
MIKHEBLLE
DINOS d.d. Republic of Slovenia Republic of Slovenia  EUR2,279,700 100% 100%  Processing and sales of
AN EEEME BN EEHEME 2,279,70081 7% metal scrap
MIKHEBLELE

& All these subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company

b FAZEFARNASARMEEAR

BERIRREBERAR

B HEER
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S e M ERE

41 PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 41 FRABVZFAEFHE @)

COMPANY (continued)

(b) Significant restrictions (b) EKXRH
Cash and short-term deposits held in the PRC are subject RHREFE 2 REMEHRERE
to local exchange control regulations. These regulations BETEMINEETIER  ZFE
provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the PRC, Y B P EE S EARERS
other than through normal dividend. MELUIE B B% B 5 TUBRSb 0
The carrying amount of the assets included within the REEEABERNERZER
consolidated balance sheet to which these restrictions apply FlvEERBES1162888
is HK$116.2 million (2021: HK$274.0 million). T (CEZ—F 2740888

T) ©

(c) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that (0 BAEXRFEREZZIERE
have material non-controlling interest FRABZHIE
The non-controlling interests of all non-wholly owned E2HRIEEETFRAEIZIFERER
subsidiaries are individually not material to the Group. HAEESEBME L AR

42 CONTINGENCIES 42 THIREIE

(@) The Company is one of the defendants to a legal claim (a) Z&‘AF#ADelco Participation
by Delco Participation B.V. (“Delco”) regarding an alleged B.V. (TDelcoy) FEBKER
non-payment of a portion of the loans advanced by Delco Delco Asia Company Limited
Asia Company Limited (“Delco Asia”) to subsidiaries of the (TDelco Asial) BT AATE)
Company, amounting to approximately HK$57.8 million FREIWNEMHD EREEENS7.88
together with interest and costs. Delco alleged that it BARATERMNEREMERM
acquired the assets and liabilities of Delco Asia in 2011. RENEZERBENWEAZ—-
Delco Asia was dissolved by deregistration in 2012. Each DelcoBBEER —_Z——F W
of Mr. Fang Ankong (“Mr. Fang”), a former director of the fEDelco AsiafVEBEKREFE 1T
Company, and HWH Holdings Limited (“HWH") undertook T— 4 > Delco Asiabl BiEH £
to the Company to indemnify and hold the Company FRBH - A RABRESHLEE
harmless on demand against all losses arising out of, inter o4 (M5 584 1) &HWH Holdings
alia, this claim in accordance with the terms of a letter of Limited (THWH J) & BRIZAA S
indemnity signed by Mr. Fang and HWH in favour of the s IRB A A EHWHI AR R
Company on 17 December 2015 (the “Indemnity”). The BRAZEARE—LF+_H
exact scope of the indemnity is yet to be determined. ++t BEZEHMERGFER

REALBRE HAERE) RS
EENFABRRRERRATTR
BEK (TFREL) - BERARERE
[ B R RE ©
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42 CONTINGENCIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0

(continued)

The court case is still in progress, with the parties filing
amended pleadings and evidence. On Delco’s application,
the Court granted leave to Delco to discontinue its claim
against the Company for the HK$57.8 million, with certain
issues still to be decided by the High Court of Hong Kong.
The directors of the Company, after taking legal advice
from its legal advisers and in review of the Indemnity, are
of the opinion that it is not probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision for this claim has
been made.

The Company and Chiho-Tiande (HK) Limited (“CTHK"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, are two of the
defendants to another legal claim by Delco regarding an
alleged breach of a letter of undertaking in relation to a
convertible bond issued by the Company and subscribed for
by Delco. Delco further claimed against CTHK for a sum of
US$1.0 million, allegedly advanced by Delco Asia to CTHK.
Delco further claimed interests, costs and further or other
relief of approximately HK$6.3 million.

The parties subsequently filed amended pleadings and
gave evidence at the trial in July 2021. The case is still in
progress, with the parties having made closing submissions,
and the parties are awaiting judgment from the Court. The
directors of the Company, after taking legal advice from its
legal advisers, are of the opinion that it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle this claim. Accordingly, no provision for
this claim has been made.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has provided financial
guarantees to certain related parties and joint ventures
of HK$19.0 million and HK$49.9 million (2021: HK$19.5
million and HK$53.7 million), respectively. As the risk of
default is very remote and there is no history of default, no
financial guarantee liability was recognised.

S E M ERIEE

42 HAFHE (B

(a)

(b)

(0)

brire

BERIRREBERAR

(&)

FARETETH EFEZHE
TR BTSRRI FE IR
DelcoBYER7E » JABR A FFDelco#
AR RABRE7.SEEET
ETEENEREESSAMRE
EE K ERANT LEBHN
FERRENBEBER AAT
EERABEILRERTEER
A7 R 38 B R H o [RLILE - 3 £
IEZREEE S o

ERBRAABTZ2EFATE
XM (BB BRAE ((BE&
E#)) ADelcoftBRBERAR
B P 8517 & DelcoFf 5368 > Al 14
BRSP4 s 2 ACGEE BRI A T AR B
NB—FREARRENE R
£ AN oDelcoE—F BB & EHBH
REFBEIOEBEET 2R EBE
ZHHDelco AsiaB T FHEE B
DelcoBEREAM B FABERE—F
FEMESR S REENCIEE
BITe

EEESHBRIERSIETHIRE

A B —FtRAZESLF
HoRBHMAEETH EFEH
BIEHERRA EEEEAHIE
RFAEBRIER IR - REEBANT
FRBEENEERRR ARF
BEERARBILRERNEER
HBEF) 2 A9 R HH o BRI 5 St S
IEZRBEVE B o

ATEZTE+ZRA=+—H8>
FSEEESRBETHESRE
EPERHSRMIERIVOBES
TTRAIEEB T (CE—F:
1958 BBITK53. 7888 T) °
R E L E RGN B EEQE
S LW SRR I A S RIER
&
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SSVEARSEINANCIAIRSUMIMNARYY
AEMEZERE

Summary of selected items of consolidated statement of SHEHFREETREME
profit and loss

For the year ended 31 December

BET-AZt-ALEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
S¥ICF T ZFITE ERNF ZE)N\E
HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BERAT FAEAn BEBEx  BHEER  BEER

Revenue & 19,574.3 21,950.4 13,368.1 15,363.4 20,912.8
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BRETISIATEF, (B538) 404.0 883.7 (809.8) (99.5) 469.4
Income tax expense IS X (166.6) (191.7) (54.4) (34.3) (70.4)

Profit/(Loss) attributable to: LUTFE&HEEER, (B8 :
Shareholders of the Company KATREER 264.5 702.0 (848.1) (128.7) 401.2
Non-controlling interests JEIEpG S (27.1) (10.0) (16.1) (5.1) 2.2)
237.4 692.0 (864.2) (133.8) 399.0

Summary of selected items of consolidated balance sheet “EEERERETHEHNE

As at 31 December

R+ZA=1+—8H

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
ZE-fF “E--F “EITE “ZT-NE ZE)N\E
HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT ©SBAT HEET HEBT G8ETn

Assets BE
Current assets REEE 4,052.4 5,001.6 4,510.1 4,039.4 5,329.5
Non-current assets FRBEE 4,520.6 4,956.9 5,362.8 6,150.6 6,058.0
Total assets BERE 8,573.0 9,958.5 9,872.9 10,190.0 11,3875

Liabilities =L
Current liabilities nEEE 3,098.0 4,426.6 4,392.0 3,996.5 3,298.0
Non-current liabilities E|iE = 694.3 672.4 1,016.7 1,262.5 2,9436
Total liabilities SEEE 3,792.3 5,099.0 5,408.7 5,259.0 6,241.6
4,780.7 4,859.5 4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9

Equity attributable to: U FEE#ER

Shareholders of the Company /N8 4,824.2 4,873.9 4,477.6 49413 5,175.3
Non-controlling interests KRR (43.5) (14.4) (13.4) (10.3) (29.4)

4,780.7 4,859.5 4,464.2 4,931.0 5,145.9
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CORPOIR/ANE INFORMYAITION]

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)

Mr. Li Linhui (Chairman)
(resigned on 21 March 2023)

Mr. Miao Yu

Mr. Yao Jietian

Mr. Wang Li (appointed on 10 June 2022)

Mr. Rafael Heinrich Suchan
(removed on 7 January 2022)

Mr. Zhang Wei (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Prof. Li Zhiguo
Prof. Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Mr. Tu Jianhua

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)

Mr. Miao Yu

Mr. Yao Jietian

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Prof. Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Prof. Li Zhiguo
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

(appointed on 4 March 2022)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman)
(appointed on 21 March 2023)
Mr. Miao Yu
Prof. Li Zhiguo
Prof. Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022)
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting
(appointed on 4 March 2022)
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Corporate Information

AFEH
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE HNEEE
Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (Chairman) BIESIE % (/)
(appointed on 4 March 2022) (R ZE - —F=FIIHEZT)
Mr. Miao Yu mRSTE
Prof. Li Zhiguo FEEHE
Prof. Yan Guowan (appointed on 4 March 2022) SEERE (K ZE - F=FNHEZT)
STRATEGY AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE BRAKELRE T
Mr. Tu Jianhua REESE
Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman) KRR E (F/F)

(appointed on 21 March 2023)
Mr. Miao Yu

R _E_=ZF=F —+—HEZF)
ERfE

Mr. Yao Jietian WA R4
PRICING COMMITTEE EEZEE
Mr. Qin Yongming (Chairman) KBRS E (£/E)

(appointed on 21 March 2023)
Mr. Miao Yu

(R —E_—=ZF=H _—+—HEZT)
HRTE

Mr. Yao Jietian PR R AE

M. Udo Langhans Udo Langhansst 4
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES IRERE

Mr. Tu Jianhua REBESLE

Ms. Ng Mei Wah REZELL
COMPANY SECRETARY NEME

Ms. Ng Mei Wah SEZEZL
AUDITOR 2
PricewaterhouseCoopers B ERKE S SR BN
Certified Public Accountants HE DT

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor AR LR T 5 B RERZ BT
LEGAL ADVISORS e

Conyers Dill & Pearman (Cayman Islands)
Chiu & Partners (Hong Kong)

Conyers Dill & Pearman (I E)
R BB R MBS (BB)

Bird & Bird (Hong Kong) BEE R BT (BH)
DLA Piper (Hong Kong) BRERMER (BH)
Deacons (Hong Kong) BAERENTT (B

LC Lawyers LLP (Hong Kong)

JYC Law Firm (China)

Kingpound Law Firm (China)
Aber-Law (Thailand)

Latham & Watkins LLP (Germany)
CMS Hasche Sigle (Germany)
Menold Bezler (Germany)
Acuminis (US)

Withers Worldwide
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PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg (LBBW)
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

REGISTERED OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

48 Wang Lok Street

Yuen Long Industrial Estate
Hong Kong

The PRC

GROUP HEADQUARTERS

Suite 1001, 10/F, Infinitus Plaza
199 Des Voeux Road Central
Hong Kong

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

Unit AF2, Floor 25, Block A, Building no.1
No. 18, Xiaguangli

East 3rd Ring Road North

Chaoyang District

Beijing

The PRC

HEADQUARTERS IN EUROPE

Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str.1
73457 Essingen
Germany

HEADQUARTERS IN NORTH AMERICA

1515 East Avenue
Erie, PA 16503
USA

* For business addresses of other principal operational bases of the Group, please refer
to the Company’s website.

Corporate Information

Q[FEHE

FEFRIEIT

R R ZIRTT

Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg (LBBW)
BITIRTT (BB BRAR

FEHEEMNERE
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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BEE 19957
ERIBE IS 10421001%E

R4S

FRE
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HizE

RIRILE

B E185%

1S5RS ARE25/BAF2 88 7T

BUN AR
Berndt-Ulrich-Scholz-Str. 1
73457 Essingen
Germany

6= MAEER
1515 East Avenue

Erie, PA 16503
USA
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Corporate Information

QAFEH

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

WEBSITE

www.chihogroup.com

STOCK CODE
Hong Kong Stock Exchange 976
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Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
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CHIHO ENVIRONMENTAL GROUP LIMITED
EERFEEEBRAE

48 Wang Lok Street,
Yuen Long Industrial Estate, Hong Kong

BB T TR 4474857

Tel E:E: (852) 2587 7700 / (852) 2589 3500
Fax f8H.: (852) 2587 7799
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